
Next Ord: 1740-12 
Next Res: 860-12 

VISION STATEMENT 

SEDRO-WOOLLEY IS A FRIENDLY CITY THAT IS CHARACTERIZED BY CITY GOVERNMENT AND CITIZENS WORKING TOGETHER TO 

ACHIEVE A PROSPEROUS, VIBRANT AND SAFE COMMUNITY 

MISSION STATEMENT 

TO PROVIDE SERVICES AND OPPORTUNITIES WHICH CREATE A COMMUNITY WHERE PEOPLE CHOOSE TO 

LIVE, WORK AND PLAY 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
April 25, 2012 

7:00 PM 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

Council Chambers 
325 Metcalf Street 

	

1. 	Call to Order 

	

2. 	Pledge of Allegiance 

	

3. 	Consent Calendar 	 Pages 1-44 

NOTE: 	 Agenda items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and may be adopted by the council by a single motion, 
unless any Councilmember wishes an item to be removed. The Council on the regular agenda will consider any item so removed after the Consent 
Calendar. 

a. Minutes from Previous Meeting 
b. Finance 

- Claim Checks #74202 to #74333 in the amount of $329,186.81.  
- Payroll Checks #52823 to #52928 in the amount of $186,313.93.  

c. Approval of Amendment I to the 2012-2017 Six-Year Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) 

d. Approval of Local Agency Federal Aid Project Prospectus and Agreement 
for the SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project 

	

4. 	Corps of Engineers Presentation on the General Investigation Study for the Skagit River 

	

5. 	Rotary Presentation 

	

6. 	Public Comment (Limited to 3-5 minutes) 

NEW BUSINESS  

	

7. 	Professional Services Agreement No. 2012-PS-14 for Design Phase Services for the SR20/Cook 
Road Realignment and Extension Project — David Evans & Associates, Inc 	Pages 45-108 

	

8. 	Community Center AN Equipment Rental Fees (Pt  reading) 	 Pages 109-113 

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

There may be an Executive Session immediately preceding, during or following the meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

APR 2 5 2012 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

  

  

DATE: 
	

April 25, 2012 

TO: 
	

Mayor Anderson and City Council 

FROM: 
	

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: 1) CALL TO ORDER; 2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 3) CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

1. CALL TO ORDER - The Mayor will call the April 25, 2012 
Regular Meeting to Order. 	The Finance Director will note 
those in attendance and those absent. 

	 Ward 1 

	 Ward 2 

	 Ward 3 

	 Ward 4 

	 Ward 5 

Ward 6  

Councilmember Kevin Loy 

Councilmember Tony Splane 

Councilmember Thomas Storrs 

Councilmember Keith Wagoner 

Councilmember Hugh Galbraith 

Councilmember Rick Lemley 

At-Large Councilmember Brett Sandstrom 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - The Mayor will lead the City Council 
and citizens in the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States 
of America. 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR - Mayor will ask for Council approval of 
Consent Calendar items. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 2 5 2012 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 

  

Regular Meeting of the City Council 
April 11, 2012 — 7:00 P.M. —City Hall Council Chambers 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Mike Anderson, Councilmembers: Kevin Loy, Tony 
Splane, Tom Storrs, Keith Wagoner, Hugh Galbraith, Rick Lemley and Brett Sandstrom. 
Staff: Finance Director Nelson, City Supervisor/Attorney Berg, Engineer Freiberger, 
Planner Moore, Fire Chief Klinger and Police Chief Wood. 

The Meeting was called to order at 7:00 P.M. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Consent Calendar 
• Minutes from Previous Meeting 
• Finance 

o Claim Checks #74132 to #74201 in the amount of $94,391.41. 
o Payroll Checks # 52716 to #52822 in the amount of $258,544.76. 

• Possible Bid Award -- Public Works Agreement Nos. 2012-PW-19 2012 
WTP Equipment Repairs 

• Amendment 1 to the Interlocal Agreement dated 10/18/2011 with Skagit 
County Conservation District Public Education & Involvement Project in 
Support of the NPDES Phase II Stormwater Permit WAR-04-5555 

• Interagency Agreement with Department of Enterprise Services, #2012-ERG-
556 

• Professional Services Agreements No. 2012-PS-01 — Task Order 3 — 
SR20/Cook Road Realignment Project Environmental Services 

• Possible Bid Award — Public Works Agreement Nos. 2012-PW013 2012-2014 
Electrical Preventative Maintenance Service. 

• Possible Bid Award — Public Works Agreements Nos. 2012-PW-11 — On-Call 
Tree Trimming and Removal Services 

• Interlocal Joint Purchasing Agreement — Washington County Fire District No. 
2 

Councilmember Lemley moved to approve the consent calendar Items A through I. 
Seconded by Councilmember Storrs. Motion carried (7-0). 

Public Comment 

Pat Huggins — questioned if he would be allowed to speak under new business item 8. 
Huggins was told he would be allowed to address the Council at that time. 

Police Chief Wood — introduced Officer Rhonda Lasley as the newest Police Officer. 



UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

2011 Comprehensive Plan Docket 

Planner Moore reviewed for a second reading the 2011 Comprehensive Plan Docket. The 
Planning Commission has recommended the following: 

CPA-1-11 — Rezone of Abandoned Railroad Corridor Along Northern Street 
CPA-2-11 — Proposed Expansion of UGA to Include City-owned Properties 
CPA-3-11 — Update of the Parks and Recreation Element 

Discussion ensued on CPA-2-11. 

Planner Moore reviewed the City Council action options to include 1) adoption of the 
docket items, 2) refer back to the Planning Commission for further review and 
modification 3) adoption with additional changes made by the City Council or 4) reject 
the proposed changes. 

Councilmember Sandstrom moved to approve Ordinance No. 1736-12 to amend the 
Comprehensive Land Use Map, Zoning Map, and Parks and Recreation Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Councilmember Wagoner seconded. Motion carried (7-0). 

Councilmember Sandstrom moved to approve Resolution No. 859-12 to support future 
application to Skagit County to expand Sedro-Woolley's urban growth area to include 
City-owned properties along River Road and Cook Road. Seconded by Councilmember 
Splane. Motion carried (7-0). 

Ordinance — Creating Impact Fee Credits 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg noted this topic has been discussed at numerous times, 
most recently at the April 4th  worksession. After Council discussion the proposed 
ordinance would provide a clear balance while encouraging redevelopment of existing 
structures and fairly imposing impact fees. 

The ordinance provides credits against impact fees imposed for redevelopment as 
follows: 

• For existing structures based upon the most recent permitted use; 
• For parcels with structures demolished pursuant to a permit, the same as 

above for a period of 10 years from the date of the demolition permit; and 
• No credits given to parcels with structures demolished pursuant to an 

abatement order from the City. 

Some discussion took place regarding traffic impact fees and current policy. 



Councilmember Galbraith moved to adopt Ordinance No. 1737-12 An Ordinance 
Creating Impact Fee Credits. Seconded by Councilmember Sandstrom. Motion carried 
(7-0). 

Swedelius Site Access Road and Tree Farm Operation 

Engineer Freiberger presented background information regarding city-owned property 
known as the Swedelius Property. He noted that with City permission the Sedro-Woolley 
High School Forestry Program has been using the property as a practice site for clearing, 
logging and tree farm type operations. The site was purchased in 2007 for development 
of a storrnwater detention facility using an interfund loan. The loan balance is 
approximately $139,003.03 plus $7,625 in unpaid interest. 

Nursery stock has been identified which is saleable providing access can be gained 
during the months when the trees would need to be excavated and prepared for shipment. 
Freiberger introduced Wayne Ramsey, instructor of the High School program. Ramsey 
proposed the City partner with the School District and the City construct a loop road and 
improve the farm access road as needed. Freiberger detailed the aspects of the 
partnership. In addition it was proposed to for Mr. Ramsey to act as a broker through his 
private company "The Plant Man" for selling of the stock with a 20% commission. 

Wayne Ramsey approached the podium and addressed the Council regarding the 
potential marketing of the trees, timing of transplanting, potential of the program, 
involvement as a broker, potential of the current stock and additional of stock for future. 
Ramsey also answered questions from the Council to include procedures for digging 
trees, type of nursery stock, plan for clean up and thinning of trees, liability and 
purchasing and payment process. 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to authorize staff to proceed with road construction as 
noted above at a cost not to exceed $10,000 to be funded by the Stormwater Utility 
account, and reimbursed by nursery stock sales. Seconded by Councilmember Galbraith. 
Motion carried (7-0). 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to negotiate an agreement with "The Plant Man" for 
marketing and sales of nursery stock from the site for a fee of 20% of gross sales. 
Seconded by Councilmember Lemley. Motion carried (7-0). 

NEW BUSINESS 

SWMC 8.04.105 A 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg noted this was an item that was brought forward from 
resident Pat Huggins at the March 28, 2012 meeting. The utilities committee met and 
discussed his request and is recommending the proposed ordinance be adopted. 



Berg stated the original request was to temporarily discontinue garbage service to two of 
three separate rental dwellings located on a single legal parcel. He presented information 
regarding the City's mandatory, universal and compulsory system of garbage collection. 
He noted Mr. Huggins argued that the language "parcel or unit' allowed for individual 
units on a parcel to discontinue service, even when the whole parcel was still using the 
service. The committee recommendation is to keep the current policy but clarify SWMC 
8.04.105A to address any potential ambiguity by deleting the words "or unit". Berg 
addressed the concerns of the committee regarding challenges in enforcement. 

Pat Huggins — read a prepared statement and requested to go on record in response to a 
letter received on April 10th  from City Supervisor/Attorney Eron Berg to the City Council 
regarding the proposed changes to Sedro Woolley Solid Waste Ordinance. Huggins 
wanted to make clear that he did not argue as stated in the letter that "parcel or unit 
allowed for individual units on a parcel to discontinue service even when the whole 
parcel was still using service" and had no problem with the wording change proposed. 
He also wanted it on the record that if the change is being made based on the quote, the 
decision is being made on an argument erroneously attributed to him as stated in the 
letter. 

He reiterated his original request "I humbly request that the garbage and recycling service 
at 202, 206 and 210 Haines Street, (Parcel #76779, one whole parcel with three units on 
it) be reduced from 3-25 gallon mini cans and 3 recycling cans to 1-25 gallon mini can 
and 1 recycling can. We are no longer in need of that much capacity at this parcel. We 
will not be in need of this much capacity for at least the next 6 months. This request is 
not being made due to remodeling or construction". 

He noted his actual argument for the reduction in service is based on the existing 
ordinance and would be the same under the changed ordinance. 

Huggins reviewed correspondence between him and the City. He believes the City is 
denying him the right to choose the appropriate capacity. Huggins humbly requested that 
his request be granted and garbage service be reduced. 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg apologized for misunderstanding the argument. He noted 
that the argument that he now understands Huggins to be making is addressed within the 
ordinance. 

Huggins requested a copy of the Ordinance and Code that addresses the definition of a 
unit. 

Council discussion ensued regarding snow birding policy, steps for changing of policy, 
policy for recycling, charges for dumpsters and implementation and enforcement of 
service. 

Councilmember Storrs moved to approve Ordinance No. 1738-12 An Ordinance 
Amending the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code Section 8.04.105 A to Remove any 



Potential Ambiguity About the Requirements for Discontinuing Garbage Service. 
Seconded by Councilmember Wagoner. Motion carried (7-0). 

The topic was also requested to be added to a future worksession agenda. 

Skagit County Request for Participation on a Jail Project Coordinating Committee 
(JPCC)  

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg reviewed capacity issues with the current jail, past 
planning committee for jail expansion and the proposed Jail Project Coordinating 
Committee (JPCC). Berg reviewed the proposed make up of the committee and outlined 
the objectives of the committee, presented the Mayor's recommended City 
representatives (Eron Berg and Councilmember Wagoner) and process for keeping the 
Council informed of the committee status. Berg noted that there are a lot of unanswered 
questions that still need to be addressed. 

Discussion ensued regarding other jail uses, location of jail and costs for transporting. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS 

Fire Chief Klinger — reported of another volunteer resident who is leaving to be part of 
the Bellingham Fire Department. He also reported on the addition of three new residents 
and said the Department will be conducting testing in the near future. 

Planner Moore — announced the upcoming EDASC Schmooze Fair to be held Thursday, 
April 12th. He noted the City will be having a booth to highlight the improvements the 
City has made in infrastructure, business climate and permitting improvements to make 
Sedro-Woolley a more viable location for businesses to locate or relocate. All 
Councilmember's are invited. 

Engineer Freiberger — announced the ribbon cutting for the SR20 project scheduled to 
Thursday, April 12th  at 11:00 A.M. He noted there will be displays and information on 
the upcoming Cook Road project. Freiberger also reported on the consultant selection for 
the Cook Road project which will be on the agenda for the next Council meeting_ He 
stated he is still waiting on confirmation the additional funds for the SR9 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Safety Project which will require an increase in the matching funds. 
He also addressed the expectation of impact fees from the Cascade Middle School Project 
of approximately $300,000. 

City Supervisor/Berg - reported on the upcoming Council retreat and a conflict with one 
of the Councilmembers with the date chosen. Alternative dates were discussed. The 
consensus was to stay with the original date. Berg requested authorization of a manual 
check and authorization for the Mayor to sign closing documents on the previously 
discussed real estate transaction. 



Councilmember Storrs moved to authorize the issuance of a manual check in the amount 
of $99,993.14 payable to Guardian Northwest Title & Escrow and to authorize the mayor 
to sign related documents to close the purchase of property. Seconded by 
Councilmember Wagoner. 

Councilmember Spine questioned the payment schedule of the balance owing on the 
property. 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg noted that the remaining balance will be $100,000 payable 
over the next 10 years at $10,000 per year with no interest. He noted the total purchase 
price is $200,000. Berg also stated the transaction comes with a significant donation 
from the family and comes with a deed restriction naming the property the Winnie 
Houser Park & Playfields and limiting its use as park, play land and open space only. 

Motion carried (7-0). 

Councilmember Sandstrom — addressed the passing of House Bill 4667 claiming Sedro-
Woolley the log carving capital of the world and the oldest 4th  of July in the state of 
Washington. The bill was sponsored by Representative Kirk Pearson. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The meeting adjourned to Executive Session at 8:40 P.M. for the purpose of personnel for 
approximately 15 minutes under RCW 42.30.110 (i)(g) with possible action. 

The meeting reconvened at 8:55 P.M. 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to adopt Ordinance No. 1739-12 An Ordinance 
Amending Ordinance 1724-11 Effective May 1, 2012. Seconded by Councilmember 
Storrs. Motion carried (7-0). 

The meeting adjourned at 8:56 P.M. 



 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 2 5 2012 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIIIIAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

  

  

DATE: 	April 25, 2012 

TO: 	Mayor Anderson and City Council 

FRO1.1: 	Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: FINANCE - CLAIMS 

Attached you will find the Claim Checks register proposed for 
payment for the period ending April 25, 2012. 

Motion to approve Claim Checks #74202 to #74333 in the amount of 
$329,186.81.  

Motion to approve Payroll Checks #52823 to #52928 in the amount of 
$186,313.93.  

If you have any comments, questions or concerns, please contact me 
for information during the working day at 855-1661. 	This will 
allow me to look up the invoices that are stored in our office. 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

WARRANT 

04/25/2012 

VENDOR NAME 

{Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) 

DESCRIPTION 

PAGE 

AMOUNT 

74202 GUARDIAN NW TITLE & ESCROW OTHER IMPROVEMENTS PK 99,993.14 

WARRANT TOTAL 99,993.14 

74203 SKAGIT COUNTY AUDITOR MISC-FILING FEES/LIEN EXP SWR 1,674.00 

MISC-FILING FEES/LIEN EXP SAN 1,674.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 3,348.00 

74204 AACTION EXCAVATION, INC. ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 3,117.13 

ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 856.42 

WARRANT TOTAL 3,973.55 

74205 ADS EQUIPMENT INC MAINT OF PUMPING EQUIP SWR 206.88 

WARRANT TOTAL 206.88 

74206 A WORKSAFE SERVICE, 	INC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PD 52.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 52.00 

74207 ALLIED WASTE SERVICES #197 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SAN 89.76 

WARRANT TOTAL 89.76 

74208 ALPINE FIRE & SAFETY OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 61.67 

WARRANT TOTAL 61.67 

74209 ANDERSSON, MARY COMMUNITY GRANT PROGRAMS LIB 200.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 200.00 

74210 A.T.V. 	ACCESSORIES OPERATING SUP - BINGHAM PARK 97.38 

WARRANT TOTAL 97.38 

74211 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES MISC-LAUNDRY ST 10.98 

MISC-LAUNDRY ST 5.60 

MISC-LAUNDRY ST 10.98 

LAUNDRY SWR 31.59 

LAUNDRY SWR 12.74 

LAUNDRY SWR 31.59 

WARRANT TOTAL 103.48 

74212 ASSOCIATION OF WA CITIES RETIRED MEDICAL PD 8,160.11 

WARRANT TOTAL 8,160.11 

74213 ASSOC PETROLEUM PRODUCTS AUTO FUEL CS 171.76 

AUTO FUEL CS 72.71 

AUTO FUEL CS 63.04 

AUTO FUEL PD 110.75 

AUTO FUEL PD 1,842.06 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL FD 818.86 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL PK 476.23 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL CEM 131.20 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL CEM 87.89 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL ST 149.81 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SWR 233.93 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SWR 107.74 



2 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

WARRANT 

04/25/2012 

VENDOR NAME 

(Printed 04/19/2012 	14:48) 

DESCRIPTION 

PAGE 

AMOUNT 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SWR 289.10 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 1.09 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SAN 2,485.65 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SAN 3,201.94 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SAN 117.73 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SWTR 513.58 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SWTR 514.03 

WARRANT TOTAL 11,389.10 

74214 BAY CITY SUPPLY MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 81.80 

WARRANT TOTAL 81.80 

74215 BICKNELL, JUSTIN EMPLOYEE WELLNESS ENG 30.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 30.00 

74216 BIOSCIENCE, 	INC. MAINTENANCE OF LINES SWR 1,150.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,150.00 

74217 BLUMENTHAL UNIFORM & EQUP UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES PD 222.78 

WARRANT TOTAL 222.78 

74218 BOW HILL MILL ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 346.24 

CAP OUTLAY-GRANT FOR HHS PKR 129.84 

WARRANT TOTAL 476.08 

74219 BOUWENS, JENNIFER A. PROF SVC-PROSECUTING ATTY LGL 2,500.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 2,500.00 

74220 BRAT WEAR UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES PD 475.54 

WARRANT TOTAL 475.54 

74221 CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORP. PUBLIC UTILTIES PD 54.74 

PUBLIC UTILITIES FD 330.60 

UTILITIES-COMMUNITY CTR PK 103.98 

UTILITIES-SENIOR CENTER PK 188.86 

UTILITIES-HAMMER SQUARE PK 99.74 

UTILITIES - SHOP PK 91.20 

UTILITIES - SHOP PK 47.11 

PUBLIC UTILITIES-CITY HALL PK 1,825.82 

PUBLIC UTILITIES ST 56.45 

PUBLIC UTILITIES ST 39.08 

PUBLIC UTILITIES LIB 152.35 

PUBLIC UTILITIES SWR 118.40 

PUBLIC UTILITIES SAN 263.55 

WARRANT TOTAL 3,371.88 

74222 CENTRAL WELDING SUPPLY OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 21.64 

WARRANT TOTAL 21.64 

74223 CODE PUBLISHING INC. CODE BOOK LGS 350.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 350.00 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) 	 PAGE 	3 

WARRANT 

74224 

VENDOR NAME 

COMMERCIAL FIRE PROTECTION INC. 

DESCRIPTION 

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 

REPAIR/MAINT-STATION 2 

REPAIR/MT-HAMMER SQUARE 

REPAIR/MAINT-CITY HALL 

PD 

ED 

PK 

PK 

AMOUNT 

80.90 

80.90 

80.90 

141.58 

MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS SWR 80.90 

MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS SWR 80.90 

MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS SWR 80.90 

MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS SWR 80.90 

MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS SWR 80.90 

MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS SWR 80.90 

WARRANT TOTAL 869.68 

74225 COMCAST INTERNET SERVICES IT 111.90 

WARRANT TOTAL 111.90 

74226 CONSOLIDATED SUPPLY CO. ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 121.65 

ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 443.26 

WARRANT TOTAL 564.91 

74227 COOK PAGING (WA) TELEPHONE FD 18.82 

WARRANT TOTAL 18.82 

74228 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS EMPLOYEE WELLNESS EXE 32.83 

OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 51.93 

WARRANT TOTAL 84.76 

74229 CRYSTAL SPRINGS OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 70.93 

WARRANT TOTAL 70.93 

74230 CUES MAINTENANCE OF LINES SWR 114.80 

MAINTENANCE OF LINES SWR 4,512.98 

WARRANT TOTAL., 4,627.78 

74231 DATA BASE RECORDS DESTRUCTION LLC SUPPLIES JUD 21.95 

SUPPLIES PIN 21.95 

SUPPLIES/BOOKS PLN 6.36 

SUPPLIES ENO 6.36 

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 43.92 

OFF/OPER SUPPS & BOOKS INSP 6.36 

WARRANT TOTAL 106.90 

74232 E & E LUMBER OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL PK 31.79 

OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL PK 54.22 

REPAIRS/MT-RIVERFRONT PK 61.58 

REPAIR/MT-SMALL TOOLS EQUIP PK 7.78 

ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 1.19 

ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 16.61 

ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PR 14.23 

ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 69.72 

ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 10.40 

OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 13.37 

OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 58.84 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 	(Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) PAGE 	4 

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 34.07- 

CONST-SR20 WIDENING 28.28 

CONST-SR20 WIDENING 25.31 

STRUCTURE KENNEL 42.90 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 31.85 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 2.00- 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 3.79 

WARRANT TOTAL 435.79 

74233 EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SWR 247.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SWR 189.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 436.00 

74234 ENTERPRISE OFFICE SYSTEMS SUPPLIES/BOOKS PLN 5.57 

SUPPLIES ENG 5.58 

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 8.54 

OFF/OPER SUPPS & BOOKS INSP 5.57 

WARRANT TOTAL 25.26 

74235 EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTS INC OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 402.25 

WARRANT TOTAL 402.2$ 

74236 FRONTIER TELEPHONE JUD 35.52 

TELEPHONE EXE 53.28 

TELEPHONE FIN 53.28 

TELEPHONE LGL 23.68 

TELEPHONE IT 17.76 

TELEPHONE PLN 17.76 

TELEPHONE ENG 41.44 

TELEPHONE PD 177.65 

TELEPHONE PD 54.86 

TELEPHONE PD 48.73 

TELEPHONE FD 65.12 

TELEPHONE FD 126.40 

TELEPHONE INSP 17.76 

TELEPHONE PK 11.84 

TELEPHONE PK 80.61 

PUBLIC UTILITIES-CITY HALL PK 57.50 

PUBLIC UTILITIES-CITY HALL PK 109.70 

TELEPHONE CEM 63.30 

TELEPHONE ST 5.92 

TELEPHONE LIE 29.60 

TELEPHONE LIB 112.57 

TELEPHONE SWR 47.36 

TELEPHONE SWR 212.57 

TELEPHONE SAN 23.68 

TELEPHONE SAN 84.09 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,571.98 

74237 GATEWAY SEPTIC SERVICE LLC REPAIRS/MT-RV PARK PK 216.40 

WARRANT TOTAL 216.40 



CITY OF SEnRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14.48) 	 PAGE 	5 

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

74238 GLACKIN, JAMES PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LGL 125.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 125.00 

74239 GREAT AMERICA LEASING COR REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP LIB 139.63 

WARRANT TOTAL 139.63 

74240 GUARDIAN SECURITY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PD 126.00 

FIRE/THEFT PROTECTION FD 84.00 

OPERATING SUP - COMM CENTER PK 81.00 

OPERATING SUP - SENIOR CTR PK 147.00 

OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL PK 168.00 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 126.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 732.00 

74241 HANDY'S HEATING, 	INC. REPAIR/MAINT-LIBRARY PK 622.75 

REPAIR/MAINT-CITY HALL PK 8,918.93 

REPAIR/MAINT-CITY HALL PK 126.88 

WARRANT TOTAL 9,668.56 

74242 HARRIS, JASON OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 23.79 

WARRANT TOTAL 23.79 

74243 HAYDEN, PATRICK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JUD 200.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 200.00 

74244 HONEY BUCKET UTILITIES-PORTABLE TOILETS PK 75.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 75.00 

74245 IKON OFFICE SOLUTIONS REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE PD 75.74 

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP FD 75.74 

WARRANT TOTAL 151.48 

74246 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 64.24 

HOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 28.60 

BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 66.11 

BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 27.97 

BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 33.47 

WARRANT TOTAL 220.39 

74247 INT'L ASSOC OF CHIEFS DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS PD 120.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 120.00 

74248 JOHN, RONALD RETIRED MEDICAL PD 84.45 

WARRANT TOTAL 84.45 

74249 KROESEN'S INC. UNIFORMS FD 227.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 227.00 

74250 LJF DOCUMENT IMAGING SERVICES PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ENG 75.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 75.00 

74251 LACAL EQUIPMENT INC. REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP SAN 356.46 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) 	 PAGE 	6 

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION 

WARRANT TOTAL 

AMOUNT 

356.46 

74252 LAUNCHING SUCCESS LEARNING STORE BOOKS, PERIOD, RECORDS LIB 182.32 

WARRANT TOTAL 182.32 

74253 LEGEND DATA SYSTEMS INC. OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 20.61 

WARRANT TOTAL 20.61 

74254 LIFE TEK, 	INC SUPPLIES & BOOKS FD 199.09 

WARRANT TOTAL 199.09 

74255 MCCANN, WILLIAM R. INDIGENT DEFEND CONTR JUD 2,557.50 

WARRANT TOTAL 2,557.50 

74256 MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS REPAIR/MAINT-STREETS ST 354.34 

REPAIR/MAINT-STREETS ST 114.08 

WARRANT TOTAL 468.42 

74257 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES, INC. OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 288.46 

WARRANT TOTAL 288.46 

74258 MEYER SIGN & ADVERTISING WAYFINDER SIGNS PLN 7,124.97 

WARRANT TOTAL 7,124.97 

74259 MID-AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEM. OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 172.05 

WARRANT TOTAL 172.05 

74260 MOUNT VERNON, CITY OF SUPPLIES LIB 10.00 

SUPPLIES LIB 13.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 23.00 

74261 NELSON, PATSY EMPLOYEE WELLNESS FIN 90.00 

MEALS/TRAVEL FIN 16.87 

WARRANT TOTAL 108.67 

74262 NESHEIM, TERESA EMPLOYEE WELLNESS FIN 90.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 90.00 

74263 NORTHWEST MFG & DIST. INC. REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP ST 204.08 

WARRANT TOTAL 204.08 

74264 OASYS OPERATING RENTALS/LEASES FIN 701.07 

SUPPLIES/BOOKS PLN 220.83 

SUPPLIES ENG 220.83 

OFF/OPER SUPPS & Boon INSP 220.82 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,363.55 

74265 OFFICE DEPOT OPERATING SUPPLIES SWTR 64.95 

WARRANT TOTAL 64.95 

74266 OLIVER-HAMMER CLOTHES SAFETY EQUIPMENT PK 149.27 

WARRANT TOTAL 149.27 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:481 PAGE 

WARRANT .VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

74267 PACIFIC COMMERCIAL LOCK & KEY OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL 	PK 115.09 

WARRANT TOTAL 115.09 

74268 PAPE MACHINERY MAINT OF GENERAL EQUIP 	SWR 82.78 

WARRANT TOTAL 82.78 

74269 PAT RIMER TIRE CTR, INC REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO 	PD 108.47 

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP 	 FD 54.37 

REPAIR/MT-SMALL TOOLS EQUIP PK 219.17 

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP 	ST 60.86 

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP 	SAN 41.74 

WARRANT TOTAL 484.61 

74270 PETTY CASH-DEBRA PETERSON SUPPLIES 	 LIB 34.99 

BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY 	 LIB 3.26 

BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY 	 LIE 32.93 

WARRANT TOTAL 71.18 

74271 PIERCE, DAVE OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES 	PD 10.79 

WARRANT TOTAL 10.79 

74272 PITNEY BOWES OPERATING RENTALS/LEASES 	FIN 47.34 

POSTAGE 	 PLN 47.33 

POSTAGE 	 ENG 47.33 

POSTAGE 	 PD 47.34 

POSTAGE 	 FD 47.33 

POSTAGE 	 INSP 47.33 

WARRANT TOTAL 284.00 

74273 PUBLIC UTILITY DIS. NO.1 PUBLIC UTILTIES 	 PD 18.10 

UTILITIES-RIVERFRONT 	PK 151.88 

UTILITIES-HAMMER SQUARE 	PK 52.18 

UTILITIES-BINGHAM & MEMORIAL P 33.34 

UTILITIES - OTHER 	 PK 36.48 

PUBLIC UTILITIES-CITY HALL 	PK 182.83  

PUBLIC UTILITIES 	 GEM 112.30  

PUBLIC UTILITIES 	 ST 33.34  

PUBLIC UTILITIES 	 LIB 84.04 

PUBLIC UTILITIES 	 SWR 193.44 

PUBLIC UTILITIES 	 SAN 39.82 

WARRANT TOTAL 937.55 

74274 PUGET SOUND ENERGY PUBLIC UTILITIES 	 ST 8,688.88 

WARRANT TOTAL 8,608.88 

74275 PURCHASE POWER POSTAGE 	 JOB 360.06 

POSTAGE 	 FIN 230.14 

POSTAGE 	 LGL 4.91 

POSTAGE 	 LGL 2.26 

POSTAGE 	 PLN 37.11 

POSTAGE 	 ENG 104.35 

POSTAGE 	 PD 243.94 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

WARRANT 

04/25/2012 

VENDOR NAME 

(Printed 04/19/2012 	14:48) 

DESCRIPTION 

PAGE 

AMOUNT 

POSTAGE FD 4.06 

POSTAGE INSP 19.81 

POSTAGE PK 6.16 

POSTAGE CEM 12.14 

POSTAGE SWR 113.79 

POSTAGE SAN 52.52 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWTR 8.75 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,200.00 

74276 QUICK LANE TIRE & AUTO CENTER REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO PD 129.79 

REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO PD 154.59 

REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO PD 154.59 

REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO PD 34.04 

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP FD 100.79- 

WARRANT TOTAL 372.22 

74277 QUIRING MONUMENTS, INC. LINERS CEM 90.00 

LINERS CEM 90.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 180.00 

74278 REICH=DT & EDE ENG, INC CONST-SR20 WIDENING SK COUNTY 20,294.49 

WARRANT TOTAL 20,294.49 

74279 RICK'S REFRIGERATION INC. SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SAN 122.27 

WARRANT TOTAL 122.27 

74280 ROHLINGER ENTERPRISES, INC. MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS SWR 20.88 

WARRANT TOTAL 20.88 

74281 GAMIER BAY CONSTRUCTION INC. TRAINING FACILITIES FD 1,076.59 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,076.59 

74262 SALYER, DOUGLAS RETIRED MEDICAL pp 257.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 257.00 

74283 SCIENTIFIC SUPPLY OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 115.17 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 27.95 

WARRANT TOTAL 147.12 

74284 SEDGWICK CMS INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE LGS 1.64 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE JUD 3.03 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE EXE 3.46 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE FIN 4.37 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE LGL .80 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE IT 2.79 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE PLN 18.21 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ENG 10.92 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE PD 352.02 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE PD 10.07 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE FD 233.06 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE INSP 32.05 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE PK 108.03 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) 	 PAGE 

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE CEM 30.D4 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ST 77.08 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ST .85 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE LIB 17.90 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE SWR 250.78 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE SAN 149.61 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE SWTR 72.22 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ERR 16.69 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,395.62 

74285 SEDRO-WOOLLEY AUTO PARTS OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 5.37 

OPERATING SUPPLIES CEM 3.48 

OPERATING SUPPLIES CEM 4.72 

OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 41.90 

OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 47.84 

MAINT OF GENERAL EQUIP SWR 36.94 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 9.74 

WARRANT TOTAL 149.99 

74286 SITELINES PARK & PLAYGRND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS PK 1,689.27 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,689.27 

74287 SJOSTROM LAW OFFICE MISC-FILING FEES/LIEN EXP SWR 1,518.62 

MISC-FILING FEES/LIEN EXP SAN 760.76 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWTR 421.82 

WARRANT TOTAL 2,701.20 

74288 SKAGIT 911 CONTRACTED ENHANCED 911 PD 14,567.45 

CONTRACT SVS-CNTRL DISPATCH FD 3,638.97 

WARRANT TOTAL 18,206.42 

74289 SKAGIT COUNTY AUDITOR VOTER REGISTRATION FEES LOS 6,593.67 

WARRANT TOTAL 6,593.67 

74290 SKAGIT CD CONTRACTED SERVICES 778.56 

WARRANT TOTAL 778.56 

74291 SKAGIT CO. DISTRICT COURT DISTRICT COURT SURCHARGE JUG 1,680.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,680.00 

74292 SKAGIT CO. DIST. COURT MUNICIPAL COURT PROB. JUG 800.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 800.00 

74293 SKAGIT CO. PUBLIC WORKS SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SAN 45,136.75 

WARRANT TOTAL 45,136.75 

74294 SKAGIT COUNTY SHERIFF OFF PRISONERS PD 513.84 

WARRANT TOTAL 513.84 

74295 SKAGIT CO. SUPERIOR COURT UNAPPLIED CASH - SUSPENSE 1,436.42 

WARRANT TOTAL 1,436.42 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

WARRANT 

04/25/2012 	{Printed 

VENDOR NAME 

04/19/2012 	14:48) 

DESCRIPTION 

PAGE 	10 

AMOUNT 

74296 SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL PK 33.31 

OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL PK 45.21 

REPAIR/MT-METCALF BALL PARK PK 59.50 

OPERATING SUPPLIES-PROPANE ST 16.11 

TRAIL CONSTRUCTION 398.94 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 129.68 

WARRANT TOTAL 682.75 

74297 SKAGIT REGIONAL CLINICS PROF SERVICE-MEDICAL EXAMS FD 110.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 110.00 

74298 SKAGIT READY MIX, 	INC. ENHANCEMENT PROJECT PK 129.84 

WARRANT TOTAL 129.84 

74299 SKAGIT SOILS RECYCLING FEE - YARD WASTE SAN 633.15 

WARRANT TOTAL 633.15 

74300 SKAGIT PUBLISHING LEGAL PUBLICATIONS LGS 50.00 

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS LGS 50.00 

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS LGS 50.00 

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS LGS 45.00 

ADVERTISING/LEGAL PUBLIC PLN 140.00 

ADVERTISING/LEGAL PUBLIC PLN 85.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 420.00 

74301 SORSEAL, 	HEATHER UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES PD 136.76 

WARRANT TOTAL 136.76 

74302 ANDERSON, ROGER UNIFORM CLEANING PD 82.12 

UNIFORM CLEANING PD 129.84 

MISC-LAUNDRY FD 19.48 

WARRANT TOTAL 231.44 

74303 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE SUPPLIES FIN 60.11 

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 101.00 

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 85.77 

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 71.87 

OFFICE SUPPLIES FD 259.66 

OFFICE SUPPLIES FD 79.79 

WARRANT TOTAL 658.20 

74304 STEPHENSON, RETA SUPPLIES EXE 105.24 

WARRANT TOTAL 105.24 

74305 STILES & STILES MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE JUD 2,728.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CIV 50.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 2,778.00 

74306 SUPERMEDIA LLC BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 66.44 

WARRANT TOTAL 66.44 

74307 TERRE-SOURCE LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SAN 525.00 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:48( 	 PAGE 	11 

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION 

WARRANT TOTAL 

AMOUNT 

525.00 

74308 TIERNEY & BLAKNEY, PC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SWR 2,209.60 

WARRANT TOTAL 2,209.60  

74309 TIGERDIRECT INC. NETWORK HARDWARE IT 86.95 

WARRANT TOTAL 86.95 

74310 TRUE VALUE OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 15.14 

OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 23.24 

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP FD 42.50 

REpAiRs/mAINT-DORM FD 12.97 

OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL PK 9.73 

OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL PK 17.29 

OPERATING SUP - LIBRARY PK 14.90 

OPERATING SUP - MEMORIAL PARK 15.14 

OPERATING SUP 	HAMMER SQ PK 9.19 

OPERATING SUP - HAMMER SQ PK 7.02 

OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 69.22 

SUPPLIES - KENNEL 19.98 

STRUCTURE KENNEL 9.67 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 100.02 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 5.94 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 7.74 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 18.38 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 123.32 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 11.89 

WARRANT TOTAL 533.28 

74311 USBORNE BOOKS AND MORE BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 256.81 

WARRANT TOTAL 256.81 

74312 US BANK -- PURCHASE CARDS TRAVEL LOS 119.56- 

SUPPLIES EKE 173.12 

MEALS/TRAVEL EXE 36.00 

MEALS/TRAVEL EXE 12.00 

SUPPLIES FIN 94.68 

TRAVEL ENG 15.63 

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 44.91 

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 37.68 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 574.31 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 25.37 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 95.90 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 56.75- 

RERAIRMAINT-GARAGE FD 574.30 

REPAIR/MAINT-GARAGE FD 56.76- 

TRAVEL/MEALS INSP 377.00 

TRAVEL/MEALS INSP 18.56 

MISC-TUITION/REGISTRATION :NSF 120.00 

TRAVEL ST 30.04 

TRAVEL ST 30.54 

MISC-TUITION/REGISTRATION ST 20.02 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) 	 PAGE 	12 

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION 

SUPPLIES 

SUPPLIES 

POSTAGE 

LIB 

LIB 

LIB 

AMOUNT 

54.89 

80.05 

99.00 

TRAVEL LIB 36.00 

BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 74.79 

BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIE 198.50 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 206.25 

MEALS/TRAVEL SWR 27.72 

MEALS/TRAVEL SWR 24.83 

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP SAN 204.31 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 112.30 

WARRANT TOTAL 3,165.83 

74313 UPSTART SUMMER READ PROGRAM LIB 195.90 

WARRANT TOTAL 195.90 

74314 UTIL UNDERGROUND LOC CTR OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 59.45 

WARRANT TOTAL 59.45 

74315 VALLEY AUTO SUPPLY REPAIR & MAINTENANCE CS 7.12 

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE CS 89.69- 

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP FD 1.94 

MA/NT OF GENERAL EQUIP SWR 24.96 

MAINT OF GENERAL EQUIP SWR 29.74 

SMALL TOOLS & MINOR EQUIP SWR 9.39 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 17.27 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 16.29 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 5.18 

WARRANT TOTAL 22.20 

74316 VIRCO INC. MACHINERY/EQUIP-COMM CTR PK 5,571.22 

WARRANT TOTAL 5,571.22 

74317 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC. AUTO FUEL/DIESEL PK 17.40 

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL CEM 102.67 

WARRANT TOTAL 120.07 

74318 WA STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE TUITION/REGISTRATION PD 600.00 

TUITION/REGISTRATION PD 150.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 750.00 

74319 WA STATE DEPT OF L & I INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE JUD 11.82 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE PD 143.54 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE PD 535.62 

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE PD 148.20 

WARRANT TOTAL 839.18 

74320 WA ST DEPT OF PROF LICEN INTERGOV SVC-GUN PERMITS PD 72.00 

INTERGOV SVC-GUN PERMITS PD 72.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 144.00 

74321 WA ST DEPT OF RETIREMENT SOCIAL SECURITY PD 25.90 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) 	 PAGE 	13 

WARRANT 

74322 

VENDOR NAME 

WA STATE DEPT OF REVENUE 

DESCRIPTION 

WARRANT TOTAL 

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 

AMOUNT 

25.90 

15.76 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 54.38 

OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 7.22 

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS PK 53.55 

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS CEM 473.60 

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP ST 117.34 

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS LIB 12.60 

ROOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 11.15 

MAINTENANCE OF LINES SWR 141.45 

MAINT OF GENERAL EQUIP SWR 665.65 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SWR 114.80 

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS SWR 5,426.94 

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP SAN 6.62 

TAXES & ASSESSMENTS SAN 5,679.29 

WARRANT TOTAL 12,780.35 

74323 WA ASPHALT PAVEMENT ASSOC. TUITION/REGISTRATION ENG 65.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 65.00 

74324 WASHINGTON STATE PATROL INTERGOV SVC-GUN PERMITS PD 250.25 

WARRANT TOTAL 250.25 

74325 WA ST DEPT OF ENTERPRISE SVC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PD 50.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FD 50.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PR 50.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SWR 50.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SAN 50.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 250.00 

74326 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF $KGT RECYCLING FEE - HOUSEHOLD SAN 7,467.73 

WARRANT TOTAL 7,467.73 

74327 WEST PAYMENT CTR WESTLAW SERVICES LGL 230.14 

WARRANT TOTAL 230.14 

74328 WELCH, DAVID POSTAGE PD 35.24 

WARRANT TOTAL 35.24 

74329 WOOD'S LOGGING SUPPLY INC POSTAGE FD 11.58 

REPAIR/MT-SMALL TOOLS EQUIP PK 32.05 

REPAIR/MT-SMALL TOOLS EQUIP PK 8.66 

OPERATING SUPPLIES CEM 356.05 

OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 35.60 

MAINTENANCE OF LINES SWR 58.03 

MAINT OF GENERAL EQUIP SWR 6.48 

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 11.03 

WARRANT TOTAL 519.48 

74330 WORLD BOOK DIRECT MARKET BOOKS SKAGIT COUNTY LIB 30.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 30.00 



CITY OF SET:IRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

WARRANT 

04/25/2012 

VENDOR NAME 

(Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) 

DESCRIPTION 

PAGE 	14 

AMOUNT 

74331 DUNLAP, LISA SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 70.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 70.00 

74332 C & R BOGAR CONSTRUCTION ROLLOFF FEES 45.17 

WARRANT TOTAL 45.17 

74333 CONSTANZA, MARIA T. COMMUNITY CENTER 325.00 

COMMUNITY CENTER CLEANING FEE 200.00 

WARRANT TOTAL 525.00 

RUN TOTAL 329,186.81 



CITY OF SEURO-WCOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14.48) 	 PAGE 	15 

FUND TITLE AMOUNT 

001 CURRENT EXPENSE FUND 70,708.07 

101 PARK FUND 128,256.48 

102 CEMETERY FUND 1,557.39 

103 STREET FUND 10,179.08 

104 ARTERIAL STREET FUND 20,348.08 

105 LIBRARY POND 2,349.11 

107 PARKS RESERVE FUND 129.84 

111 DOG FUND 72.55 

113 PATHS AND TRAILS FUND 398.94 

401 SEWER FUND 21,823.77 

412 SOLID WASTE FUND 69,536.48 

425 STORMWATER 2,373.91 

501 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 16.69 

621 SUSPENSE FUND 1,436.42 

TOTAL 329,186.81 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:48) 	 PAGE 	16 

DEPARTMENT AMOUNT 

001 000 011 7,020.75 

001 000 012 8,397.88 

001 000 013 415.93 

001 000 014 1,411.81 

001 000 015 2,886.79 

001 000 016 50.00 

001 000 017 219.40 

001 000 018 224.94 

001 000 019 7,703.14 

001 000 020 622.64 

001 000 021 31,989.73 

001 000 022 8,899.80 

001 000 024 865.26 

FUND CURRENT EXPENSE FUND 70,708.07 

101 000 000 525.00 

101 	000 	076 127,731.48 

FUND PARK FUND 128,256.48 

102 000 036 1,557.39 

FUND CEMETERY FUND 1,557.39 

103 000 042 10,179.08 

FUND STREET FUND 10,179.08 

104 000 042 20,348.08 

FUND ARTERIAL STREET FUND 20,348.08 

105 000 072 2,349.11 

FUND LIBRARY FUND 2,349.11 

107 000 076 129.84 

FUND PARKS RESERVE FUND 129.84 

111 000 021 72.55 

FUND DOG FUND 72.55 

113 	000 095 398.94 

FUND PATHS AND TRAILS FUND 398.94 

401 000 000 70.00 

401 000 035 21,753.77 

FUND SEWER FUND 21,823.77 

412 000 000 45.17 

412 000 037 69,491.31 

FUND SOLID WASTE FUND 69,536.48 

425 000 039 2,373.91 

FUND STORMWATER 2,373.91 

501 000 047 16.69 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER 

04/25/2012 (Printed 04/19/2012 14:48} 	 PAGE 	17 

VENDOR 	VENDOR NAME 	 INVOICE NUMBER 	REFERENCE 	 INVOICE DATE DUE DATE COMMENTS 

FUND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 	 16.69 

621 000 000 	 1,436.42 

FUND SUSPENSE FUND 	 1,436.42 

TOTAL 	 329,166.81 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 2 5 2012 

00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
TENDA NO. 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

MEMO TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DATE: 

City Council and Mayor Mike Anderson 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

Approval of Amendment 1 to the 2012-2017 Six-Year Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) 

April 18, 2012 (for Council review April 24, 2012) 

ISSUE 
Shall council move to approve Amendment 1 to the 2012-2017 Six-Year Transportation 
improvement Program? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
In accordance with the requirements of RCW 35.77.010, the city adopted on July 13, 2011 
Resolution 847-11 which approves the city's 2012-2017 Six Year Transportation Improvement 
Program. Included in the 2012-2017 TIP were the following projects: 

• SR20/Cook Rd. intersection Improvements — SR20 Corridor Project Phase 1A 
$1,912,000 

• SR9, SR20 to Cook Road Arterial Extension — SR20 Corridor Project Phase 1 B 
$1,340,000 

• Cook Road to F&S Grade Road Connector — SR20 Corridor Project Phase 1C 
$1,000,000 

• Total all three phases $4,252,000 

With approval of $625,000 in STP(R) federal funds by the Skagit MPO, and the previously 
approved $100,000 in GMA Impact Fee funds by the city, we are ready to begin the design 
phase for the projects. The attached TIP Amendment 1 dated April 18, 2012 combines the 
above three phases into one project titled SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project, 
with a design phase budget of $722,543. 

The budget is based on the $625,000 STP(R) funds plus local match of $97,543. The actual 
design will be somewhat less, but the PE phase also includes portions of the Right of Way work 
and the environmental work. The updated overall estimate for the project is $5,650,805, 
including an estimated $1,028,800 in right of way donations. This will change as the design 
work proceeds. 

Approval of the Amendment is required at both the City and MPO levels. The MPO acted to 
approve the Amendment at their August 18, 2012 meeting, subject to Sedro-Woolley approval. 

MOTION: 

Move to approve Amendment 1 to the 2012-2017 Six-Year Transportation Improvement 
Program. 

2012-4-24 Amendment 1 2012-2017 TIP.doc 	 4/18/2012 3:51:35 PM 



S State  Fund  Code  

Local Funds  State  Funds  Federal Funds  

Project Tota ls  

Expenditure  Schedule  

a) 	
i_') - 

7
0

 	
1j. 'cci)7.• 2' 

C 	
0 ._ 0 

_
 	

I- IL _t 
>- 

—
 •E

 
er) I-

 
cb 

CO 

a
) 	

az 
a> 

7
 	

..z 
Fr 

 

o
 	

a 
D

 	
ct re 8-  

z
 

a- 

u_ 0 

2012 to  2015  

Washington  State  S.  T.  I.  P.  

(Project  Funds  to  Nearest  Dollar)  

MPO/RTPO:  SMPO 

County :  Skagit  

Agency:  Sedro  Woolley  

April 18,  2012 

Cst 

Local Funds  

SR20 MP 65.17  

-.7) 

c 
0

  
O

 
a
 

C
 C

 
 

7, 
E1 

-. =
 

O
 - . 

ri,  Y' (.' 
45  r9

 ,I,  
ara 

-t
  .... >

 
• . -  2

 
ti 63  

-
 

D
 
0
 .:( 

i_ pc  
in

 , 2
 

c
 0

  
O

 0
 u

i 
0
 0

 ..x 
-51 To 

04 
ct a

 a
) 

-a 	
co .2 7 

0
 	

in 
o
 

ru
 li 

6. 
cc 

.t; nil.7'w  t 
o

 
0°
  
q

 
 

en -5 6
 

li,,i, 	
0, 

.. 2,  
c„, .- 

CD 
0
 =

 

>- 
0

 
o

 
o
 o

r c 	
tri 

'6
  

-
D
 

 
0

 

cv 
co 

J
%

2
  

• 
c (3 

c
 

11 al .—
 

3
 c

 

'
 

c •
 
-

0
 

g
 

— 
 0

 
§
r 0

 

0
 

a
l 	

Lo I-0 >
 

co 
a
 

>
 

a
 0

  c
 

co  
a-
 

(u 0n 	
a
 o

  0
 

 (s.i .-..1
'
.
 Crl 

I: 	
C

 
U

) ,t -- 
cn 

O
 

ca  =
 

s—
 	

-0
 

E
 C
 (13 a) 

	

co Et 2 	
412

 " 
0
 

	

'a
' t ° 	

ra
 o

 
CV 

	

0
 U

) 	
0
 

 
0.1 	

,-• (..) 0
6
 

 
0

 	
CO 

Q, LI_ 	
CD 

	

C
 - -'- 0

 	
Zr) 

(.0 	
0
 _

C
 

"f5, -C
 -0

 
C

 E
 op 

-c
o
 

      oE
  

a
  
o
    
▪
 w

 

o
s
 
f
 
c
 

o
C

0
o
 c

 
5a 

 

co
 a

 2
 .C.  

12.:1
 2

 T
u

. E
  

▪
 

u
) . E

 2
 

o
 

a.) = 
o

 E Lc od 
O

 2
 ''' 0

  
.., ,_ 

T
     g

    2 , 
o

 
C

6
b
a
  

F F 

Agency  Totals  for  Sedro  Woolley  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 2 5 2012 

7;00 PM. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA No 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

MEMO TO: City Council and Mayor Mike Anderson 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	Approval of Local Agency Federal Aid Project Prospectus and Agreement 
for the SR201Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project 

DATE: 	April 18, 2012 (for Council review April 24, 2012) 

ISSUE 
Shall council move to authorize Mayor Anderson to sign the Local Agency Federal Aid Project 
Prospectus and Local Agency Agreement for the SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension 
Project? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
By separate memorandum on this council agenda, council will act to approve Amendment 1 to 
the 2012-2017 TIP, authorizing design phase funding for the SR20/Cook Road Realignment and 
Extension Project. 

The attached Local Agency Prospectus and Local Agency Agreement documents are the next 
step in obligating the federal funds for the project. 

MOTION: 

Move to authorize Mayor Anderson to sign the Local Agency Federal Aid Project 
Prospectus and Local Agency Agreement for the SR20/Cook Road Realignment and 
Extension Project. 

2012-4-24 SR2O-Cook LA Prospectus and Agreernentdoc 	 418/2012 3:54:26 PM 



4111Ib- 

W" Washington State 
Ai; Department of Transportation 

Local Agency Federal Aid 
Project Prospectus 

Date 4/13/2012 
Prefix Route ( 	) 

Central Contractor 
Registration Exp.Date 4/3/2013 

Federal Aid 
Project Number SR20 

Federal Employer 
Tax ID Number , 91-6001361 

Local Agency 
Project Number  2013-PW-0 1 

( WSDOT \ 
Use Only/ 

Agency 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Federal Program Title 

el 20.205 	❑ Other 
Project Title  

Start Latitude 	48.504905 	, Start Longitude -122.247233 
SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project 

End Latitude 	48.509042 	End Longitude 	-122.243993  

Project Termini From -- To 	 Nearest City Name 	 ! Project Zip Code 
SR 9 South 	 F&S Grade Road 	I Sedro-Woolley 	 , 98284 
From: 	To: 	1 Length of Project 
MP 64.81 	MP 65.17 	0.36 miles 

Award Type 
@ Local 	❑ Local Forces 	El State 	❑ Railroad 

Federal Agency 	 I City Number 

■ FHWA 	❑ Others 	 1 	1150 
County Number 	County Name 
29 	 I Skagit 

WSDOT Region 
Northwest Region 

Congressional District 
2 

Legislative Districts 
40 

Urban Area Number 
30 

I  TMA / MPO / RTPO 
SCOG 

Phase 
Total 

Estimated Cost 
(Nearest Hundred Dollar) 

Local Agency 
Funding 

(Nearest Hundred Dollar) 

Federal Funds 

(Nearest Hundred Dollar) 

Phase Start 
Date 

Month 	Year 

P.E. $722,543 $97,543 i 	 $625,000 05/2012 

RAN 

Const. I 

Total $722,543 	I 	 $97,543 $625,000 

Description of Existing Facility (Existing Design and Present Condition) 
Roadway Width 	 I Number of Lanes 
32' 	 12-3 

SR20 from MP 64.81 to MP 65.17 varies from 60' to 80' ROW with two to three lanes, and signalized intersections at MP 64.81 
SR9 South and MP 64.90 Cook/Ferry and a one way stop at MP 65.17 F&S Grade Road. Cook Road is a two lane roadway with 
a center turn lane with 60' to 80' ROW and presently intersecting SR20 at MP64.90 at a signalized intersection opposite Ferry 
Street. Washington Street is a two lane city street with 80' ROW. An existing unnamed access road runs north to northeast from 
SR20 at MP64.81 opposite SR9 South to Cook Road on WSDOT ROW. Unopened WSDOT ROW varying in width from 110' 
to 230' wide exists from Cook Road to F&S Grade Road between Hawthorn and SR20. 

Description of Proposed Work 
Description of Proposed Work (Attach additional sheet(s) if necessary) 

Realign Cook Road via Washingron Street alignment to SR20 MP 65.05 with a new Roundabout intersection at SR20; Construct 
arterial extension of SR9 from SR20 MP 64.81 north to Cook Road using existing WSDOT ROW with a new Roundabout 
intersection at Cook Road, Construct new collector aretrial from Cook Road to F&S Grade Road using existing WSDOT ROW; 
including drainage, curbs, sidewalks, HMA, pavement markings & illumination. 

Local Agency Contact Person 
Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

Title 	 I Phone 
Director of Public Works 	 1 360-855-9933 

Mailing Address 
325 Metcalf Street 

City 	 State 
Sedro-Woolley 	 I 	WA 

, Zip Code 
98284 

By 

Project Prospectus Approval 	 Approving Authority  

Title 	 Date 

DOT Form 140-101 EF 
Revised 11/10 

• Previous Editions Obsolete • Page 1 of 3 



Agency 
	

Project Title 
	

Date 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

	
SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension 

	
4/13/2012 

Type of Proposed Work 
Project Type (Check all that Apply) Roadway Width 

32' to 34' 

I Number of Lanes 

2 to 3 
Q New Construction 	❑ Path / Trail 	 • 3-R 

ID Reconstruction 	1:1 Pedestrian / Facilities 	❑ 2-R 

❑ Railroad 	 • Parking 	 • Other 

❑ Bridge 

Geometric Design Data 
Description Through Route Crossroad 

Federal 
Functional 

Classification 

• Principal Arterial • Principal Arterial 

Urban 	el Minor Arterial IN Minor Arterial Urban 
• Collector Ei Collector 

D Major Collector 0 Major Collector 

• Rural 	D Minor Collector ❑ Rural 	• Minor Collector 
• Access Street/Road • Access Street/Road 

Terrain El Flat 	I=1 Roll 	0 Mountain 1E1 Flat 	• Roll 	• Mountain 
Posted Speed 35 35 
Design Speed 35 35 
Existing ADT 20,000  

25.700 
11 500 

Design Year ADT 14,550 
Design Year 2035 2035 
Design Hourly Volume (DHV) 2,120 1.455 

Performance of Work 
Preliminary Engineering Will Be Performed By 

David Evans & Associates, Inc. 

Others 

100 % 

Agency 

Construction Will Be Performed By 

Bid Contractor 

Contract 

100 % 

Agency 

Environmental Classification 

LI Final IN Preliminary 

❑ Class I - Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) 

❑ Project involves NEPA/SEPA Section 404 
Interagency Agreement 

E Class III - Environmental Assessment (EA) 

❑ Project involves NEPA/SEPA Section 404 
Interagency Agreement 

El Class II - Categorically Excluded (CE) 

El Projects Requiring Documentation 
(Documented CE) 

Environmental Considerations 

Possible wetlands requiring delineation and possible mitigation on the north leg of the new city arterial between Cook Road and 
F&S Grade Road. Possible sound issues requiring a Noise Study with the same roadway segment due to the proximity of a 
residential neighborhood. Possible 4f issues with existing city Bingham Park and Teserik Baseball Field. Section 106 Report for 
Cultural and Historic Resources. A Biological Assessment will be prepared for the preferred alternative. An Environmental 
Justice Survey will be conducted. An Environmental Classification Summary will be completed. Environmental permits 
including Section 401 and 404 will be applied for. A NPDES Stormwater Permit will likely be required. 

DOT Form 140-101 EF 
Revised 11110 

Page 2 of 3 



Agency 
	

Project Title 
	

Date 
City of Sedro-Woolley 	 ; SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension 

	
4/13/2012 

Right of Way 

❑ No Right of Way Required 
* All construction required by the 

contract can be accomplished 
within the existing right of way. 

Z Right of Way Required 

Z No Relocation 

 

❑ Relocation Required 

   

Description of Utility Relocation or Adjustments and Existing Major Structures Involved in the Project 

Existing Puget Sound Energy Transmission line will require relocation on the realigned section of Cook Road 
(existing Washington Street). Existing Cascade Natural Gas regulator station located near SR20 MP 64.05, 40' RT 
may require relocation. 

FAA Involvement 

Is any airport located within 3.2 kilometers (2 miles) of the proposed project? 
	

❑ Yes El No 

Remarks 

This project has been reviewed by the legislative body of the administration agency or agencies, or it's designee, and 
is not inconsistent with the agency's comprehensive plan for community development. 

Agency City of Sedro-Woolley  

By 
Mayor/Chairperson 

DOT Form 140-101 EF 
Revised 11/10 

Page 3 of 3 ♦ Previous Editions Obsolete • 

Date 



on   

VA Department of Tr

e  

ansportation Local Agency Agreement 

Agency City of Sedro-Woolley  

Address 325 Metcalf Street  

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

CFDA No. 20.205 
(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance) 

Project No. 

Agreement No. 
For OSC WSDOT Use Only 

The Local Agency having complied, or hereby agreeing to comply, with the terms and conditions set forth in (1) Title 23, U.S. Code Highways, (2) 
the regulations issued pursuant thereto, (3) Office of Management and Budget Circulars A-102, A-87 and A-133, (4) the policies and procedures 
promulgated by the Washington State Department of Transportation, and (5) the federal aid project agreement entered into between the State and 
Federal Government, relative to the above project, the Washington State Department of Transportation will authorize the Local Agency to proceed on 
the project by a separate notification. Federal funds which are to be obligated for the project may not exceed the amount shown herein on line r, 
column 3, without written authority by the State, subject to the approval of the Federal Highway Administration. All project costs not reimbursed by 
the Federal Government shall be the responsibility of the Local Agency. 

Project Description 

Name SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project 
	

Length 0.36 miles 

Termini SR20 MP 64.81 to SR20 MP 65.17 

Description of Work 

Realign Cook Road via Washingron Street alignment to SR20 MP 65.05 with a new Roundabout intersection at SR20; 
Construct arterial extension of SR9 from SR20 MP 64.81 north to Cook Road using existing WSDOT ROW with a new 
Roundabout intersection at Cook Road, Construct new collector aretrial from Cook Road to F&S Grade Road using 
existing WSDOT ROW; including drainage, curbs, sidewalks, HMA, pavement markings & illumination. 

Type of Work 

Estimate of Funding 
(1) 

Estimated Total 
Project Funds 	_ 

(2) 
Estimated Agency 

Funds 

(3) 
Estimated 

Federal Funds 

PE 	 a. Agency 32,654.00 4,408.00 28,246.00 
86.5 	% 	b. Other 	Consultant 669,889.00 90 435.00 579,454.00 

c. Other 
Federal Aid 
Participation 	d. State 20,000.00 2,700.00 17,300.00 

Ratio for PE 	e. Total PE Cost Estimate (a-FO-Fo÷d) 722,543.00 97,543.00 625,000.00 
Right of Way 	f. Agency 

% 	g. Other 	Consultant 
h. Other 	SeaLand Corporation Donation 

Federal Aid 
Participation 	i. State  
Ratio for RW 	j. Total RIW Cost Estimate (f+g+h+i) 
Construction 	k. Contract 

I. Other 	Consultant CE _ 
m. Other Wetland Mitigation 

n. Other 	Utility Relocation & Street 
. 	% 	o. Agency 

Federal Aid 
Participation 	p. State 

Ratio for CN 	q. Total CN Cost Estimate (k+l+m+n+o+p) 

r. Total Project Cost Estimate (e+j+q) 722,543.00 	97,543.00 625,000.00 

Agency Official 

By 	  

Title Mayor  

Washington State Department of Transportation 

By 

Director of Highways and Local Programs 

Date Executed 

DOT Form 140-039 EF 
Revised 05109 



Construction Method of Financing 	(Check Method Selected) 

State Ad and Award 

❑ Method A - Advance Payment - Agency Share of total construction cost (based on contract award) 

❑ Method B - Withhold from gas tax the Agency's share of total construction cost (line 4, column 2) in the amount of 

	  at $ 	  per month for 	  months. 

Local Force or Local Ad and Award 

El Method C - Aaencv cost incurred with partial reimbursement 

The Local Agency further stipulates that pursuant to said Title 23, regulations and policies and procedures, and as 
a condition to payment of the federal funds obligated, it accepts and will comply with the applicable provisions set 
forth below. Adopted by official action on 

, Resolution/Ordinance No. 

Provisions 

I. Scope of Work 
The Agency shall provide all the work, labor, materials, and services 

necessary to perform the project which is described and set forth in detail in the 
"Project Description" and "Type of Work." 

When the State acts for and on behalf of the Agency, the State shall be 
deemed an agent of the Agency and shall perform the services described and 
indicated in "Type of Work" on the face of this agreement, in accordance with 
plans and specifications as proposed by the Agency and approved by the State 
and the Federal Highway Administration. 

When the State acts for the Agency but is not subject to the right of control 
by the Agency, the State shall have the right to perform the work subject to the 
ordinary procedures of the State and Federal Highway Administration. 

II. Delegation of Authority 
The State is willing to fulfill the responsibilities to the Federal Government 

by the administration of this project. The Agency agrees that the State shall 
have the full authority to carry out this administration. The State shall review, 
process, and approve documents required for federal aid reimbursement in 
accordance with federal requirements. If the State advertises and awards the 
contract, the State will further act for the Agency in all matters concerning the 
project as requested by the Agency. If the Local Agency advertises and awards 
the project, the State shall review the work to ensure conformity with the 
approved plans and specifications. 

Ill. Project Administration 
Certain types of work and services shall be provided by the State on this 

project as requested by the Agency and described in the Type of Work above. 
In addition, the State will furnish qualified personnel for the supervision and 
inspection of the work in progress. On Local Agency advertised and awarded 
projects, the supervision and inspection shall be limited to ensuring all work is 
in conformance with approved plans, specifications, and federal aid 
requirements. The salary of such engineer or other supervisor and all other 
salaries and costs incurred by State forces upon the project will be considered a 
cost thereof. All costs related to this project incurred by employees of the State 
in the customary manner on highway payrolls and vouchers shall be charged as 
costs of the project. 

IV. Availability of Records 
All project records in support of all costs incurred and actual expenditures 

kept by the Agency are to be maintained in accordance with local government 
accounting procedures prescribed by the Washington State Auditor's Office, the 
U.S. Department of Transportation, and the Washington State Department of 
Transportation. The records shall be open to inspection by the State and Federal 
Government at all reasonable times and shall be retained and made available for 
such inspection for a period of not less than three years from the final payment 
of any federal aid funds to the Agency. Copies of said records shall be 
furnished to the State and/or Federal Government upon request. 

V. Compliance with Provisions 
The Agency shall not incur any federal aid participation costs on any 

classification of work on this project until authorized in writing by the State for 
each classification. The classifications of work for projects are:  

1. Preliminary engineering. 

2. Right of way acquisition. 

3. Project construction. 

In the event that right of way acquisition, or actual construction of the road, 
for which preliminary engineering is undertaken is not started by the closing of 
the tenth fiscal year following the fiscal year in which the agreement is 
executed, the Agency will repay to the State the sum or sums of federal funds 
paid to the Agency under the terms of this agreement (see Section IX). 

The Agency agrees that all stages of construction necessary to provide the 
initially planned complete facility within the limits of this project will conform 
to at least the minimum values set by approved statewide design standards 
applicable to this class of highways, even though such additional work is 
financed without federal aid participation. 

The Agency agrees that on federal aid highway construction projects, the 
current federal aid regulations which apply to liquidated damages relative to 
the basis of federal participation in the project cost shall be applicable in the 
event the contractor fails to complete the contract within the contract time. 

VI. Payment and Partial Reimbursement 
The total cost of the project, including all review and engineering costs and 

other expenses of the State, is to be paid by the Agency and by the Federal 
Government. Federal funding shall be in accordance with the Federal 
Transportation Act, as amended, and Office of Management and Budget 
circulars A-102, A-87 and A-133. The State shall not be ultimately responsible 
for any of the costs of the project. The Agency shall be ultimately responsible 
for all costs associated with the project which are not reimbursed by the 
Federal Government. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as a 
promise by the State as to the amount or nature of federal participation in this 
project. 

The Agency shall bill the state for federal aid project costs incurred in 
conformity with applicable federal and state laws. The agency shall minimize 
the time elapsed between receipt of federal aid funds and subsequent payment 
of incurred costs. Expenditures by the Local Agency for maintenance, general 
administration, supervision, and other overhead shall not be eligible for federal 
participation unless a current indirect cost plan has been prepared in 
accordance with the regulations outlined in the federal Office of Management 
& Budget (OMB) circular A-87, and retained for audit. 

The State will pay for State incurred costs on the project. Following 
payment, the State shall bill the Federal Government for reimbursement of 
those costs eligible for federal participation to the extent that such costs are 
attributable and properly allocable to this project. The State shall bill the 
Agency for that portion of State costs which were not reimbursed by the 
Federal Government (see Section IX). 

I. Project Construction Costs 

Project construction financing will be accomplished by one of the three 
methods as indicated in this agreement. 

DOT Form 140-039 EF 
Revised 05/09 2 



Method A — The Agency will place with the State, within (20) days after the 
execution of the construction contract, an advance in the amount of the 
Agency's share of the total construction cost based on the contract award. The 
State will notify the Agency of the exact amount to be deposited with the State. 
The State will pay all costs incurred under the contract upon presentation of 
progress billings from the contractor. Following such payments, the State will 
submit a billing to the Federal Government for the federal aid participation 
share of the cost. When the project is substantially completed and final actual 
costs of the project can be determined, the State will present the Agency with a 
final billing showing the amount due the State or the amount due the Agency. 
This billing will be cleared by either a payment from the Agency to the State or 
by a refund from the State to the Agency. 

Method B — The Agency's share of the total construction cost as shown on 
the face of this agreement shall be withheld from its monthly fuel tax 
allotments. The face of this agreement establishes the months in which the 
withholding shall take place and the exact amount to be withheld each month. 
The extent of withholding will be confirmed by letter from the State at the time 
of contract award. Upon receipt of progress billings from the contractor, the 
State will submit such billings to the Federal Government for payment of its 
participating portion of such billings. 

Method C — The Agency may submit vouchers to the State in the format 
prescribed by the State, in duplicate, not more than once per month for those 
costs eligible for Federal participation to the extent that such costs are directly 
attributable and properly allocable to this project. Expenditures by the Local 
Agency for maintenance, general administration, supervision, and other 
overhead shall not be eligible for Federal participation unless claimed under a 
previously approved indirect cost plan. 

The State shall reimburse the Agency for the Federal share of eligible project 
costs up to the amount shown on the face of this agreement. At the time of 
audit, the Agency will provide documentation of all costs incurred on the 
project. 

The State shall bill the Agency for all costs incurred by the State relative to 
the project. The State shall also bill the Agency for the federal funds paid by the 
State to the Agency for project costs which are subsequently determined to be 
ineligible for federal participation (see Section IX). 

VII. Audit of Federal Consultant Contracts 
The Agency, if services of a consultant are required, shall be responsible for 

audit of the consultant's records to determine eligible federal aid costs on the 
project. The report of said audit shall be in the Agency's files and made 
available to the State and the Federal Government. 

An audit shall be conducted by the WSDOT Internal Audit Office in 
accordance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards as issued 
by the United States General Accounting Office by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; WSDOT Manual M 27-50, Consultant Authorization, 
Selection, and Agreement Administration; memoranda of understanding 
between WSDOT and FHWA; and Office of Management and Budget Circular 
A-133. 

If upon audit it is found that overpayment or participation of federal money 
in ineligible items of cost has occurred, the Agency shall reimburse the State for 
the amount of such overpayment or excess participation (see Section IX). 

VIII. Single Audit Act 
The Agency, as a subrecipient of federal funds, shall adhere to the federal 

Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 as well as all 
applicable federal and state statutes and regulations. A subrecipient who 
expends $500,000 or more in federal awards from all sources during a given 
fiscal year shall have a single or program-specific audit performed for that year 
in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-I 33. Upon conclusion of 
the A-133 audit, the Agency shall be responsible for ensuring that a copy of the 
report is transmitted promptly to the State. 

IX. Payment of Billing 
The Agency agrees that if payment or arrangement for payment of any of the 

State's billing relative to the project (e.g., State force work, project cancellation, 
overpayment, cost ineligible for federal participation, etc.) is not made to the 
State within 45 days after the Agency has been billed, the State shall effect 
reimbursement of the total sum due from the regular monthly fuel tax 
allotments to the Agency from the Motor Vehicle Fund. No additional Federal 
project funding will be approved until full payment is received unless otherwise 
directed the Director of Highways and Local Programs. 

DOT Form 140-039 EF 
Revised 05/09 	 3 

X. Traffic Control, Signing, Marking, and Roadway 
Maintenance 

The Agency will not permit any changes to be made in the provisions for 
parking regulations and traffic control on this project without prior approval of 
the State and Federal Highway Administration. The Agency will not install or 
permit to be installed any signs, signals, or markings not in conformance with 
the standards approved by the Federal Highway Administration and MUTCD. 
The Agency will, at its own expense, maintain the improvement covered by 
this agreement. 

XI. Indemnity 
The Agency shall hold the Federal Government and the State harmless from 

and shall process and defend at its own expense all claims, demands, or suits, 
whether at law or equity brought against the Agency, State, or Federal 
Government, arising from the Agency's execution, performance, or failure to 
perform any of the provisions of this agreement, or of any other agreement or 
contract connected with this agreement, or arising by reason of the 
participation of the State or Federal Government in the project, PROVIDED, 
nothing herein shall require the Agency to reimburse the State or the Federal 
Government for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage to 
property caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the Federal 
Government or the State. 

XII. Nondiscrimination Provision 

No liability shall attach to the State or Federal Government except as 
expressly provided herein. 

The Agency shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, or sex in the award and performance of any USDOT-assisted contract 
and/or agreement or in the administration of its DBE program or the 
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The Agency shall take all necessary and 
reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the 
award and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts and agreements. The 
WSDOT's DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by 
USDOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of 
this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be 
treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the Agency of its 
failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose 
sanctions as provided for under Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the 
matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil 
Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

The Agency hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be 
incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, 
as defined in the rules and regulations of the Secretary of Labor in 41 CFR 
Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the 
Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government 
pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee or understanding 
pursuant to any federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, 
or guarantee, the required contract provisions for Federal-Aid Contracts 
(FHWA 1273), located in Chapter 44 of the Local Agency Guidelines. 

The Agency further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal 
opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it 
participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, that if the 
applicant so participating is a State or Local Government, the above equal 
opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality, or 
subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under 
the contract. 

The Agency also agrees: 

(I) To assist and cooperate actively with the State in obtaining the 
compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause 
and rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

(2) To furnish the State such information as it may require for the 
supervision of such compliance and that it will otherwise assist the State in the 
discharge of its primary responsibility for securing compliance. 

(3) To refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification 
subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor 
debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, government 
contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the 
Executive Order. 

(4) To carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal 
opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by 
the State, Federal Highway Administration, or the Secretary of Labor pursuant 
to Part II, subpart D of the Executive Order. 



In addition, the Agency agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these 
undertakings, the State may take any or all of the following actions: 

(a) Cancel, terminate, or suspend this agreement in whole or in part; 

(b) Refrain from extending any further assistance to the Agency under the 
program with respect to which the failure or refusal occurred until satisfactory 
assurance of future compliance has been received from the Agency; and 

(c) Refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal 
proceedings. 

XIII. Liquidated Damages 
The Agency hereby agrees that the liquidated damages provisions of 23 CFR 

Part 635, Subpart 127, as supplemented, relative to the amount of Federal 
participation in the project cost, shall be applicable in the event the contractor 
fails to complete the contract within the contract time. Failure to include 
liquidated damages provision will not relieve the Agency from reduction of 
federal participation in accordance with this paragraph. 

XIV. Termination for Public Convenience 
The Secretary of the Washington State Department of Transportation may 

terminate the contract in whole, or from time to time in part, whenever: 

(1) The requisite federal funding becomes unavailable through failure of 
appropriation or otherwise. 

(2) The contractor is prevented from proceeding with the work as a direct 
result of an Executive Order of the President with respect to the prosecution of 
war or in the interest of national defense, or an Executive Order of the President 
or Governor of the State with respect to the preservation of energy resources. 

(3) The contractor is prevented from proceeding with the work by reason of 
a preliminary, special, or permanent restraining order of a court of competent 
jurisdiction where the issuance of such order is primarily caused by the acts or 
omissions of persons or agencies other than the contractor. 

(4) The Secretary determines that such termination is in the best interests of 
the State. 

XV. Venue for Claims and/or Causes of Action 

For the convenience of the parties to this contract, it is agreed that any 
claims and/or causes of action which the Local Agency has against the State of 
Washington, growing out of this contract or the project with which it is 
concerned, shall be brought only in the Superior Court for Thurston County. 

XVI. Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use 
of Federal Funds for Lobbying 

The approving authority certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and 
belief, that: 

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on 
behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress 
in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any 
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will 
be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any federal agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this 
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit the Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be 
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including 
subgrants, and contracts and subcontracts under grants, subgrants, loans, and 
cooperative agreements) which exceed $100,000, and that all such 
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this 
certification as a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the 
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

Additional Provisions 

DOT Form 140.039 EF 
Revised 05109 	 4 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMENT 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

APR 2 5 2012 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CVMBERS 
AGENDA NO 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY REGULAR MEETING 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360)855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

APR 2 5 2012 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CIBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Mike Anderson 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	 Professional Services Agreement No. 2012-PS-14 for 
Design Phase Services for the SR20/Cook Road Realignment and 
Extension Project 
David Evans & Associates, Inc. 

DATE: 	April 19, 2012 (for Council action April 24, 2012) 

ISSUE 
Should Mayor Anderson execute the attached Professional Services Agreement No. 2012-PS-14 with 
David Evans & Associates, Inc. of Bellevue, WA to provide design phase engineering services for the 
SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project in the amount of $669,889, subject to WSDOT 
approval of the Local Agency Federal Aid Project Prospectus, Local Agency Agreement, and obligation of 
funds? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
Attached is the proposed Professional Services agreement 2012-PS-14 (Exhibits F through M-4 have 
been excluded from the packet to reduce paperwork, but are available at Public Works on request). This 
agreement is for design phase services for the SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project. 
David Evans & Associates will provide design topographic surveying, Legal Descriptions for Right of Way 
Donations, Geotechnical Survey and Pavement Design, Roundabout conceptual Design Approval from 
WSDOT, Roundabout Geometric Design Approval from WSDOT, Traffic Analysis Report and Vissim 
Traffic Simulation, Design Documentation, Channelization Plan, Stormwater Report, Bid Documents, 
NEPA Environmental documenting and permitting, utility coordination and Bid support under the 
proposed agreement, as noted in the Exhibit A-1 Scope of Work. The breakdown of the cost estimate is 
shown on Exhibit E-1. The work will be done on a cost not to exceed basis. The Management Reserve 
Fund is shown as budget for approved scope changes, and will only be utilized if additional funds become 
available. 

ANALYSIS 

Estimated Construction Cost including Contingency $3,678,021 

Design Phase Services under this agreement 
Topographic Surveying & Legal Descriptions 
Geotechnical Report and Pavement Design 
Subtotal Design Phase 
Environmental Services 
Total DEA Agreement 
Estimated WSDOT CA Review Services 
Estimated City Administration Design Phase 
Total Design Phase Budget 

Estimated Construction Phase Services (future) 
Estimated ROW Services, Mitigation & Administration 
Estimated value of ROW donations 
Total Project Budget 

$ 522,442 
$ 45,240 
$ 30,017 
$ 597,669 
$ 72,190 
$ 669,889 
$ 20,000 
$ 32,654 
$ 722,543 

$ 367,802 
$ 173,392 
$1,054,560 
$6,253,318 

14.2% of CN 
1.2% of CN 
0.8% of CN 

16.3% of CN 
2.0% of CN 

18.2% of CN 

19.6% of CN 

10.0% of CN 

2012-4-24 PS Agr 2012-PS-01 DEA PE Phase SR2O-Cook Realignment Project.dae 
	

4/20/2012 8:30:07 AM 



Estimated Revenue 
On approval of the Local Agency Prospectus and Local Agency Agreement by WSDOT and FHWA, we 
will have the following funding in place: 

STP(R) federal funds through SCOT $625,000 
Local Match from the GMA Impact Fee Fund $ 97,543 
TOTAL DESIGN PHASE FUNDING $722,543 

Construction Phase Funding is not secured at this point. We anticipate submitting an FY2013 Urban 
Program application to the Transportation Improvement Board due on August 24, 2012. The design 
phase and right of way donations will provide match for construction phase funding. 

TIB limits use of their funding for the combination of Design Engineering (including special studies) and 
Construction Engineering to 30% of the Construction contract cost. We have negotiated with DEA to 
remain within that parameter, based on the current construction estimate. This construction estimate was 
originally prepared for the FY2012 TIB program, and has been updated to account for asphalt price 
increases and signal work not in the previous scope. There will no doubt be scope changes that will 
require additional design and construction management. These will be handled on a case by case basis. 

MOTION: 

Move to authorize Mayor Anderson to execute the attached Professional Services Agreement No 
2012-PS-14 with David Evans & Associates, Inc. of Bellevue, WA to provide design phase 
engineering services for the SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project in the amount of 
$669,889, subject to WSDOT approval of the Local Agency Federal Aid Prospectus, Local Agency 
Agreement, and obligation of funds. 

2012-4-24 PS Agr 2012-PS-01 DEA PE Phase SR2O-Cook Realignment Project.doe 	 4/20/2012 8:30:07 AM 



Local Agency 
Standard Consultant 

Agreement 

Consultant/Address/Telephone 

David Evans and Associates, Inc. 

415 - 118th Avenue SE 
Bellevue, WA 98005 
(425) 519-6500 

0 Architectural/Engineering Agreement 

❑ Personal Services Agreement 
Agreement Number 

Project Title And Work Description 
SR 20, Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project: 
Includes preparing a topographic base map; environmental 
documents; project design documentation; PS&E construction 
bid documents; determination of right-of-way needs; 
preparation of a right-of-way plan, parcel exhibit(s), and legal 
description(s) for the SR 20 Cook Rd Roundabout, the Murrow 
Street/Cook Rd Roundabout, the new north/Murrow Street 
extending from SR 9 to F&S Grade Rd, and the removal of the 
existing Cook Road from SR 20 to Washington Street. 

Federal Aid Number 

Agreement Type (Choose one) 

°/0 

• Lump Sum 
Lump Sum Amount $ 

CI Cost Plus Fixed Fee 

Overhead Progress Payment Rate 
DBE Participation  Overhead Cost Method 

0 Actual Cost 

❑ Actual Cost Not To Exceed % 

• Yes 	0 No  

Federal ID Number or Social Security Number 

93-066-1195 
E4 Fixed Overhead Rate 	175.13 % Do you require a 1099 for IRS? 

❑ Yes CI No 
Completion Date 

June 30, 2013 Fixed Fee $ 	50,893.00 

❑ Specific Rates Of Pay 

❑ Negotiated Hourly Rate 

❑ Provisional Hourly Rate 

❑ Cost Per Unit of Work 

Total Amount Authorized $ 

Management Reserve Fund $ 

Maximum Amount Payable $ 

669,889.00 

669,889.00 

Index of Exhibits (Check all that apply): 

El Exhibit A-1 Scope of Work 
1=1 Exhibit A-2 Task Order Agreement 
O Exhibit 8-1 DBE Utilization Certification 
El Exhibit C Electronic Exchange of Data 
El Exhibit D-1 Payment - Lump Sum 
IZI Exhibit D-2 Payment - Cost Plus 
O Exhibit D-3 Payment - Hourly Rate 
O Exhibit D-4 Payment - Provisional 
E] Exhibit E-1 Fee - Lump/Fixed/Unit 
0 Exhibit E-2 Fee - Specific Rates 
E3 Exhibit F Overhead Cost 
1:81 Exhibit G Subcontracted Work 
El Exhibit G-1 Subconsultant Fee 

0 Exhibit G-2 Fee-Sub Specific Rates 
Ei Exhibit G-3 Sub Overhead Cost 
El Exhibit H Title VI Assurances 
1E Exhibit I Payment Upon Termination of Agreement 
El Exhibit J Alleged Consultant Design Error Procedures 
El Exhibit K Consultant Claim Procedures 
0 Exhibit L Liability Insurance Increase 
El Exhibit M-la Consultant Certification 
IS] Exhibit M-lb Agency Official Certification 
CZ Exhibit M-2 Certification - Primary 
IZ Exhibit M-3 Lobbying Certification 
E] Exhibit M-4 Pricing Data Certification 
El App. 31.910 Supplemental Signature Page 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 	  day of 	 2012 
between the Local Agency of 

	
City of Sedro-Woolley 	, Washington, hereinafter called the "AGENCY" , 

and the above organization hereinafter called the "CONSULTANT". 

DOT Form 140-089 EF 
Revised 3/2008 

Page 1 of 8 



WITNESSETH THAT: 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY desires to accomplish the above referenced project, and 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY does not have sufficient staff to meet the required commitment and therefore deems it 
advisable and desirable to engage the assistance of a CONSULTANT to provide the necessary services for the PROJECT; 
and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT represents that he/she is in compliance with the Washington State Statutes relating to 
professional registration, if applicable, and has signified a willingness to furnish Consulting services to the AGENCY, 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance contained herein, or attached 
and incorporated and made a part hereof, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

I General Description of Work 
The work under this AGREEMENT shall consist of the above described work and services as herein defined and 
necessary to accomplish the completed work for this PROJECT. The CONSULTANT shall furnish all services, labor, and 
related equipment necessary to conduct and complete the work as designated elsewhere in this AGREEMENT. 

II Scope of Work 
The Scope of Work and projected level of effort required for this PROJECT is detailed in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
by this reference made a part of this AGREEMENT. 

Ill General Requirements 
All aspects of coordination of the work of this AGREEMENT with outside agencies, groups, or individuals shall receive 
advance approval by the AGENCY. Necessary contacts and meetings with agencies, groups, and/or individuals shall be 
coordinated through the AGENCY. The CONSULTANT shall attend coordination, progress and presentation meetings 
with the AGENCY and/or such Federal, State, Community, City or County officials, groups or individuals as may be 
requested by the AGENCY. The AGENCY will provide the CONSULTANT sufficient notice prior to meetings requiring 
CONSULTANT participation. The minimum required hours or days notice shall be agreed to between the AGENCY and 
the CONSULTANT and shown in Exhibit "A." 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare a monthly progress report, in a form approved by the AGENCY, which will outline in 
written and graphical form the various phases and the order of performance of the work in sufficient detail so that the 
progress of the work can easily be evaluated. 

The CONSULTANT, and each SUBCONSULTANT, shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or 
sex in the performance of this contract. The CONSULTANT, and each SUBCONSULTANT, shall carry out applicable 
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the 
CONSULTANT to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this AGREEMENT that may result in the 
termination of this AGREEMENT. 

Participation for Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), if required, per 49 CFR Part 26, or participation of Minority 
Business Enterprises (MBE), and Women Business Enterprises (WBE), shall be shown on the heading of this 
AGREEMENT. If D/M/WBE firms are utilized, the amounts authorized to each firm and their certification number will be 
shown on Exhibit "B" attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this AGREEMENT. If the Prime 
CONSULTANT is a DBE firm they must comply with the Commercial Useful Function (CUF) regulation outlined in the 
AGENCY'S "DBE Program Participation Plan". The mandatory DBE participation goals of the AGREEMENT are those 
established by the WSDOT'S Highway and Local Programs Project Development Engineer in consultation with the 
AGENCY. 

All Reports, PS&E materials, and other data furnished to the CONSULTANT by the AGENCY shall be returned. All 
electronic files, prepared by the CONSULTANT, must meet the requirements as outlined in Exhibit "C." 

All designs, drawings, specifications, documents, and other work products, including all electronic files, prepared by the 
CONSULTANT prior to completion or termination of this AGREEMENT are instruments of service for this PROJECT, 
and are the property of the AGENCY. Reuse by the AGENCY or by others, acting through or on behalf of the AGENCY 
of any such instruments of service, not occurring as a part of this PROJECT, shall be without liability or legal exposure to 
the CONSULTANT. 

Page 2 of 8 



IV Time for Beginning and Completion 
The CONSULTANT shall not begin any work under the terms of this AGREEMENT until authorized in writing by the 
AGENCY. 

All work under this AGREEMENT shall be completed by the date shown in the heading of this AGREEMENT under 
completion date. 

The established completion time shall not be extended because of any delays attributable to the CONSULTANT, but 
may be extended by the AGENCY in the event of a delay attributable to the AGENCY, or because of unavoidable 
delays caused by an act of GOD or governmental actions or other conditions beyond the control of the 
CONSULTANT. A prior supplemental agreement issued by the AGENCY is required to extend the established 
completion time. 

V Payment Provisions 
The CONSULTANT shall be paid by the AGENCY for completed work and services rendered under this 
AGREEMENT as provided in Exhibit "D" attached hereto, and by reference made part of this AGREEMENT. Such 
payment shall be full compensation for work performed or services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, 
equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. The CONSULTANT shall conform to all applicable 
portions of 48 CFR Part 31. 

A post audit may be performed on this AGREEMENT. The need for a post audit will be determined by the State 
Auditor, WSDOT External Audit Office and/or at the request of the AGENCY'S PROJECT Manager. 

VI Sub-Contracting 
The AGENCY permits sub-contracts for those items of work as shown in Exhibit "G" attached hereto and by this 
reference made part of this AGREEMENT. 

Compensation for this sub-consultant work shall be based on the cost factors shown on Exhibit "G." 

The work of the sub-consultant shall not exceed its maximum amount payable unless a prior written approval has been 
issued by the AGENCY. 

All reimbursable direct labor, overhead, direct non-salary costs and fixed fee costs for the sub-consultant shall be 
substantiated in the same manner as outlined in Section V. All sub-contracts shall contain all applicable provisions of 
this AGREEMENT. 

With respect to sub-consultant payment, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable sections of the Prompt 
Payment laws as set forth in RCW 39.04.250 and RCW 39.76.011. 

The CONSULTANT shall not sub-contract for the performance of any work under this AGREEMENT without prior 
written permission of the AGENCY. No permission for sub-contracting shall create, between the AGENCY and sub-
contractor, any contract or any other relationship. A DBE certified sub-consultant is required to perform a minimum 
amount of their sub-contracted agreement that is established by the WSDOT Highways and Local Programs Project 
Development Engineer in consultation with the AGENCY. 

VII Employment 
The CONSULTANT warrants that they have not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this contract, and that it has not paid or agreed to 
pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this contract. For breach or violation of this warrant, the AGENCY shall have the right to annul this 
AGREEMENT without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the AGREEMENT price or consideration or 
otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. 

Any and all employees of the CONSULTANT or other persons while engaged in the performance of any work or 
services required of the CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, shall be considered employees of the 
CONSULTANT only and not of the AGENCY, and any and all claims that may arise under any Workmen's 
Compensation Act on behalf of said employees or other persons while so engaged, and any and all claims made by a 

Page 3 of 8 



third party as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of the CONSULTANTS employees or other persons 
while so engaged on any of the work or services provided to be rendered herein, shall be the sole obligation and 
responsibility of the CONSULTANT. 

The CONSULTANT shall not engage, on a full- or part-time basis, or other basis, during the period of the contract, any 
professional or technical personnel who are, or have been, at any time during the period of the contract, in the employ 
of the United States Department of Transportation, or the STATE, or the AGENCY, except regularly retired 
employees, without written consent of the public employer of such person. 

VIII Nondiscrimination 
During the performance of this contract, the CONSULTANT, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest agrees 
to comply with the following laws and regulations: 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
(42 USC Chapter 21 Subchapter V Section 2000d through 2000d-4a) 

Federal-aid Highway Act of 1973 
(23 USC Chapter 3 Section 324) 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
(29 USC Chapter 16 Subchapter V Section 794) 

Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
(42 USC Chapter 76 Section 6101 et seq.) 

Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 
(Public Law 100-259) 

American with Disabilities Act of 1990 
(42 USC Chapter 126 Section 12101 et. seq.) 

49 CFR Part 21 

23 CFR Part 200 

RCW 49.60.180 

In relation to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the CONSULTANT is bound by the provisions of Exhibit "H" 
attached hereto and by this reference made part of this AGREEMENT, and shall include the attached Exhibit "H" in 
every sub-contract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or 
directives issued pursuant thereto. 

IX Termination of Agreement 
The right is reserved by the AGENCY to terminate this AGREEMENT at any time upon ten (10) days written notice to 
the CONSULTANT. 

In the event this AGREEMENT is terminated by the AGENCY other than for default on the part of the 
CONSULTANT, a final payment shall be made to the CONSULTANT as shown in Exhibit "I" for the type of 
AGREEMENT used. 

No payment shall be made for any work completed after ten (10) days following receipt by the CONSULTANT of the 
Notice to Terminate. If the accumulated payment made to the CONSULTANT prior to Notice of Termination exceeds 
the total amount that would be due when computed as set forth herein above, then no final payment shall be due and the 
CONSULTANT shall immediately reimburse the AGENCY for any excess paid. 

If the services of the CONSULTANT are terminated by the AGENCY for default on the part of the CONSULTANT, 
the above formula for payment shall not apply. 

Page 4 of 8 



In such an event, the amount to be paid shall be determined by the AGENCY with consideration given to the actual 
costs incurred by the CONSULTANT in performing the work to the date of termination, the amount of work originally 
required which was satisfactorily completed to date of termination, whether that work is in a form or a type which is 
usable to the AGENCY at the time of termination, the cost to the AGENCY of employing another firm to complete the 
work required and the time which may be required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to the AGENCY 
of the work performed at the time of termination. 

Under no circumstances shall payment made under this subsection exceed the amount, which would have been made 
using the formula set forth above. 

If it is determined for any reason that the CONSULTANT was not in default or that the CONSULTANT'S failure to 
perform is without the CONSULTANT'S or it's employee's default or negligence, the termination shall be deemed to 
be a termination for the convenience of the AGENCY. In such an event, the CONSULTANT would be reimbursed for 
actual costs in accordance with the termination for other than default clauses listed previously. 

In the event of the death of any member, partner or officer of the CONSULTANT or any of its supervisory personnel 
assigned to the PROJECT, or dissolution of the partnership, termination of the corporation, or disaffiliation of the 
principally involved employee, the surviving members of the CONSULTANT hereby agree to complete the work under 
the terms of this AGREEMENT, if requested to do so by the AGENCY. This subsection shall not be a bar to 
renegotiation of the AGREEMENT between the surviving members of the CONSULTANT and the AGENCY, if the 
AGENCY so chooses. 

In the event of the death of any of the parties listed in the previous paragraph, should the surviving members of the 
CONSULTANT, with the AGENCY'S concurrence, desire to terminate this AGREEMENT, payment shall be made as 
set forth in the second paragraph of this section. 

Payment for any part of the work by the AGENCY shall not constitute a waiver by the AGENCY of any remedies of 
any type it may have against the CONSULTANT for any breach of this AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT, or for 
failure of the CONSULTANT to perform work required of it by the AGENCY. Forbearance of any rights under the 
AGREEMENT will not constitute waiver of entitlement to exercise those rights with respect to any future act or 
omission by the CONSULTANT. 

X Changes of Work 
The CONSULTANT shall make such changes and revisions in the complete work of this AGREEMENT as necessary 
to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by the AGENCY, without additional compensation thereof. 
Should the AGENCY find it desirable for its own purposes to have previously satisfactorily completed work or parts 
thereof changed or revised, the CONSULTANT shall make such revisions as directed by the AGENCY. This work 
shall be considered as Extra Work and will be paid for as herein provided under Section XIV. 

XI Disputes 
Any dispute concerning questions of fact in connection with the work not disposed of by AGREEMENT between the 
CONSULTANT and the AGENCY shall be referred for determination to the Director of Public Works or AGENCY 
Engineer, whose decision in the matter shall be final and binding on the parties of this AGREEMENT; provided, 
however, that if an action is brought challenging the Director of Public Works or AGENCY Engineer's decision, that 
decision shall be subject to de novo judicial review. If the parties to this AGREEMENT mutually agree, disputes 
concerning alleged design errors will be conducted under the procedures found in Exhibit "7', and disputes concerning 
claims will be conducted under the procedures found in Exhibit "K". 

XII Venue, Applicable Law, and Personal Jurisdiction 
In the event that either party deems it necessary to institute legal action or proceedings to enforce any right or 
obligation under this AGREEMENT, the parties hereto agree that any such action shall be initiated in the Superior 
court of the State of Washington, situated in the county in which the AGENCY is located. The parties hereto agree that 
all questions shall be resolved by application of Washington law and that the parties to such action shall have the right 
of appeal from such decisions of the Superior court in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The 
CONSULTANT hereby consents to the personal jurisdiction of the Superior court of the State of Washington, situated 
in the county in which the AGENCY is located. 

Page 5 of 8 



XIII Legal Relations 
The CONSULTANT shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be 
done under this AGREEMENT. This contract shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Washington. 

The CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold the AGENCY and the STATE and its officers and employees harmless 
from and shall process and defend at its own expense all claims, demands, or suits at law or equity arising in whole or 
in part from the CONSULTANT'S negligence or breach of any of its obligations under this AGREEMENT; provided 
that nothing herein shall require a CONSULTANT to indemnify the AGENCY or the STATE against and hold 
harmless the AGENCY or the STATE from claims, demands or suits based solely upon the conduct of the AGENCY or 
the STATE, their agents, officers and employees; and provided further that if the claims or suits are caused by or result 
from the concurrent negligence of (a) the CONSULTANT'S agents or employees, and (b) the AGENCY or the 
STATE, their agents, officers and employees, this indemnity provision with respect to (1) claims or suits based upon 
such negligence (2) the costs to the AGENCY or the STATE of defending such claims and suits shall be valid and 
enforceable only to the extent of the CONSULTANT'S negligence or the negligence of the CONSULTANT'S agents 
or employees. 

The CONSULTANT'S relation to the AGENCY shall be at all times as an independent contractor. 

The CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable sections of the applicable Ethics laws, including RCW 42.23, 
which is the Code of Ethics for regulating contract interest by municipal officers. The CONSULTANT specifically 
assumes potential liability for actions brought by the CONSULTANT'S own employees against the AGENCY and, 
solely for the purpose of this indemnification and defense, the CONSULTANT specifically waives any immunity under 
the state industrial insurance law, Title 51 RCW. 

Unless otherwise specified in the AGREEMENT, the AGENCY shall be responsible for administration of construction 
contracts, if any, on the PROJECT. Subject to the processing of a new sole source, or an acceptable supplemental 
agreement, the CONSULTANT shall provide On-Call assistance to the AGENCY during contract administration. By 
providing such assistance, the CONSULTANT shall assume no responsibility for: proper construction techniques, job 
site safety, or any construction contractor's failure to perform its work in accordance with the contract documents. 

The CONSULTANT shall obtain and keep in force during the terms of the AGREEMENT, or as otherwise required, 
the following insurance with companies or through sources approved by the State Insurance Commissioner pursuant to 
Title 48 RCW. 

Insurance Coverage 

A. Worker's compensation and employer's liability insurance as required by the STATE. 
B. Commercial general liability and property damage insurance in an aggregate amount not less than two million 

dollars ($2,000,000) for bodily injury, including death and property damage. The per occurrence amount shall 
not exceed one million dollars ($1,000,000). 

C. Vehicle liability insurance for any automobile used in an amount not less than a one million dollar ($1,000,000) 
combined single limit. 

Excepting the Worker's Compensation Insurance and any Professional Liability Insurance secured by the 
CONSULTANT, the AGENCY will be named on all policies as an additional insured. The CONSULTANT shall 
furnish the AGENCY with verification of insurance and endorsements required by the AGREEMENT. The AGENCY 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time. 

All insurance shall be obtained from an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Washington. The 
CONSULTANT shall submit a verification of insurance as outlined above within fourteen (14) days of the execution of 
this AGREEMENT to the AGENCY. 

No cancellation of the foregoing policies shall be effective without thirty (30) days prior notice to the AGENCY. 

The CONSULTANT'S professional liability to the AGENCY shall be limited to the amount payable under this 
AGREEMENT or one million ($1,000,000) dollars, whichever is the greater, unless modified by Exhibit "L". In no 
case shall the CONSULTANT'S professional liability to third parties be limited in any way. 

Page 6 of 8 



The AGENCY will pay no progress payments under Section V until the CONSULTANT has fully complied with this 
section. This remedy is not exclusive; and the AGENCY and the STATE may take such other action as is available to it 
under other provisions of this AGREEMENT, or otherwise in law. 

XIV Extra Work 
A. The AGENCY may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of the AGREEMENT in 

the services to be performed. 

B. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the estimated cost of, or the time required for, performance of 
any part of the work under this AGREEMENT, whether or not changed by the order, or otherwise affects any other 
terms and conditions of the AGREEMENT, the AGENCY shall make an equitable adjustment in the (1) maximum 
amount payable; (2) delivery or completion schedule, or both; and (3) other affected terms and shall modify the 
AGREEMENT accordingly. 

C. The CONSULTANT must submit any "request for equitable adjustment", hereafter referred to as "CLAIM", under 
this clause within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the written order. However, if the AGENCY decides 
that the facts justify it, the AGENCY may receive and act upon a CLAIM submitted before final payment of the 
AGREEMENT. 

D. Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under the Disputes clause. However, nothing in this clause 
shall excuse the CONSULTANT from proceeding with the AGREEMENT as changed. 

E. Notwithstanding the terms and conditions of paragraphs (A) and (B) above, the maximum amount payable for this 
AGREEMENT, shall not be increased or considered to be increased except by specific written supplement to this 
AGREEMENT. 

XV Endorsement of Plans 
If applicable, the CONSULTANT shall place their endorsement on all plans, estimates, or any other engineering data 
furnished by them. 

XVI Federal and State Review 
The Federal Highway Administration and the Washington State Department of Transportation shall have the right to 
participate in the review or examination of the work in progress. 

XVII Certification of the Consultant and the Agency 
Attached hereto as Exhibit "M-1(a and b)" are the Certifications of the CONSULTANT and the AGENCY, Exhibit "M 
-2" Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions, 
Exhibit "M-3" Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying and Exhibit "M-4" 
Certificate of Current Cost or Pricing Data. Exhibit "M-3" is required only in AGREEMENTS over $100,000 and 
Exhibit "M-4" is required only in AGREEMENTS over $500,000. 

XVIII Complete Agreement 
This document and referenced attachments contain all covenants, stipulations, and provisions agreed upon by the 
parties. No agent, or representative of either party has authority to make, and the parties shall not be bound by or be 
liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein. No changes, amendments, or 
modifications of the terms hereof shall be valid unless reduced to writing and signed by the parties as an amendment to 
this AGREEMENT. 

XIX Execution and Acceptance 
This AGREEMENT may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 
original having identical legal effect. The CONSULTANT does hereby ratify and adopt all statements, representations, 
warranties, covenants, and agreements contained in the proposal, and the supporting material submitted by the 
CONSULTANT, and does hereby accept the AGREEMENT and agrees to all of the terms and conditions thereof. 

Page 7 of 8 



In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the day and year shown in the 
"Execution Date" box on page one (1) of this AGREEMENT. 

By 	 By 

Consultant David Evans and Associates, Inc. 	Agency City of Sedro-Woolley 

DOT Form 140-089 EF 
Revised 312008 	 Page 8 of 8 



EXHIBIT A-1 
SCOPE OF WORK 

City of Sedro-Woolley 
SR 20, Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project 

PS&E 

WORK ELEMENT 1.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION, DESIGN CRITERIA, AND 
DELIVERABLES 

1.1 	Project Description 

This SR 20, Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project (PROJECT) involves the survey, 
environmental, and engineering services necessary for preparation of the Plans, Specifications, and 
Estimate (PS&E) for the SR 20 Cook Road Roundabout, the Murrow Street/Cook Road Roundabout, the 
new north/Murrow Street extending from SR 9 to F&S Grade Road, and the removal or reconfiguration of 
the existing Cook Road from SR 20 to Washington Street. This PROJECT will involve early 
coordination with WSDOT, the City of Sedro-Woolley (CITY), and adjacent property owners to develop 
the roundabout geometric and channelization design that will be approved by the Washington State 
Department of Transportation (WSDOT). 

Major features of the PROJECT include: 

• Topographic Survey 
• Legal Descriptions for Right of Way Donations 
• Geotechnical Survey and Report 
• Pavement Design 
• Roundabout Conceptual Design Approval from WSDOT 
• Roundabout Geometric Design Approval from WSDOT 
• Traffic Analysis Report and VISSIM Traffic Simulation 
• Design Documentation File 
• Channelization Plan for Approval from WSDOT 
• Stormwater Report 
• FHWA Functional Classification Request 
• 30%,70%, 90%, and Bid PS&E Documents 
• NEPA Environmental Documentation and Permitting 
• Utility Coordination 
• Bid Support 

Features of the PROJECT provided by others include: 
• Title Reports 
• Right-of-Way Appraisals 
• Right-of-Way Negotiations 
• Right of Entry for Topographic Survey 

1.2 Design Criteria 

The PROJECT design will be based on the requirements of the City of Sedro-Woolley Standard 
Specifications and Plans, and the 2012 WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications. In addition, the 
following documents will be used as reference guides: WSDOT Design Manual, WSDOT Traffic 
Manual, Washington DOE Stormwater Management Manual for Western Washington 2005, 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 1 



Transportation Improvement Board design standards, Local Agency Guidelines, MUTCD, FHWA 
Roundabout Guide 2I'd  Edition and AASHTO design guidelines. 

1.3 Project Deliverables Furnished by the CONSULTANT 

The CONSULTANT shall maintain hard copy and electronic project files for pertinent work items. 
These files will be delivered to the CITY at the conclusion of the project. The CITY review sets will be 
returned with each subsequent revision illustrating how review comments were addressed. In addition to 
these project files, the CONSULTANT shall prepare and/or deliver the following documents and products 
to the CITY as part of this agreement: 

• Monthly progress reports that include a percentage of budget spent and percentage of work 
completed, and invoices (including subconsultants) (both in hard copy only) 

• Project schedule and monthly updates 
• Agendas and meeting minutes for coordination meetings 
• Electronic copy of the topographic base map and data points in AutoCAD 
• Draft and Final Stormwater Analysis Reports (two [2] bound copies and an electronic PDF of 

each) 
• Draft and Final Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (two [2] bound copies and an electronic 

PDF of each) 
• Summary Memorandum of the Subsurface Conditions Encountered (two [2] bound copies and an 

electronic PDF) 
• Draft and Final Geotechnical Investigation Report (two [2] bound copies and an electronic PDF 

of each) 
• NEPA Environmental Documentation Reports and Permits 
• Draft and Final Conceptual Design Approval Package (two [2] bound copies and an electronic 

PDF of each) 
• VIS SIM Simulation 
• Draft (two [2] iterations) and Final Geometric Design Documentation Package (two [2] bound 

copies and an electronic PDF of each) 
• Channelization Plans for Approval in WSDOT Format (11"x17" at 1"=50' and 22"x34" Final 

Mylars) 
• Transmittal of the plans at major milestone submittals (30%, 70%, 90%) to the utility providers 
• 30% Preliminary Design Plan Set: 5 copies of half-size set [11"x17" at I" = 40' scale] and 

electronic PDF copy 
• 30% Preliminary Construction Estimate: 5 copies and electronic PDF copy 
• 70% Design Plan Completion Level: 5 copies of half-size set (11"x17"); and 1 electronic PDF 

copy 
• 70% Design Contract Documents: 5 hard copies and 1 electronic PDF copy 
• 90% Design Plan Completion Level: 5 copies of half-size set (11"x17"); and 1 electronic PDF 

copy 
• 90% Design Contract Documents: 5 hard copies and 1 electronic PDF copy 
• 100% Design Plan Completion Level: 5 copies of half-size set (11"x17"); and 1 electronic copy 
• 100% Design Contract Documents: I hard copy and 1 electronic version 
• 100% Design Cost Estimate: 1 hard copy and 1 electronic version 
• 1 electronic copy (Word format, 2003 or newer) of reports and 1 PDF and AutoCAD electronic 

copy of the final plans 
• Draft and Final Land Descriptions (eight [8] total on 8-1/2" by 11" paper) 
• Draft and Final Parcel Exhibits (eight [8] total on 8-1/2" by 11" paper) 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 2 



1.4 Responsibilities and Services Provided by the CITY 

The CITY will: 

— Provide direction of work tasks to the CONSULTANT. 
- Provide all available existing as-built plans, GIS maps, and other mapping information to the 

CONSULTANT. 
- Provide all available data prepared for the CITY for the PROJECT including, but not limited to: 

existing utility locations, planned utility locations, plans for other roadway improvements common to 
this project, proposed private development plans, environmental and planning documents, and 
previous reports and documents pertaining to the PROJECT. 

- Provide all boilerplate specifications in MS Word 2007 format. 

- 	

Review all submittals made to the CITY within fifteen (15) working days, or as agreed, and return 
them to the CONSULTANT with written consolidated comments regarding changes or revisions 
needed. 

1.5 Project Assumptions 

— Drawings will be prepared in AutoCAD format and drawn at a scale of one inch equals twenty feet 
for full-size plans (22"x34") and one inch equals forty feet for half-size plans (I 1"x17"). 

— AutoCAD Civil 3D design software will be utilized for purposes of developing horizontal and vertical 
alignments, and roadway sections, for the project. 

— Specifications will follow WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications 2012. 
— The preparation of construction bid documents will follow LAG Manual requirements. 
— The duration of the PROJECT as outlined in this Scope of Services document is assumed to be twelve 

(12) months. 
— If requested, extra work for future PROJECT-related activities, including construction management, 

will be covered under an amended agreement. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 3 



WORK ELEMENT 2.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY CONTROL 

The following subsections and the remainder of the sections in this Scope of Services are activities 
required for the completion of the PROJECT. 

2.1 Project Management and File Management 

Direction of the CONSULTANT staff and review of their work over the course of the PROJECT shall be 
provided. This work element includes preparing monthly progress reports including the status of 
individual work elements, number of meetings attended, outstanding information required, and work 
items planned for the following month. 

Periodic monitoring of the PROJECT budget will occur over the course of the PROJECT. Assessment of 
current PROJECT status, as well as projections of future status, shall be developed by the 
CONSULTANT. This work element is intended to help monitor costs and budgets, and to propose 
corrective actions. These actions could include formal requests for budget increases, or scope 
modifications or reductions. 

CONSULTANT administrative staff under the direction of the Project Manager will set up and maintain 
the project file system for both hard copy documents and electronic files. 

Drawings and documents received and generated over the course of the PROJECT require review, 
coordination, and file management. This information will be filed to facilitate ready and selective 
retrieval. 

Assumptions: 

• The project duration is 12 twelve (12) months. 
• Meetings with CITY staff will occur at the CITY offices. 
• Duration of the PROJECT will be twelve (12) months. 
• Travel time to meetings will not be charged to the project. 

2.2 Subconsultant Coordination 

Direction of the subconsultants and review of their work over the course of the PROJECT shall be 
provided by the CONSULTANT. This work element includes reviewing the status of individual work 
elements completed by subconsultants, reviewing the subconsultant monthly progress reports, and the 
planning of work items for the following month. 

Monthly monitoring of the subconsultants' budgets will occur over the course of the PROJECT. Current 
status, as well as projections, will be developed. This work element is intended to help monitor costs and 
budgets, and to propose corrective actions. These actions could include formal requests for budget 
increases, or scope modifications or reductions. 

The following subconsultants are anticipated to be used on this PROJECT: 

• Skagit Surveyors & Engineers — Topographic Survey and Legal Descriptions and Exhibits 
• Associated Earth Sciences, Inc. — Geotechnical Investigations and Analysis 
• Widener & Associates - Environmental Documentation and Permitting 
• Roland Resources, Inc. — Right-of-Way Appraisal and Acquisition Services Support (if requested) 

Deliverables: 

• Monthly progress reports and invoices for subconsultant activities (12 Total). 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 4 



2.3 Develop and Update the Schedule 

The CONSULTANT and the CITY will jointly develop a PROJECT schedule showing major and support 
activities. The schedule shall be arranged to meet key target dates. The CONSULTANT shall update the 
schedule monthly to reflect the current status of the PROJECT. 

Deliverables: 

• Project schedule and monthly updates. 

2.4 Progress Reports and Project Invoices 

Monthly progress reports shall be prepared by the CONSULTANT in a format agreed to by the CITY's 
project manager, and shall include a written report of the work perfonned by the CONSULTANT 
and subconsultants during the billing period. 

Monthly invoices will be prepared by the CONSULTANT for work activities for the prior month. These 
invoices shall also include subconsultant work. Invoices will include back-up material for expenses and 
will show approved budget and amount expended to date. Each month's invoice will be prepared by 
administrative staff, reviewed by the Project Manager and task leaders, and submitted together with the 
progress report to the CITY. 

Deliverables: 

• Monthly progress reports and invoices — 12 Total (both in hard copy only). 

2.5 Coordination with the CITY 

The CONSULTANT's Project Manager will coordinate with the CITY's Project Manager on a continual 
basis for the duration of the project. Means of communication will include e-mails, phone calls, and 
technical memos. Correspondence will be documented for the project file. 

2.6 Change Management 

The Project Managers from the CITY and the CONSULTANT are responsible for managing changes to 
the scope and schedule. The CITY is responsible for the authorization of any changes to the scope, 
budget, and/or schedule. Team members must ensure that work within their areas remains within the 
defined project scope, schedule, and budget. When issues, actions, or circumstances occur that could 
cause a change in scope, personnel, cost, or schedule, team members must communicate potential 
changes to the Project Manager as early as possible. 

The Project Managers will determine whether the potential change issue will lead to a change in scope, 
cost, or schedule. Verified changes will be communicated to project stakeholders. The Project Manager 
will be prepared to explain the effect of the change to the team, so schedules and budgets can be adjusted. 

2.7 Project Kick-off Meeting and Progress Meetings 

After receiving notice to proceed from the CITY, DEA will conduct a project team kick-off meeting with 
staff expected to be involved in the PROJECT and key CITY staff. The meeting will be used to discuss 
key elements of the scope of work, the project schedule, document control, and QA/QC procedures, and 
to clearly define the roles and responsibilities of the project team members. 

This work element also provides for the preparation, attendance, follow-up, and documentation of 
progress meetings during the length of the PROJECT. These meetings will be the forums for the CITY 
staff and other stakeholders to provide input and guidance for the direction of the PROJECT. They will 
also be used to discuss PROJECT issues, approve submittals, and develop potential solutions. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 5 



Meetings will be required for coordination with the CITY and other affected parties. The 
CONSULTANT is anticipated to attend one coordination meeting each month with the CITY's Project 
Manager for the duration of the project. It is expected that these meetings will have a duration of two (2) 
hours. Additional meetings, if necessary, may be held via conference call. The in-person meetings will 
be held at the CITY and will be combined with project site visits or other project activities. The 
CONSULTANT shall prepare the meeting agenda and minutes for the monthly coordination meetings. 

Meetings: 
• Monthly progress/coordination meetings (12 Total) — City of Sedro-Woolley 
• Bi-weekly conference calls (12 Total) 
• Meeting agendas/meeting minutes (12 Total) 
• Travel time for meetings will not be invoiced if not combined with site visits, third party meetings, or 

sub c onsultant coordination. 

2.8 Quality Assurance / Quality Control Review 

This work element is for QA/QC review of CONSULTANT deliverables by a designated QA/QC staff 
member of the CONSULTANT team. The review will cover documents; reports; plans, specifications, 
and cost estimates; and pertinent information on an ongoing basis. The program entails the periodic 
review of study criteria, design, and assumptions, as well as concepts and presentation of product format; 
and assures that the overall project objectives meet the industry standard of care. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 6 



WORK ELEMENT 3.0 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY AND BASEMAP PREPARATION 

	

3.1 	Data Collection 

The CONSULTANT will research CITY and WSDOT records to recover the monumentation controlling 
the site. 

The CONSULTANT will research and collect existing roadway, right-of-way, and utility information 
from the CITY, WSDOT, and respective utility agencies for inclusion in the mapping. 

	

3.2 	Horizontal and Vertical Control Network 

The CONSULTANT shall establish local horizontal and vertical control points throughout the project 
limits for the purpose of performing surveying services. Horizontal and vertical control points shall be 
based upon at least two local control monuments which will then be referenced on the final drawings. 
These monuments shall serve as the basis of horizontal coordinates and control of the site. 

The CONSULTANT shall locate and set reference points outside of the proposed construction area for 
visible street survey monuments along the street corridor. 

	

3.3 	Establish Road Centerline Alignments and Rights-of-Way (Base Map) 

The CONSULTANT shall establish the existing centerlines and rights-of-way within the project limits for 
preparation of the right-of-way base map for this project. Parcel lines for adjacent properties will be 
shown as near as possible to their actual locations, but will be solely based upon public records and maps. 
No additional survey work is proposed to perform boundary surveying on any parcel, unless requested at 
a later date. This base map will be used to validate the location of existing improvements located by the 
topographic survey. The base map will show located street monuments and property corner markers 
found that are used to create the map. 

	

3.4 	Topographic Survey 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare a project topographic base map. This base map will incorporate CITY 
and franchise utility 'as-built' information, right-of-ways and road centerlines, property lines, and other 
existing features within the project limits including: 

a. Pavement limits 1. Cable TV pedestals 
b. Curbs and sidewalks m. Street lighting 
c. Driveways and curb cuts n. Signage 
d. Buildings o. Utility poles 
e. Fences P- Overhead wires, guy wires 
f. Storm drainage structures with q. Meters 

pipe invert elevations r. Road channelization 

g- Sanitary sewer manholes with s. Trees (6" or larger in diam) 
pipe invert elevations t. Street Markings 

h.  

i.  

j.  

k.  

Water valves, fire hydrants, and 
associated features with nut 
elevations 
Electrical power vaults and 
associated surface features 
Telephone manholes and 
pedestals 
Natural gas valves, meters, and 
warning markers 

u. Pothole Locations (see Work 
Element 9.2) 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-I, Page 7 



The project area surveyed will be 20 feet beyond existing right-of-way or proposed for the future Murrow 
Street and to the face of existing structures within 100 feet of the proposed improvements to gather 
information in advance of potential right-of-way acquisition for the project. 

The CONSULTANT will notify the CITY and utility companies to arrange to have the locations of 
existing utilities surface marked and to request utility as-builts for the areas where improvements are 
planned. The CONSULTANT shall survey these locations as marked and incorporate them in the base 
mapping. The CITY will provide a list of utility companies within the existing rights-of-way. The 
CONSULTANT shall contact the utility companies. 

The CONSULTANT will prepare the final topographic survey map with a one-foot contour interval. The 
mapping shall be plotted at a scale of one inch equals twenty feet (1"=20') a with one-foot contour 
interval. 

Deliverables: 

• Electronic copy of the topographic base map, data points, DTM in AutoCAD. 

	

3.5 	Site Photography 

The CONSULTANT owns a digital camera system to compliment our laser scanning systems. The 
system consists of a seven-mega pixel digital camera and allows one to set the camera's focal point to the 
same focal point as the scanner so you can overlay the photos on the scans with little to no parallax. The 
camera system allows one to create digital cube maps and .mov files. While this service may or may not 
be required, the CONSULTANT proposes to use this equipment and provide images of the route, taking a 
series of scanned photos along the PROJECT route at 300-foot intervals. Camera setups will not be 
opposite each other, but will be staggered to where the setups are no more than 50 feet apart within the 
project limits. The CONSULTANT will also provide assistance and software to the CITY for their use in 
viewing the files. 

To achieve full coverage, each intersection will be photographed with the camera set in each of the four 
corners of the intersection, providing a view from four separate directions. Images will be processed and 
pasted together, giving a seamless 360° view. 

	

3.6 	Right-of-Way Exhibits 

Parcel Exhibits 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare parcel exhibits for each affected individual parcel. It is estimated that 
parcel exhibits are required for eight (8) total parcels, of which six (6) will require both right-of-way 
acquisition exhibits and TCA exhibits. 

Legal Descriptions 

The CONSULTANT shall provide descriptions of the fee simple acquisitions or the easement 
acquisitions. The CONSULTANT will include area calculations and right-of-way dimensions with the 
parcel descriptions. It is estimated that legal descriptions are required for eight (8) total parcels. 

Deliverables: 
• Right-of-Way Plan Map (one [1] total, full-size [22"x34"]). 
• Draft and Final Parcel Exhibits (eight [8] total on 8-1/2" by 11" paper). 
• Draft and Final Legal Descriptions (eight [8] total on 8-1/2" by 11" paper). 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 8 



3.7 	Assumptions 

Assumptions for the project include the following: 

— Horizontal and Vertical Datums will be based on City of Sedro-Woolley horizontal control points for 
Horizontal = Washington State Plane Coordinate System NAD 83/91 and Vertical = NAVD-88. 

— The CONSULTANT will contract with a private company to locate the buried utilities. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 9 



WORK ELEMENT 4.0 ENGINEERING REPORTS 

	

4.1 	Stormwater Report/Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 

Stormwater Technical Information Report (TIR): The CONSULTANT shall prepare a draft and final 
Stormwater TIR based on the 2005 Department of Ecology Stormwater Management Manual for Western 
Washington. 

It is anticipated that the new and replaced impervious areas associated with the PROJECT will be greater 
than 5,000 square feet, therefore a drainage report and drainage design details will be required. The 
CONSULTANT shall: 

• Determine the new pervious and impervious areas, 
• Determine the criteria for detention and water quality design, 
• Determine the existing drainage systems and drainage basins for the project area, 
• Develop drainage system improvements for this project, including detention and water quality 

treatment if required, 
• Determine location, easements, and right-of-way required for drainage system improvements, and 
• Prepare a drainage technical infon-nation report (TIR) that summarizes the efforts of this task and 

includes drainage calculations. 

Special emphasis will be made to evaluate the feasibility and provide recommendations for utilizing Low 
Impact Development options in combination with or in place of conventional stormwater conveyance / 
flow control and water quality facilities. 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP): The CONSULTANT shall prepare a draft and final 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan in accordance with the Department of Ecology's 2005 Stormwater 
Management Manual for Western Washington. Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control Plans prepared 
will be utilized for the drawing portion of the SWPPP. 

Assumption: 

• There will be one (1) set of CITY/WSDOT comments on the Stormwater TIR and SWPPP, and one 
revision. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft and Final Technical Information Report (two [2] bound copies and an electronic PDF of each). 
• Draft and Final Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (two [2] bound copies and an electronic PDF of 

each). 

	

4.2 	Geotechnical Investigation and Report 

The CONSULTANT will prepare a Geotechnical Report for the PROJECT. The report shall include the 
evaluation of the existing conditions, potential groundwater issues, earthwork recommendations, design 
of the roadway pavement section, associated structures in the right-of-way, and infiltration rates for 
potential water quality areas. Maximum use shall be made of existing soil and geologic information. 

Permits 

The CONSULTANT will coordinate with the City of Sedro-Woolley and the Washington State 
Department of Transportation (WSDOT) to acquire permits for work in the right-of-way, if needed. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 10 



Geotechnical Explorations 

The CONSULTANT will review readily-available existing information including published geologic data 
and geotechnical information available for projects located within the immediate vicinity of the 
alignment. In addition, the CONSULTANT will conduct a geologic reconnaissance to make observations 
along the alignment and to map surface and geologic features, which could be pertinent to the 
geotechnical components of roadway construction. During this phase of the work, the CONSULTANT 
will establish access requirements for exploration equipment and locate areas where detailed subsurface 
exploration is needed. 

Upon completion of the reconnaissance, the CONSULTANT will initiate the subsurface exploration. The 
work will include excavation of 5 exploration borings along the proposed alignment in areas that do not 
require traffic control. The borings will be drilled using track-mounted equipment to depths ranging from 
5 to 15 feet to determine the soil profile. The exploration borings will be performed under the full-time 
observation of an engineer or geologist who shall maintain detailed records of the conditions encountered 
in the borings and obtain representative samples for additional laboratory testing and classification. 

Based upon the results of the explorations, the CONSULTANT shall provide a summary Memorandum of 
the subsurface conditions encountered. The Memorandum will include a general description of the site 
conditions, and the general geology of the area summarizing our subsurface findings. 

Deliverables: 

• Summary Memorandum of the Subsurface Conditions Encountered (two [21 bound copies and an 
electronic PDF). 

Infiltration 

Based upon the information collected in the explorations, the CONSULTANT shall develop a plan to 
perform infiltration tests in up to two selected areas. The testing will be performed at shallow depths 
using conventional excavation equipment. The methodology will be in accordance with the Department of 
Ecology Pilot Infiltration Test (PIT). We anticipate two areas for exploring the feasibility of infiltration. 
One would be located near the south end of the proposed baseball field parking lot. The other would be in 
the north area west of Bingham Park contained in the WSDOT right-of-way. 

Roadway Coring 

The CONSULTANT will place up to four (4) cores in the travel lane of the existing SR 20 roadway. The 
coring will be for the sole purpose of determining the thickness of the roadway surface section for 
demolition purposes. The coring will require the closing of one lane of traffic. 

Design 

Upon completion of the explorations, the CONSULTANT shall perform engineering analyses to develop 
geotechnical recommendations for design and construction of this PROJECT. Included in this task is the 
laboratory testing needed (quantity of tests in parenthesis) to establish project design parameters. 
Laboratory testing will include: 

• Moisture (10) 

• Grain size distribution (2) 

• Atterberg limits (2) 

• Modified proctor (2) 

• California bearing ratio (2) 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 11 



Deliverables: 

Draft Report 

The analyses and recommendations will be included in a draft report for review by the CITY. The report 
will contain results of the analysis with the following information: 

• Soil and groundwater conditions 
• Identifying existing compressible soils and uncontrolled fills 
• Materials likely to be encountered in excavations 
• Difficulty of excavations 
• Temporary excavations and shoring 
• Need for and methods for providing subsurface drainage 
• Criteria for site preparation, fill placement, and compaction 
• Suitability of on-site materials for use as structural fill 
• Inclination of cut and fill slopes and benching requirements 
• Erosion control 
• Preparation of stormwater facilities 
• Infiltration rates for up to two facilities 
• Thickness of existing pavement (if required) 
• Recommendations for thickness of new pavements (pervious and impervious) 

The results of the studies, along with the recommendations for design and construction, will be presented 
in a DRAFT Geotechnical Report. The CONSULTANT shall deliver two (2) copies of a draft report for 
review by the CITY and a PDF version. 

Final Report 

The CONSULTANT shall incorporate CITY review comments as applicable into a final report and 
deliver two (2) copies of the final report and a PDF version. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 12 



WORK ELEMENT 5.0 ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION AND PERMITTING 

The CONSULTANT shall complete all NEPA documentation and federal permitting for the PROJECT. 
It is anticipated that the following environmental documentation will be required: 

• Section 106 Documentation 
• Traffic Noise Report 
• Biological Assessment 
• Environmental Justice Survey 
• Wetland Delineation 
• Section 4f Documentation 
• ECS 

5.1 	Section 106 Report (Cultural and Historic Resources) 

This work would include the preparation of the Section 106 report in accordance with the State Historic 
Preservation Office standards and guidelines. The CONSULTANT shall complete the following 
subtasks: 

1. Pertinent literature on the archaeology, ethnography, and history of the project area will be 
reviewed to determine the existence of archaeological sites and to refine the probability of 
archaeological resources and traditional cultural places in the project areas. 

2. The CONSULTANT will maintain contact with the local tribes through FEMA for any 
information on historic Indian use of the project area. 

3. A systematic field reconnaissance will be conducted to identify previously recorded and/or 
unrecorded archaeological sites for the proposed project where ground-disturbing activities are 
expected to take place. Field reconnaissance will consist of the traverse of pedestrian transects at 
varying intervals, depending on terrain throughout the proposed project area. Shovel probes 
(digging a hole with a shovel) will be excavated, as deep as feasible, and in areas expected to 
have a high probability for cultural resources. Shovel probes will be augmented through auger 
probes to explore the deepest possible deposits. Shovel probes will be screened in highly probable 
areas and in soil matrixes too dense to identify small chipping debris. 

4. All new sites will be mapped, photographed, and recorded on Washington State Archeological 
Inventory forms and submitted to the state Office of Archeological and Historic Preservation 
(OAHP) for Smithsonian numbers. Every effort will be made to include Tribal cultural resources 
personnel in assisting the field effort. Rights-of-entry will be provided by the CITY. 

5.2 	Traffic Noise Report 

The purpose of the Traffic Noise Report is to evaluate traffic noise levels at sensitive receptors near the 
project that would be potentially affected by traffic noise and to identify potential mitigation measures. 
The Traffic Noise Report will be developed in accordance with the Washington State Department of 
Transportation's Environmental Procedures Manual. 

1. Sound Level Measurements: 
After review of the proposed project alternatives the CONSULTANT shall visit the project area 
to identify potentially sensitive noise receivers and to take measurements of existing sound levels. 
The CONSULTANT will measure existing noise levels during the peak hours to be used in 
calibrating the noise model. Measurements will be undertaken in accordance with WSDOT and 
FHWA guidelines and will be made with a Type 1 sound level meter. During these 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 13 



measurements, sources of existing noise and topographical features will be noted and traffic 
speeds and vehicle numbers and mix will be noted. 

2. Construction Noise Impact Evaluation: 
The noise analysis will evaluate potential short-term impacts of noise from construction activities. 
Construction noise on nearby sensitive receptors will be evaluated based on estimates published 
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) of maximum noise levels of typical 
construction equipment in conjunction with simple distance attenuation. Computer modeling of 
construction noise levels will not be performed. 

3. Traffic Noise Impact Evaluation: 
The CONSULTANT will evaluate traffic noise impacts using the FHWA Traffic Noise Model 
(TNM) to estimate future traffic noise levels for the worst-case build alternative. The worst-case 
scenario will be selected from among the build alternatives, and will be chosen based on expected 
future traffic volumes and the location of the alignment relative to sensitive receivers. The noise 
modeling will predict PM peak-hour Leq noise levels from traffic at a maximum of fifteen (15) 
receptor locations that could be affected by the proposed project and will consider existing 
conditions and design year conditions. Modeling to calculate noise contour lines is not included. 

Deliverables: 

• Three (3) copies of a draft Traffic Noise Analysis Report for review by CITY with accompanying 
draft special provisions if required. 

• Three (3) copies of a draft Traffic Noise Analysis Report, incorporating the CITY's comments, for 
submittal to FHWA/WSDOT. 

• Three (3) copies of a revised draft Traffic Noise Analysis Report, incorporating comments by 
FHWA/WSDOT, for submittal for approval. 

4. Mitigation Analysis: 
The CONSULTANT will identify mitigation measures to reduce noise levels during construction. 
If predicted long-term traffic noise levels from operation of the project would cause noise 
impacts, mitigation measures will be developed in cooperation with the lead agency and design 
engineers. Mitigation analysis, if required, will include evaluation of the effectiveness and 
general size and location of natural and man-made noise barriers using the TNM model. 

5.3 	Biological Assessment 

A Biological Assessment (BA) will be prepared for the preferred alternative in accordance with WSDOT 
guidelines. The following subtasks will be undertaken in preparation of the project BA. 

1. Collect available documentation concerning the project activities and pertinent biological 
information. Biological information will include priority habitat and species data from the 
Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife along with rare plant and high-quality 
ecosystem data from WDNR. This information will be reviewed and a consultation strategy will 
be developed. 

2. Initiate informal consultation with United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and 
National Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) Fisheries by preparing written 
requests for lists of endangered, threatened, proposed, and candidate species. 

3. Conduct a field reconnaissance to investigate on-site habitat conditions. 
4. Make telephone contact with the appropriate resource agency staff for input on species 

occurrence, habitat use, and potential project impacts. 
5. Prepare a draft BA addressing listed species, proposed species, candidate species, species of 

concern, and critical habitat. The BA will include a project description, a list of species, a 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 14 



description of the species and their habitat, an analysis of project effects, and mitigation 
recommendations. 

6. Provide the draft BA to the CITY for review and approval. 
7. Revise the BA, as appropriate, and submit the final BA to USFWS and NOAA Fisheries for their 

review, possible negotiation of mitigation measures, and concurrence. 
8. Concurrent with Endangered Species Act (ESA) consultation, the Consultant will coordinate with 

NOAA Fisheries to meet Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) requirements under the Magnuson-Stevens 
Fishery Conservation and Management Act (MSA), as amended 1996. In doing so, the 
Consultant will provide NOAA Fisheries with the BA and a cover letter requesting the initiation 
of consultation, stating the effect determination(s), reasoning behind them, and proposed 
mitigation measures if any. 

9. If NOAA Fisheries responds with advisory EFH conservation recommendations, the Consultant 
will coordinate with the CITY and FHWA to jointly discuss the recommendations. 

10. Formally address and respond to NOAA Fisheries' recommendations within the regulated time 
frame. 

Deliverables: 

• Three (3) copies of a draft BA for review by CITY with accompanying draft special provisions if 
required. 

• Three (3) copies of a draft BA, incorporating the CITY's comments, for submittal to FHWA/WSDOT. 
• Three (3) copies of a revised draft BA, incorporating comments by FHWA/WSDOT, for submittal to 

NOAA Fisheries and USFWS. 
• Three (3) copies of a final BA that incorporates NOAA Fisheries and USFWS comments. 

	

5.4 	Environmental Justice Survey 

The CONSULTANT shall provide the following services to complete an environmental justice (EJ) 
analysis: 

1. Collecting demographic data for the project area using local data sources and the US Census 
Data. 

2. Identifying any environmental justice populations in the area (minority or low-income 
populations). 

3. Review public outreach activities to ensure potential EJ populations are offered an opportunity to 
participate in project planning and decision-making. 

4. Identifying any potential disproportionate effects to EJ populations from project activities and 
identifying how impacts could not be avoided or minimized and what mitigation measures could 
be implemented. 

Deliverables: 

• Three (3) copies of the draft EJ documentation will be provided. 
• Three (3) copies of the final EJ documentation will be provided incorporating CITY comments. 
• Three (3) copies of the final EJ documentation will be provided incorporating WSDOT/FHWA 

comments if required. It is assumed that WSDOT/FHWA comments will not alter the basic 
conclusion of the documentation or require further alternative studies. 

	

5.5 	Wetland Delineation 

The purpose of the wetland report is to identify jurisdictional wetland within the project corridor and 
provide mitigation if necessary. The CONSULTANT shall develop, implement, and complete field 
surveys to identify and delineate wetlands in the project area using the appropriate methods described in 
the Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual (Environmental Laboratory 1987), Wetlands 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 15 



Research, Technical Report Y-87-1, January 1987. The CONSULTANT shall delineate wetlands within 
200 feet of the project area. 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare a comprehensive report that includes detailed wetland maps, 
documentation of survey methods, results, potential impacts from project actions, and recommendations 
for wetland protection and mitigation. The report also shall contain appropriate forms for wetland 
identification, delineation and function assessment required by the Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 
The information in this report is intended for use in compliance with Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. 
The final report and associated documents shall be in a format acceptable to the USACE. 

Delineated wetland boundaries shall be identified on the ground with flagging. The delineated wetland 
boundaries shall be mapped with accuracy acceptable to the USACE. 

Deliverables: 

• Three (3) copies of a draft Wetland Delineation Report for review by CITY with accompanying draft 
special provisions if required. 

• Three (3) copies of a draft Wetland Delineation Report, incorporating the CITY's comments, for 
submittal to USACE. 

• Three (3) copies of a revised draft Wetland Delineation Report, incorporating comments by USACE, 
for submittal for approval. 

	

5.6 	Section 4f Evaluation 

This work will include the coordination and preparation of a programmatic section 4f document as 
outlined in the Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration Programmatic Section 4(f) 
Evaluation and Approval for FHWA Projects. The work will include a preparation of the 4f document 
and an executive summary for the NEPA document. 

Deliverables: 

• Three (3) copies of the Draft 4f Statement for review by County 
• Three (3) copies of the revised Draft 4f Statement incorporating County comments 
• Three (3) copies of the Final 4f Statement will be prepared incorporating FHWA/WSDOT comments 

	

5.7 	Environmental Classification Summary 

Services will be provided to prepare the Environmental Classification Summary (ECS) form by reviewing 
technical reports related to the project, applying project-specific data to the form and coordinating 
approval for the project by both WSDOT and FHWA. 

Deliverables: 

• Three (3) copies of the draft ECS will be provided. 
• Three (3) copies of the final ECS documentation will be provided incorporating CITY comments. 
• Three (3) copies of the final ECS documentation will be provided incorporating WSDOT/FHWA 

comments if required. It is assumed that WSDOT/FHWA comments will not alter the basic 
conclusion of the documentation or require further alternative studies. 

	

5.8 	Permits 

The CONSULTANT will assemble and organize all necessary environmental permit applications to a 
standard acceptable by the permitting agencies. Anticipated permits include the following: 

1. Section 404 Permit 
2. Section 401 Permit 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 16 



Permit applications shall include all requested information, such as application forms, all necessary 
permit drawings, an attachment describing project location, project purpose and need, alternatives 
considered, and a summary of project impacts. The CONSULTANT shall also provide a draft transmittal 
letter for submittal of the application by the CITY. Draft applications, including supporting information, 
shall be submitted to the CITY for review and comment. Revised permit applications shall be provided to 
the CITY for signature and submittal to permitting agencies. The Consultant shall perform the necessary 
coordination to obtain the permits. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 17 



WORK ELEMENT 6.0 ROUNDABOUT CONCEPTUAL DESIGN 

WSDOT Conceptual Design Approval 

The CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the CITY and WSDOT to prepare and submit a Conceptual 
Design Approval Package of the SR 20/Cook Road roundabout to WSDOT for approval based on the 
criteria set forth in Chapter 1320 of the WSDOT Design Manual, July 2011. It is assumed that two 
conceptual design meetings with the CITY and WSDOT will be required prior to submitting for Final 
Conceptual Design Approval. Elements required at the conceptual design meetings and to be included in 
the Conceptual Design Approval package include the following. A conceptual design of the City's 
proposed roundabout at Cook Road/Murrow Street will also be prepared in this work element but will not 
be included in the WSDOT conceptual design approval package. 

	

6.1 	Accident Analysis 

The CONSULTANT shall conduct an accident analysis using the most recent three-year accident data 
provided by WSDOT to identify existing safety and operational issues. The accident analysis will be 
limited to the SR 20 mainline, from the SR 20/Patrick Street to SR 20/SR 9 intersections. The CITY shall 
coordinate with WSDOT to request the accident data. 

	

6.2 	Traffic Analysis 

The CONSULTANT shall perform a level of service analysis at the project intersections for the existing 
year 2012, year-of-opening 2014, and design year 2035. The CITY shall coordinate with WSDOT to 
request the latest mainline and intersection turning movement counts for the AM and PM peak periods. 
The CONSULTANT shall collect new AM and/or PM peak intersection turning movement counts where 
data is missing from WSDOT. The future traffic volumes for 2014 and 2035 will be estimated using the 
Skagit Council of Governments (SCOG) and City of Sedro-Woolley 2008 and 2035 models. The 
CONSULTANT shall use the aaSidra Program for evaluation of roundabout level of service, and use 
SYNCHRO/SIMTRAFFIC for evaluation of sign controlled and signalized intersections during the AM 
and PM peak periods. The traffic analysis shall evaluate both a signal and a roundabout at the 
intersections of SR 20/Cook Road and Cook Road/Murrow Street. 

The analysis shall be limited to the following intersections: 

• SR 20/Cook Road Extension 
• SR 20/F&S Grade Road 
• SR 20/West Ferry Road 
• SR 20/SR 9 
• Cook Road/Murrow Street 
• Murrow Street/F&S Grade Road 

The traffic analysis shall focus on the following elements: 

• Identify and justify traffic growth rates using the existing counts, the SCOG 2008 model, and the 
SCOG 2035 model or Sedro-Woolley model 

• Identify projected Average Daily Traffic (ADT) based on the K-factor and the future projected 
PM peak hour volumes 

• Identify turning movement volumes at the intersections analyzed 
• Identify intersection level of service, queue lengths, delay, and degree of saturation during the 

AM and PM peak period for the analyzed periods 
• Identify the impact of future capacity improvements to adjacent intersections on the operation of 

the single-lane roundabouts 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 18 



The CONSULTANT shall prepare a VISSIM Simulation for the PM Peak 2014 year of opening and 2035 
design year to be used at the project open houses (see Work Element 10.1). 

	

6.3 	Conceptual Layout of Roundabouts 

The CONSULTANT shall develop a conceptual drawing of the proposed SR 20/Cook Road roundabout. 
The conceptual drawing shall be prepared at a scale of 1"=50' full size. A conceptual design of the City's 
proposed roundabout at Cook Road/Murrow Street will also be prepared in this work element but will not 
be included in the WSDOT Conceptual Design Approval package. 

The conceptual drawing shall include the following information: 

• Existing roadway alignment and features, including surrounding buildings and fixed objects 
• Topographic information 
• Above- and below-ground utilities, including drainage facilities 
• Existing right-of-way 
• Environmental constraints (i.e., wetlands, streams, etc.) 

	

6.4 	Design Vehicle/Pedestrian/Bicycle Analysis 

The CONSULTANT shall identify the design vehicle used, the fastest path, wheel paths, and splitter 
island design used to develop the conceptual layout of the roundabouts. The CONSULTANT shall also 
identify the truck types and sizes that travel through the project area, currently and in the future, and 
identify whether the planned roundabouts are on an existing or future planned truck route. The CITY 
shall provide the CONSULTANT with the design vehicle to be used for the analysis and the types of 
trucks accessing and traveling through the project site (i.e., SR 20, Skagit Industrial Park.) 

In addition, the CONSULTANT shall identify known existing and future pedestrian or bicycle issues 
within the project limits. 

	

6.5 	Conceptual Meetings with WSDOT/CITY 

The CONSULTANT shall participate in up to two (2) conceptual meetings with WSDOT and the CITY 
to discuss the development of the roundabouts. Information obtained from the meetings will be 
documented and included in the Conceptual Design Approval Package. The CITY shall be responsible 
for scheduling the meetings and locations. 

• Meetings: Two (2) Coordination Meetings. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft and Final Conceptual Design Approval Package (two [2] bound copies and an electronic PDF of 
each). 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 19 



WORK ITEM 7.00 — ROUNDABOUT GEOMETRIC DESIGN AND 30% PLANS 

7.1 	WSDOT Geometric Design Documentation Approval 

The CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the CITY and WSDOT to prepare and submit a Geometric 
Design Documentation Package for approval by WSDOT following the approval of the conceptual design 
identified in Work Element 6.0 for the SR 20/Cook Road Roundabout. Geometric design documentation 
for the City's proposed roundabout at Cook Road/Murrow Street will also be prepared in this work 
element but will not be included in the WSDOT Geometric Design Documentation Approval package. 
The Geometric Design Documentation Package is based on the criteria set forth in Chapter 1320 of the 
WSDOT Design Manual, July 2011. The CONSULTANT shall present the draft Geometric Design 
Documentation Package to WSDOT to expedite the review process. It is assumed that two (2) review 
periods will be required by WSDOT, and that the CONSULTANT shall revise and resubmit the 
document to WSDOT after each review period. Elements of the Geometric Design Documentation 
Package shall include the following. 

7. la Channelization Plans 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare channelization plans for the proposed SR 20/Cook Road roundabout 
per the WSDOT Northwest Region's requirements for channelization plan submittals to be included in the 
WSDOT Geometric Design Documentation Approval package. 

7.1b Design Decisions/Deviations 

The CONSULTANT shall document and summarize all design decisions used in the development of the 
roundabout, including any deviations being requested. It is assumed that the CONSULTANT shall 
document and submit up to two (2) deviation requests to WSDOT during the channelization process. The 
deviation reports shall follow WSDOT's standard format for deviation requests. 

7.1c Meetings with WSDOT/CITY 

The CONSULTANT shall participate in one (1) Geometric Design Documentation meeting with WSDOT 
and the CITY to present the information included in the package and to discuss the project schedule. The 
CITY shall be responsible for scheduling the meeting and location. 

• Meetings: One (1) Meetings. 

7.1d Roundabout Geometric Data 

The CONSULTANT shall include the following geometric data in the Geometric Design Documentation 
Package: 

• Approach design speeds for all approach legs at each roundabout 
• The design vehicle used for each leg of both roundabouts 
• Table summarizing the roundabout design details, including inscribed diameter, central island 

diameter, truck apron width, and cross slope of the circulating roadway for each roundabout 
• Detailed drawing showing the fastest path for each movement, with speed and radius for each curve 
• Table summarizing stopping and intersection sight distance on each leg of both roundabouts 
• Autoturn paths showing design vehicle, WB-67, and largest oversize vehicle movements 
• Detailed drawings of the splitter islands on each leg of both roundabouts 
• Preliminary signing and illumination plans 
• Curb types used 
• Central island design 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 20 



• Bike and pedestrian design, including ADA requirements 

Deliverables: 

• Draft (two [2] iterations) and Final Geometric Design Documentation Package (two [2] bound copies 
and an electronic PDF of each). 

	

7.2 	WSDOT Intersection/Channelization Plan for Approval 

The CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the CITY and WSDOT to prepare and submit an 
Intersection/Channelization Plan for Approval following the approval of the Roundabout Geometric 
Design Documentation Package. The Intersection/Channelization Plan for Approval will be developed 
per the requirements set forth in WSDOT's Intersection/Channelization Plan for Approval Checklist. It is 
assumed that the Intersection/Channelization Plan for Approval will extend along SR 20 from SR 9 to the 
SR 20/Patrick Street roundabout. It is assumed that two (2) review periods will be required by WSDOT, 
and that the CONSULTANT shall revise and resubmit the document to WSDOT after each review period. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft (two [2] iterations) and Intersection/Channelization Plan for Approval. (11"x17" at I"=50'). 
• Mylar copy for final approval (22"x34" at 1"=50'). 

	

7.3 	30% Design Plans 

The 30% Design Plans shall consist of a vicinity map, typical roadway sections, channelization and 
signal plans, storm drainage plans, roadway plans/profiles, and preliminary construction cost estimate. 
The plans shall be prepared using AutoCAD software and Washington State Department of 
Transportation standard symbols. 

Deliverables: 

• Five (5) copies of the 30% Preliminary Design Plan Set (11"x17" at I" = 40' scale) and electronic 
PDF copy. 

• Five (5) copies of the 30% Preliminary Construction Estimate and electronic PDF copy. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 21 



WORK ELEMENT 8.0 PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND ESTIMATE (PS&E) 

PS&E Preparation 

All PS&E work shall be completed in accordance with the latest edition and amendments to the following 
documents. 

Sedro-Woolley Publications: 

1. City of Sedro-Woolley Standard Plans and Specifications 

WSDOT Publications: 

2. Local Agency Guidelines Manual (LAG) 
3. Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction (2012) 
4. Standard Plans for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction 
5. Design Manual 
6. Hydraulic Manual 
7. Plans Preparation Manual 
8. Construction Manual 
9. Amendments to the Standard Specifications and General Special Provisions 

AASHTO Publications: 

1. A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets (2011) 
2. American Association of State Highway Official policy applicable where said policy is not in conflict 

with the standards of WSDOT 

3. FHWA Roundabout Guide — 2"d  Edition 

The analyses, design, plans, specifications, and estimates performed or prepared as part of the project will 
be in English units. 

	

8.1 	Project Site Visits 

The CONSULTANT shall conduct four site visits to review the site conditions and discuss design 
considerations with CITY staff. The CONSULTANT shall combine the site visits with the coordination 
meetings identified in Work Element 2.1 when possible. 

• Meetings: Four (4) Site Visits. 

	

8.2 	70% PS&E 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare the design to a 70% completion level for the improvements along 
SR 20 from SR 9 to F&S Grade Road, new Murrow Street from SR 9 to F&S Grade Road, and the Cook 
Road Extension to SR 20. The design will utilize the existing Cook Road for parking and access to 
Tesarik Park. Review comments shall be responded to and incorporated as directed by the CITY Project 
Manager. The 70% design shall include the following elements prepared by the CONSULTANT: 

• Cover SheetiVicinity Map (1 sheet) 
• Legend/Abbreviation/Contact Sheet (1 sheet) 
• Horizontal Control Plan (2 sheets) 
• Typical sections (6 sheets) 
• Site Prep Sheets (10 sheets) 
• Erosion Control Sheets (10 sheets) 
• Paving and drainage plan (17 sheets each) 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 22 



• Roadway profiles (8 sheets stacked 2 high) 
• Storm drainage profiles (8 sheets stacked 2 high) 
• Sanitary sewer plan and profile (4 sheets stacked 2 high) 
• Roundabout grading plans & profiles (16 sheets) — two roundabouts 
• Roundabout details (3 sheets) — two roundabouts 
• Miscellaneous details (4 sheets) 
• Driveway plan/profiles (2 sheets) 
• Channelization plans/details (10 sheets) 
• Landscaping Plans/Details (10 sheets) 
• Signal Plans/Details (8 sheets/2 signals) 
• Signing and illumination plans/details (10 sheets) 
• Contract specifications 
• Preliminary construction cost estimate 

Deliverables: 

• 5 copies of the 70% Preliminary Design Plan set (I 1"x17" at I" = 40' scale) 
• 5 copies of the 70% Contract Specifications 
• 5 copies of the 70% Preliminary Construction Estimate 

Assumptions: 

• The CITY will provide the CONSULTANT with sanitary sewer as-builts within the project limits. 
• The CITY will provide the CONSULTANT with WSDOT signal as-builts for the SR 9/SR 20 and 

SR 9/W Ferry Street intersections. 
• The 30% review comments will be compiled by the CITY into one document, and conflicting 

comments will be worked out by the CITY prior to submitting the comments to the CONSULTANT. 

8.3 	90% PS&E 

The CONSULTANT shall bring the design to a 90% completion level. The 70% review comments shall 
be responded to and incorporated as directed by the CITY Project Manager. The 90% design shall 
include the following elements prepared by the CONSULTANT: 

• Cover Sheet/Vicinity Map (1 sheet) 
• Legend/Abbreviation/Contact Sheet (1 sheet) 
• Horizontal Control Plan (2 sheets) 
• Typical sections (6 sheets) 
• Site Prep Sheets (10 sheets) 
• Erosion Control Sheets (10 sheets) 
• Paving and drainage plan (17 sheets each) 
• Roadway profiles (8 sheets stacked 2 high) 
• Storm drainage profiles (8 sheets stacked 2 high) 
• Sanitary sewer plan and profile (4 sheets stacked 2-high) 
• Roundabout grading plans & profiles (16 sheets) — two roundabouts 
• Roundabout details (3 sheets) — two roundabouts 
• Miscellaneous details (4 sheets) 
• Driveway plan/profiles (2 sheets) 
• Channelization plans/details (10 sheets) 
• Landscaping Plans/Details (10 sheets) 
• Signal Plans/Details (8 sheets/2 signals) 
• Signing and illumination plans/details (10 sheets) 
• Traffic Control Staging Plans (8 sheets) 
• Contract documents, specifications, and cost estimate 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 23 



Deliverables: 

• 5 copies of the 90% Design Plan Set (11"x17" at 1" = 40' scale) 
• 5 copies of the 90% Contract Specifications 
• 5 copies of the 90% Construction Estimate 

Assumptions: 

• The 70% review comments will be compiled by the CITY into one document, and conflicting 
comments will be worked out by the CITY prior to submitting the comments to the CONSULTANT. 

8.4 	Final Contract Documents (100% Completion) 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare the following in accordance with the CITY's/WSDOT's review 
comments from the 90% final design and coordination meeting and in accordance with regulatory agency 
permit conditions: 

* Modifications and/or revisions in response to CITY/WSDOT review comments 

* Final design of project elements 

* Special provisions and listing of CITY standard specifications, with fill-ins, to be incorporated in 
the construction contract documents 

* Preparation of a final (100% completion) list of bid items, quantities, and a construction cost 
estimate for a set of signed and reproducible construction contract documents 

The CONSULTANT shall assemble all plan sheets, general and special provisions, cost estimates, and 
associated documentation for submittal as an Ad Ready PS&E package. 

Deliverables: 

• 1 copy (11"x17" at 1" = 40' scale) of the final Ad Ready PS&E package stamped by a licensed 
professional engineer in the state of Washington and electronic PDF copy. 

Assumptions: 

• The 90% review comments will be compiled by the CITY into one document, and conflicting 
comments will be worked out by the CITY prior to submitting the comments to the CONSULTANT. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 24 



WORK ELEMENT 9.0 UTILITY COORDINATION 

	

9.1 	Utility Coordination 

Franchise utility coordination will be the responsibility of the CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT will 
arrange the utility coordination meetings. It is anticipated that three (3) coordination meetings will be 
held. The CITY shall secure the meeting locations. The CONSULTANT shall prepare and distribute the 
meeting agenda and meeting minutes to all participants. Meetings will be combined with site visits or 
progress meetings if possible. 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare and send a notice containing the scope and schedule of the project to 
all public and private utility agencies impacted by the CITY's project. The CONSULTANT shall gather 
available existing as-built information from all franchise utilities within the project limits and the CITY 
will provide the as-built information for the sanitary sewer within the project limits. 

The CONSULTANT is responsible to acquire the available existing utility as-built information from the 
franchise utility companies. The CITY shall provide as-builts of City owned utilities. 

Deliverables: 

• Meeting Agenda and Minutes (3 meetings total). 

	

9.2 	Utility Potholing/Relocations 

It is anticipated that potholing of utilities will be necessary to determine locations for developing the 
design. The CITY shall be responsible for potholing services which include surface locates by One Call. 
Measure-downs for vertical depth shall be provided by the CONSULTANT. Hubs shall be placed in the 
field by the CITY to allow for survey of the horizontal pothole locations by the CONSULTANT. For 
estimating purposes, the CONSULTANT assumes twelve (12) locations may be potholed. The 
CONSULTANT shall determine the extent to which the proposed improvements impact the existing 
utilities, and shall either revise the design to avoid the conflicts or suggest alternatives. The 
CONSULTANT shall also indicate required adjustments/relocations and revise the cost estimate to reflect 
the adjustments/relocations. 

The CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the utility companies to identify potential utility relocations 
based on the PROJECT design. Utility companies will be asked to commit to a time schedule for 
relocation and/or new facility installation to avoid conflicts with the project Contractor's schedule. 

Deliverables: 

• Survey of pothole locations (See Work Element 3.0). 
• Draft submittals of half-sized plans to utility companies (four (4) 11"x17" sets for each review) for 

the 30%, 70%, and 90% design completions. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 25 



WORK ELEMENT 10.0 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

The goal of public involvement is to provide the public with information about the status of the project 
and to provide a forum for the community and affected property owners to suggest input for the 
development of the final design documents. 

10.1 	Project Open House 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare for and attend up to two (2) public open houses to be held at the City 
of Sedro-Woolley. The CITY shall secure the meeting location and refreshments for the open houses. 
The CITY shall prepare the open house invitations and mail them to the community to inform them of the 
proposed improvements. The CONSULTANT shall prepare the displays to be used at the open house. 
The displays shall be mounted on foam core board and shall include the following: 

• One display showing the project vicinity map. (Open Houses 1 and 2) 

• One display showing the paving limits for the PROJECT improvements. (Open Houses 1 and 2) 

• PM Peak Hour VISSIM traffic simulation showing the 2014 year of opening and 2035 design 
year traffic volumes. (Open Houses 1 and 2) 

• One display showing the preliminary traffic control plans for the construction of the roundabout 
and improvements at SR 20/F&S Grade Road. (Open House 2 ONLY) 

The CONSULTANT shall attend and participate in each open house to assist the CITY with questions 
from the public. 

10.2 Property Owner Meetings 

All coordination with the adjacent property owners shall be conducted by the CITY. The CITY shall 
provide information relevant to the PROJECT design to the CONSULTANT. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 26 



WORK ELEMENT 11.0 BID SUPPORT/CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

	

11.1 	Bid Support 

The CONSULTANT shall provide bid support and assist the CITY in answering questions from 
prospective bidders during the bid process. After the construction contract has been awarded, the 
CONSULTANT shall attend the preconstruction conference. 

	

11.2 	Pre-Bid Meeting 

The CONSULTANT shall attend a pre-bid conference with potential bidders to assist the CITY in 
responding to questions and inquiries. 

11.3 Bid Addendums 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare addendums to the contract documents during the bid period. This task 
is limited to 24 hours. 

11.4 Bid Review and Pre-Award Letter 

The CONSULTANT shall review the proposal of the apparent low bidder and check references to assist 
the CITY in awarding the Contract. The CONSULTANT shall review the unit bid costs in the proposal, 
compare them with unit costs of other bidders, and note whether any major discrepancies are present. 
The CONSULTANT shall call the references listed on the apparent low bidders "Statement of 
Qualifications". The CONSULTANT shall prepare a list of questions to ask the references, and 
document their responses. The responses shall be sent to the CITY for their review. 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare a pre-award letter and a letter of recommendation to award a contract 
to the lowest responsible bidder. 

Deliverables: 

• Attend and participate in pre-bid conference. 
• Attend and participate in pre-construction meetings. 
• Prepare response to bidder questions and bid document addenda. 
• Prepare Reference Check Forms. 
• Prepare Pre-award letter. 
• Prepare Letter of recommendation to award bid. 

DAVID EVANS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 	 Exhibit A-1, Page 27 



Exhibit A-1.1 

City of Sedro Woolley 
SR 20, Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project 

PS&E 

Associated Earth Sciences, Inc. 

Geotechnical Scope of Services 

Geotechnical Investigation and Report 

The CONSULTANT will prepare a Geotechnical Report for the PROJECT. The report shall include the 
evaluation of the existing conditions, potential groundwater issues, earthwork recommendations, design 
of the roadway pavement section, associated structures in the right-of-way, and infiltration rates for 
potential water quality areas. Maximum use shall be made of existing soil and geologic information. 

Project Management 

The CONSULTANT will attend up to two project meetings in the Bellevue office of the Civil Designer. 
This task also includes project coordination and management of subcontractors and CONSULTANT 
personnel. 

Permits 

The CONSULTANT will coordinate with the City of Sedro Woolley and the Washington State 
Department of Transportation (WSDOT) to acquire permits for work in the right-of-way (ROW), if 
needed. 

Geotechnical Explorations 

The CONSULTANT will review readily available existing information including published geologic data 
and geotechnical information available for projects located within the immediate vicinity of the 
alignment. In addition the CONSULTANT will conduct a geologic reconnaissance to make observations 
along the alignment and map surface and geologic features, which could be pertinent to the geotechnical 
components of roadway construction. During this phase of the work, the CONSULTANT will establish 
access requirements for exploration equipment and locate areas where detailed subsurface exploration is 
needed. 

Upon completion of the reconnaissance, the CONSULTANT will initiate the subsurface exploration. The 
work will include excavation of five (5) exploration borings along the proposed alignment, in areas that 
do not require traffic control. The borings will be drilled using track mounted equipment to depths 
ranging from 5 to 15 feet to determine the soil profile. The exploration borings will be performed under 
the full-time observation of an engineer or geologist who shall maintain detailed records of the conditions 
encountered in the borings and obtain representative samples for additional laboratory testing and 
classification. 

Based upon the results of the explorations the CONSULTANT shall provide a summary Memorandum of 
the subsurface conditions encountered. The Memorandum will include a general description of the site 
conditions, and the general geology of the area summarizing our subsurface findings. 

Deliverables: 

• Summary Memorandum of the Subsurface Conditions Encountered -(two (2) bound copies and an 
electronic PDF) 

I of 3 



Infiltration 

Based upon the information collected in the explorations, the CONSULTANT shall develop a plan to 
perform infiltration tests in up to two selected areas. The testing will be performed at shallow depths 
using conventional excavation equipment. The methodology will be in accordance with the Department of 
Ecology PIT Test. We anticipate two areas for exploring the feasibility of infiltration. One would be 
located near the south end of the proposed baseball field parking lot. The other would be in the north area 
west of Bingham Park contained in the WSDOT right-of-way. 

Roadway Coring 

The CONSULTANT will place up to four (4) cores in the travel lane of the existing SR 20 roadway. The 
coring will be for the sole purpose of determining the thickness of the roadway surface section for 
demolition purposes. The coring will require the closing of a lane of traffic. This task will only be 
required if WSDOT is not performing the work. 

Design 

Upon completion of the explorations, the CONSULTANT shall perform engineering analyses to develop 
geotechnical recommendations for design and construction of this project. Included in this task are the 
laboratory testing needed to establish project design parameters. Laboratory testing will include: 

• Moisture (1 0) 

• Grain size distribution (2) 

• Atterberg limits (2) 

• Modified proctor (2) 

• California bearing ratio (2) 

Deliverables: 

Draft Report 

The analyses and recommendations will be included in a draft report for review by the City. The report 
will contain results of the analysis with the following information: 

• Soil and groundwater conditions; 
• Identifying existing comprehensible soils and uncontrolled fills; 
• Materials likely to be encountered in excavations; 
• Difficulty of excavations; 
• Temporary excavations and shoring; 
• Need for and methods for providing subsurface drainage; 
• Criteria for site preparation, fill placement, and compaction; 
• Suitability of on-site materials for use as structural fill; 
• Inclination of cut and fill slopes and benching requirements; 
• Erosion control; 
• Preparation of stormwater facilities; 
• Infiltration rates for up to two facilities 
• Thickness of existing pavement (if required); 
• Recommendations for thickness of new pavements, (pervious and impervious) 

2 of 3 



The results of the studies, along with the recommendations for design and construction, will be presented 
in a DRAFT geotechnical report. The Consultant shall deliver 5 copies of a draft report for review by the 
City and pdf copy. 

Final Report 

The CONSULTANT shall incorporate City review comments as applicable into a final report and deliver 
5 copies of a final report and pdf copy. 

3 of 3 



Exhibit A-1.2 

City of Sedro Woolley 
SR 20, Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project 

PS&E 

Widener & Associates 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROCESS AND PERMITTING 

The City of Sedro Woolly is planning the Cook Road/SR20 intersection upgrade. The 
Scope of Work is intended to complete the NEPA documentation and federal permitting 
for the project. It is anticipated that the following environmental documentation will be 
required: 

• Wetland Delineation 
• Section 106 Documentation 
• Section Seven Documentation 
• Noise Report 
• 4f Documentation 
• ECS 

106 Report (Cultural and Historic Resources) 
This work would include the preparation of the Section 106 report in accordance with the 
State Historic Preservation Office standards and guidelines. The work will include the 
following subtasks. 

1. Pertinent literature on the archaeology, ethnography, and history of the project 
area will be reviewed to determine the existence of archaeological sites and to 
refine the probability of archaeological resources and traditional cultural places in 
the project areas. 

2. Widener will maintain contact with the local tribes through FEMA for any 
information on historic Indian use of the project area. 

3. A systematic field reconnaissance will be conducted to identify previously 
recorded and/or unrecorded archaeological sites for the proposed project where 
ground-disturbing activities are expected to take place. Field reconnaissance will 
consist of the traverse of pedestrian transects at varying intervals, depending on 
terrain throughout the proposed project area. Shovel probes (digging a hole with 
a shovel) will be excavated, as deep as feasible, and in areas expected to have a 
high probability for cultural resources. Shovel probes will be augmented through 
auger probes to explore the deepest possible deposits. Shovel probes will be 
screened in highly probable areas and in soil matrixes too dense to identify small 
chipping debris. 

1 of 6 



4. 	All new sites will be mapped, photographed, and recorded on Washington State 
Archeological Inventory forms and submitted to the state Office of Archeological 
and Historic Preservation (OAHP) for Smithsonian numbers. Every effort will be 
made to include Tribal cultural resources personnel in assisting the field effort. 
Rights-of-entry will be provided by the City. 

Noise Study 
The purpose of the Traffic Noise Report is to evaluate traffic noise levels at sensitive 
receptors near the project that would be potentially affected by traffic noise and to 
identify potential mitigation measures. The Traffic Noise Report will be developed in 
accordance with the Washington State Department of Transportation's Environmental 
Procedures Manual. 

1. Sound Level Measurements: 
After review of the proposed project alternatives the Consultant shall visit the 
project area to identify potentially sensitive noise receivers and to take 
measurements of existing sound levels. The Consultant will measure existing 
noise levels during the peak hours to be used in calibrating the noise model. 
Measurements will be undertaken in accordance with WSDOT and FHWA 
guidelines and will be made with a Type 1 sound level meter. During these 
measurements, sources of existing noise and topographical features will be noted 
and traffic speeds and vehicle numbers and mix will be noted. 

2. Construction Noise Impact Evaluation: 
The noise analysis will evaluate potential short-term impacts of noise from 
construction activities. Construction noise on nearby sensitive receptors will be 
evaluated based on estimates published by the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) of maximum noise levels of typical construction equipment in 
conjunction with simple distance attenuation. Computer modeling of construction 
noise levels will not be performed. 

3. Traffic Noise Impact Evaluation: 
The Consultant will evaluate traffic noise impacts using the FHWA Traffic Noise 
Model (TNM) to estimate future traffic noise levels for the worst-case build 
alternative. The worst-case scenario will be selected from among the build 
alternatives, and will be chosen based on expected future traffic volumes and the 
location of the alignment relative to sensitive receivers. The noise modeling will 
predict PM peak-hour Leq noise levels from traffic at a maximum of fifteen (15) 
receptor locations that could be affected by the proposed project and will consider 
existing conditions and design year conditions. Modeling to calculate noise 
contour lines is not included. 

4. Mitigation Analysis: 
The Consultant will identify mitigation measures to reduce noise levels during 
construction. If predicted long-term traffic noise levels from operation of the 
project would cause noise impacts, mitigation measures will be developed in 
cooperation with the lead agency and design engineers. Mitigation analysis, if 
required, will include evaluation of the effectiveness and general size and location 
of natural and man-made noise barriers using the TNM model. 

2 of 6 



Deliverables 

1. Three copies of a draft Traffic Noise Analysis Report for review by City with 
accompanying draft special provisions if required. 

2. Three copies of a draft Traffic Noise Analysis Report, incorporating the City's 
comments, for submittal to FHWA/WSDOT. 

3. Three copies of a revised draft Traffic Noise Analysis Report, incorporating 
comments by FHWAJWSDOT, for submittal for approval. 

Biological Assessment 

A Biological Assessment (BA) will be prepared for the preferred alternative in 
accordance with WSDOT guidelines. The following subtasks will be undertaken in 
preparation of the project BA. 

1. Collect available documentation concerning the project activities and pertinent 
biological information. Biological information will include priority habitat and 
species data from the Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife along 
with rare plant and high-quality ecosystem data from WDNR. This information 
will be reviewed and a consultation strategy will be developed. 

2. Initiate informal consultation with United States Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) and National Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) 
Fisheries by preparing written requests for lists of endangered, threatened, 
proposed, and candidate species. 

3. Conduct a field reconnaissance to investigate on-site habitat conditions. 
4. Make telephone contact with the appropriate resource agency staff for input on 

species occurrence, habitat use, and potential project impacts. 
5. Prepare a draft BA addressing listed species, proposed species, candidate species, 

species of concern, and critical habitat. The BA will include a project description, 
a list of species, a description of the species and their habitat, an analysis of 
project effects, and mitigation recommendations. 

6. Provide the draft BA to the City for review and approval. 
7. Revise the BA, as appropriate, and submit the final BA to USFWS and NOAA 

Fisheries for their review, possible negotiation of mitigation measures, and 
concurrence. 

8. Concurrent with Endangered Species Act (ESA) consultation, the Consultant will 
coordinate with NOAA Fisheries to meet Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) 
requirements under the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and 
Management Act (MSA), as amended 1996. In doing so, the Consultant will 
provide NOAA Fisheries with the BA and a cover letter requesting the initiation 
of consultation, stating the effect determination(s), reasoning behind them, and 
proposed mitigation measures if any. 

9. If NOAA Fisheries responds with advisory EFH conservation recommendations, 
the Consultant will coordinate with the City and FT-WA to jointly discuss the 
recommendations. 

3 of 6 



10. Formally address and respond to NOAA Fisheries' recommendations within the 
regulated time frame. 

Deliverables 

1. Three copies of a draft BA for review by City with accompanying draft special 
provisions if required. 

2. Three copies of a draft BA, incorporating the City's comments, for submittal to 
FHWA/WSDOT. 

3. Three copies of a revised draft BA, incorporating comments by FHWA/WSDOT, 
for submittal to NOAA Fisheries and USFWS. 

4. Three copies of a final BA that incorporates NOAA Fisheries and USFWS 
comments. 

Environmental Justice Survey 

Services required to complete an environmental justice (EJ) analysis includes the 
following main components: 

1. Collecting demographic data for the project area using local data sources and the 
US Census Data. 

2. Identifying any environmental justice populations in the area (minority or low-
income populations). 

3. Review public outreach activities to ensure potential EJ populations are offered an 
opportunity to participate in project planning and decision-making. 

4. Identifying any potential disproportionate effects to EJ populations from project 
activities and identifying how impacts could not be avoided or minimized and 
what mitigation measures could be implemented. 

Deliverables 

1. Three copies of the draft EJ documentation will be provided. 
2. Three copies of the final EJ documentation will be provided incorporating City 

comments. 
3. Three copies of the final EJ documentation will be provided incorporating 

WSDOT/FHWA comments if required. It is assumed that WSDOT/FHWA 
comments will not alter the basic conclusion of the documentation or require 
further alternative studies. 

Wetland Delineation 

The purpose of the wetland report is to identify jurisdictional wetland within the project 
corridor and provide mitigation if necessary. The Consultant shall develop, implement, 
and complete field surveys to identify and delineate wetlands in the project area using the 
appropriate methods described in the Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual 

4 of 6 



(Environmental Laboratory 1987), Wetlands Research, Technical Report Y-87-1, January 
1987. The Consultant shall delineate wetlands within 200 feet of the project area. 

The Consultant shall prepare a comprehensive report that includes detailed wetland maps, 
documentation of survey methods, results, potential impacts from project actions, and 
recommendations for wetland protection and mitigation. The report also shall contain 
appropriate forms for wetland identification, delineation and function assessment 
required by the Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). The information in this report is 
intended for use in compliance with Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. The final report 
and associated documents shall be in a format acceptable to the USACE. 

Delineated wetland boundaries shall be identified on the ground with flagging. The 
delineated wetland boundaries shall be mapped with accuracy acceptable to the USACE. 

Deliverables 

1. Three copies of a draft Wetland Delineation Report for review by City with 
accompanying draft special provisions if required. 

2. Three copies of a draft Wetland Delineation Report, incorporating the City's 
comments, for submittal to USACE. 

3. Three copies of a revised draft Wetland Delineation Report, incorporating 
comments by USACE, for submittal for approval. 

Section 4f Evaluation 

This work will include the coordination and preparation of a programmatic section 4f 
document as outlined in the Department of Transportation Federal Highway 
Administration Programmatic Section 4(f) Evaluation and Approval for FHWA 
Projects. The work will include a preparation of the 4f document and an executive 
summary for the NEPA document. 

Deliverables 
1. Three copies of the Draft 4f Statement for review by County 
2. Three copies of the revised Draft 4f Statement incorporating County comments 
3. Three copies of the Final 4f Statement will be prepared incorporating 

FHWA/WSDOT comments 

Environmental Classification Summary 

Services will be provided to prepare the Environmental Classification Summary (ECS) 
form by reviewing technical reports related to the project, applying project-specific data 
to the form and coordinating approval for the project by both WSDOT and FHWA. 

Deliverables 

1. Three copies of the draft ECS will be provided. 

5 of 6 



2. Three copies of the final ECS documentation will be provided incorporating City 
comments. 

3. Three copies of the final ECS documentation will be provided incorporating 
WSDOT/FHWA comments if required. It is assumed that WSDOT/FHWA 
comments will not alter the basic conclusion of the documentation or require 
further alternative studies. 

Permits 

Widener will assemble and organize all necessary environmental permit applications to a 
standard acceptable by the permitting agencies. Anticipated permits include the 
following: 

1. Section 404 Permit 
2. Section 401 Permit 

Permit applications shall include all requested information, such as application forms, all 
necessary permit drawings, an attachment describing project location, project purpose 
and need, alternatives considered, and a summary of project impacts. The Consultant 
Widener shall also provide a draft transmittal letter for submittal of the application by the 
CITY. Draft applications, including supporting information, shall be submitted to the 
CITY for review and comment. Revised permit applications shall be provided to the 
CITY for signature and submittal to permitting agencies. The Consultant shall perform 
the necessary coordination to obtain the permits. 

Project Schedule:  

It is anticipated the NEPA approval will be obtained by August 15th  of 2012 and the 
necessary permits will be completed January l sx  of 2013 

6 of 6 



EXHIBIT A-1.3 

SKAGIT SURVEYORS & ENGINEERS 
SCOPE OF WORK 

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY AND BASEMAP PREPARATION 

Data Collection 

The CONSULTANT will research CITY and WSDOT records to recover the monumentation controlling 
the site. The CONSULTANT will research and collect existing roadway, right-of-way, and utility 
information from the CITY, WSDOT, and respective utility agencies for inclusion in the mapping. 

Horizontal and Vertical Control Network 

The CONSULTANT shall establish local horizontal and vertical control points throughout the project 
limits for the purpose of performing surveying services. Horizontal and vertical control points shall be 
based upon at least two local control monuments which will then be referenced on the final drawings. 
These monuments shall serve as the basis of horizontal coordinates and control of the site. 

The CONSULTANT shall locate and set reference points outside of the proposed construction area for 
visible street survey monuments along the street corridor. 

Establish Road Centerline Alignments and Rights-of-Way (Base Map) 

The CONSULTANT shall establish the existing centerlines and rights-of-way within the project limits for 
preparation of the right-of-way base map for this project. Parcel lines for adjacent properties will be 
shown as near as possible to their actual locations, but will be solely based upon public records and maps. 
No additional survey work is proposed to perform boundary surveying on any parcel, unless requested at 
a later date. This base map will be used to validate the location of existing improvements located by the 
topographic survey. The base map will show located street monuments and property corner markers 
found that are used to create the map. 

Topographic Survey 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare a project topographic base map. This base map will incorporate CITY 
and franchise utility 'as-built' information, right-of-ways and road centerlines, property lines, and other 
existing features within the project limits including: 

a. Pavement limits k.  Natural gas valves, meters, and 
b. Curbs and sidewalks warning markers 
c. Driveways and curb cuts 1. Cable TV pedestals 
d. Buildings m. Street lighting 
e. Fences n. Signage 
f. Storm drainage structures with o.  Utility poles 

pipe invert elevations p.  Overhead wires, guy wires 
g. Sanitary sewer manholes with q.  Meters 

pipe invert elevations r.  Road channelization 
h. Water valves, fire hydrants, and s.  Trees (6" or larger in diam) 

associated features with nut t.  Street marking 
elevations u.  Pothole Locations (see Work 

i.  

j.  

Electrical power vaults and 
associated surface features 
Telephone manholes and 
pedestals 

Element 9.2) 

1 of 3 



The project area surveyed will be 20 feet beyond existing right-of-way and to the face of existing 
structures within 100 feet of the proposed improvements to gather information in advance of potential 
right-of-way acquisition for the project. 

The CONSULTANT will notify the CITY and utility companies to arrange to have the locations of 
existing utilities surface marked and to request utility as-builts for the areas where improvements are 
planned. The CONSULTANT shall survey these locations as marked and incorporate them in the base 
mapping. The CITY will provide a list of utility companies within the existing rights-of-way. The 
CONSULTANT shall contact the utility companies. 

The CONSULTANT will prepare the final topographic survey map with a one-foot contour interval. The 
mapping shall be plotted at a scale of one inch equals twenty feet (1"=20') a with one-foot contour 
interval. 

Deliverables: 

• Electronic copy of the topographic base map, data points, DTM in AutoCAD. 

Site Photography 

The CONSULTANT owns a digital camera system to compliment our laser scanning systems. The 
system consists of a seven-mega pixel digital camera and allows one to set the camera's focal point to the 
same focal point as the scanner so you can overlay the photos on the scans with little to no parallax. The 
camera system allows one to create digital cube maps and .rnov files. While this service may or may not 
be required, the CONSULTANT proposes to use this equipment and provide images of the route, taking a 
series of scanned photos along the PROJECT route at 300-foot intervals. Camera setups will not be 
opposite each other, but will be staggered to where the setups are no more than 50 feet apart within the 
project limits. The CONSULTANT will also provide assistance and software to the CITY for their use in 
viewing the files. 

To achieve full coverage, each intersection will be photographed with the camera set in each of the four 
corners of the intersection, providing a view from four separate directions. Images will be processed and 
pasted together, giving a seamless 360° view. 

Right-of-Way Exhibits 

Parcel Exhibits 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare parcel exhibits for each affected individual parcel. It is estimated that 
parcel exhibits are required for eight (8) total parcels, of which six (6) will require both right-of-way 
acquisition exhibits and TCA exhibits. 

Legal Descriptions 

The CONSULTANT shall provide descriptions of the fee simple acquisitions or the easement 
acquisitions. The CONSULTANT will include area calculations and right-of-way dimensions with the 
parcel descriptions. It is estimated that legal descriptions are required for eight (8) total parcels. 

Deliverables: 
• Right-of-Way Plan Map (one [I] total, full-size [22"x34"]). 
• Draft and Final Parcel Exhibits (eight [8] total on 8-1/2" by 11" paper). 
• Draft and Final Legal Descriptions (eight [8] total on 8-1/2" by 11" paper). 

2 of 3 



Assumptions 

Assumptions for the project include the following: 

- Horizontal and Vertical Datums will be based on City of Sedro-Woolley horizontal control points for 
Horizontal = Washington State Plane Coordinate System NAD 83/91 and Vertical = NAVD-88. 

- The CONSULTANT will contract with a private company to locate the buried utilities. 

3 of 3 



Exhibit C 
Electronic Exchange of Engineering and Other Data 

In this Exhibit the agency, as applicable, is to provide a description of the format and standards the 
consultant is to use in preparing electronic files for transmission to the agency. The format and standards to 
be provided may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

I. Surveying, Roadway Design & Plans Preparation Section 

A. Survey Data 

B. Roadway Design Files 

C. Computer Aided Drafting Files 

D. Specify the Agency's Right to Review Product with the Consultant 

E. Specify the Electronic Deliverables to Be Provided to the Agency 

F. Specify What Agency Furnished Services and Information Is to Be Provided 

II. Any Other Electronic Files to Be Provided 

III. Methods to Electronically Exchange Data 

A. Agency Software Suite 

B. Electronic Messaging System 

C. File Transfers Format 

DOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit C 
Revised 6/05 



Exhibit D-2 
Payment (Cost Plus a Fixed Fee) 

The CONSULTANT shall be paid by the AGENCY for completed work and services rendered under this 
AGREEMENT as provided hereinafter. Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed or 
services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the 
work specified in Section II, "Scope of Work." The CONSULTANT shall conform to all applicable portions of 
48 CFR Part 31. 

A. 	Actual Costs: Payment for all consulting services for this PROJECT shall be on the basis of the 
CONSULTANT'S actual cost plus a fixed fee. The actual cost shall include direct salary cost, 
overhead, direct non-salary costs, and fixed fee. 

1. Direct Salary Costs: The Direct Salary Cost is the direct salary paid to principals, 
professional, technical, and clerical personnel for the time they are productively 
engaged in work necessary to fulfill the terms of this AGREEMENT. The 
CONSULTANT shall maintain support data to verify the direct salary costs billed 
to the AGENCY. 

2. Overhead Costs: Overhead Costs are those costs other than direct costs, which are 
included as such on the books of the CONSULTANT in the normal everyday 
keeping of its books. Progress payments shall be made at the rate shown in the 
heading of this AGREEMENT under "Overhead Progress Payment Rate." Total 
overhead payment shall be based on the method shown in the heading of the 
AGREEMENT. The two options are explained as follows: 

a. Fixed Rate: If this method is indicated in the heading of the AGREEMENT the 
AGENCY agrees to reimburse the CONSULTANT for overhead at the 
percentage rate shown. This rate shall not change during the life of the 
AGREEMENT. 

b. Actual Cost: If this method is indicated in the heading of the AGREEMENT the 
AGENCY agrees to reimburse the CONSULTANT the actual overhead costs 
verified by audit, up to the Maximum Total Amount Payable, authorized under 
this AGREEMENT, when accumulated with all other Actual Costs. 

A summary of the CONSULTANTS cost estimate and the overhead 
computation is shown in Exhibit "E" attached hereto and by this reference made 
part of this AGREEMENT. When an Actual Cost method is used, the 
CONSULTANT (prime and all sub-consultants) will submit to the AGENCY 
within six (6) months after the end of each firm's fiscal year, an overhead 
schedule in the format required by the AGENCY (cost category, dollar 
expenditures, etc.) for the purpose of adjusting the overhead rate for billing 
purposes. It shall be used for the computation of progress payments during the 
following year and for retroactively adjusting the previous year's overhead cost 
to reflect the actual rate. 

DOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit D-2 
Revised 6/08 



Failure to supply this information by either the prime CONSULTANT or any of their sub-
consultants shall cause the AGENCY to withhold payment of the billed overhead costs until 
such time as the required information is received and an overhead rate for billing purposes is 
approved. 

The AGENCY, STATE and/or the Federal Government may perform an audit of the 
CONSULTANT'S books and records at any time during regular business hours to determine 
the actual overhead rate, if they so desire. 

3. Direct Non-Salary Costs: Direct Non-Salary Costs will be reimbursed at the Actual Cost to 
the CONSULTANT. These charges may include, but are not limited to, the following 
items: travel, printing, long distance telephone, supplies, computer charges and sub-
consultant costs. 

a. Air or train travel will be reimbursed only to economy class levels unless 
otherwise approved by the AGENCY. The CONSULTANT shall comply with 
the rules and regulations regarding travel costs (excluding air, train, and rental 
car costs) in accordance with the AGENCY'S Travel Rules and Procedures. 
However, air, train, and rental car costs shall be reimbursed in accordance with 
48 CFR Part 31.205-46 "Travel Cost 

b. The billing for Direct Non-Salary Costs shall include an itemized listing of 
the charges directly identifiable wh the PROJECT. 

c. The CONSULTANT shall maintain the original supporting documents in their 
office. Copies of the original supporting documents shall be supplied to the 
AGENCY_ upon request. 

d. All above charges must be necessary for the services provided under this 
AGREEMENT. 

4. Fixed Fee: The Fixed Fee, which represents the CONSULTANT'S profit, is shown in the 
heading of this AGREEMENT under Fixed Fee. This amount does not include any 
additional Fixed Fee, which could be authorized from the Management Reserve Fund. This 
fee is based on the Scope of Work defined in this AGREEMENT and the estimated person-
hours required to perform the stated Scope of Work. In the event the CONSULTANT 
enters into a supplemental AGREEMENT for additional work, the supplemental 
AGREEMENT may include provisions for the added costs and an appropriate additional 
fee. The Fixed Fee will be prorated and paid monthly in proportion to the percentage of 
work completed by the CONSULTANT and reported in the Monthly Progress Reports 
accompanying the billings. Any portion of the Fixed Fee earned but not previously paid in 
the progress payments will be covered in the final payment, subject to the provisions of 
Section IX entitled "Termination of Agreement." 

5. Management Reserve Fund: The AGENCY may desire to establish a Management Reserve 
Fund to provide the Agreement Administrator with the flexibility to authorize additional 
funds to the AGREEMENT for allowable unforeseen costs, or reimbursing the 
CONSULTANT for additional work beyond that already defined in this AGREEMENT. 
Such authorization(s) shall be in writing and shall not exceed 



the lesser of $100,000 or 10% of the Total Amount Authorized as shown in the heading 
of this AGREEMENT. The amount included for the Management Reserve Fund is 
shown in the heading of this AGREEMENT. This fund may not be replenished. Any 
changes requiring additional costs in excess of the Management Reserve Fund shall be 
made in accordance with Section XIV, "Extra Work."6. Maximum Total Amount 
Payable: The Maximum Total Amount Payable by the AGENCY to the 
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT shall not exceed the amount shown in the 
heading of this AGREEMENT. The Maximum Total Amount Payable is comprised of 
the Total Amount Authorized, and the Management Reserve Fund. The Maximum 
Total Amount Payable does not include payment for Extra Work as stipulated in 
Section XIV, "Extra Work." No minimum amount payable is guaranteed under this 
AGREEMENT. 

13. Monthly Progress Payments: The CONSULTANT may submit billings to the AGENCY for 
reimbursement of Actual Costs plus the calculated overhead and fee on a monthly basis during the 
progress of the work. Such billings shall be in a format approved by the AGENCY and 
accompanied by the monthly progress reports required under Section III, "General Requirements" 
of this AGREEMENT. The billings will be supported by an itemized listing for each item including 
Direct Salary, Direct Non-Salary, and allowable Overhead Costs to which will be added the 
prorated Fixed Fee. To provide a means of verifying the billed salary costs for CONSULTANT 
employees, the AGENCY may conduct employee interviews. These interviews may consist of 
recording the names, titles, salary rates, and present duties of those employees performing work on 
the PROJECT at the time of the interview. 

C. Final Payment: Final Payment of any balance due the CONSULTANT of the gross amount earned 
will be made promptly upon its verification by the AGENCY after the completion of the work 
under this AGREEMENT, contingent upon receipt of all PS&E, plans, maps, notes, reports, 
electronic data and other related documents which are required to be furnished under this 
AGREEMENT. Acceptance of such Final Payment by the CONSULTANT shall constitute a 
release of all claims for payment, which the CONSULTANT may have against the AGENCY 
unless such claims are specifically reserved in writing and transmitted to the AGENCY by the 
CONSULTANT prior to its acceptance. Said Final Payment shall not, however, be a bar to any 
claims that the AGENCY may have against the CONSULTANT or to any remedies the AGENCY 
may pursue with respect to such claims. 

The payment of any billing will not constitute agreement as to the appropriateness of any item 
and at the time of final audit, all required adjustments will be made and reflected in a final payment. 
In the event that such final audit reveals an overpayment to the CONSULTANT, the 
CONSULTANT will refund such overpayment to the AGENCY within thirty (30) days of notice of 
the overpayment. Such refund shall not constitute a waiver by the CONSULTANT for any claims 
relating to the validity of a finding by the AGENCY of overpayment. The CONSULTANT has 
twenty (20) days after receipt of the final POST AUDIT to begin the appeal process to the 
AGENCY for audit findings. 

D. Inspection of Cost Records: The CONSULTANT and their sub-consultants shall keep available for 
inspection by representatives of the AGENCY, STATE and the United States, for a period of three 
(3) years after receipt of final payment, the cost records and accounts pertaining to this 
AGREEMENT and all items related to or bearing upon these records with the following exception: 
if any litigation, claim or audit arising out of, in connection with, or related to this contract is 
initiated before the expiration of the three (3) year period, the cost records and accounts shall be 
retained until such litigation, claim, or audit involving the records is completed. 



Exhibit E-1: Consultant Fee Determination - Fixed Fee 

SR 20, Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

David Evans and Associates, Inc. 

Classification 
Direct 
Rate Hours Cost 

1 Project Manager (PMGR) $ 	58.50 723 $42,266 
2 Principal In Charge (PICH) $ 	71.00 94 $6,674 
3 Managing Professional Engr/QC (MGPE) $ 	58.50 136 $7,956 
4 Professional Engineer (PFEN) $ 	43.00 1185 $50,955 
5 Design Engineer (DEEN) $ 	33.00 576 $19,008 
6 Sr. CADD Technician (SCAD) $ 	33.50 535 $17,923 
7 Prof. Engineer - Transportation (PFEN) $ 	42.50 94 $3,995 
8 Environmental Planner (ENVP) $ 	34.00 24 $816 
9 Survey Manager (SVYM) $ 	60.75 8 $486 
10 Sr. Prof. Land Surveyor (SPLS) $ 	55.00 12 $660 
11 Prof. Land Surveyor (PLSU) $ 	39.00 12 $468 
12 Survey Technician (SVTE) $ 	31.50 72 $2,268 
13 Party Chief (PCHF) $ 	32.50 48 $1,560 
14 Instrument Person (1NST) $ 	24.00 48 $1,152 
15 Sr. Landscape Architect $ 	42.20 44 $1,857 
16 Sr. Landscape Designer $ 	32.90 86 $2,829 
17 Administrative Assistant (ADMA) $ 	27.50 282 $7,755 
18 Exec. Administrator (EXAD) $ 	31.70 32 $1,014 

Total Hours 4011 

Salary Cost 

Overhead Cost @ 
Net Fee @ 

175.13% of Direct Labor 
30.00% of Direct Labor 

$169,642 

$ 	297,095 
$ 	50,893 

Total Overhead & Net Fee Cost $347,987 

Direct Expenses Unit Each No. Cost 
Mail/Deliveries/Fed Ex each @ $20 20 $400 
Mileage miles @ $0.555 	/mile 1500 $833 
High Definition Scanning Equip. days @ $520 /day 4 $2,080 
Traffic Counts Vendor $1,500 

Subtotal $4,813 

David Evans and Associates Total 
	

$522,442 

Subconsultants:  
Associated Earth Sciences, Inc. - Geotechnical Engineering 

Hrs 
160 

 

Costs 
$30,017 

 

Skagit Surveyors & Engineers - Topographic Survey 320 $45,240 
Widener & Associates 670 $72,190 

Hours Totals 1150 

Subconsultant Totals $147,447 

DEA & Subconsultant Total 
	

$669,889 

Page 1 of 3 
SATRANS \DEAX00301sbs‘Sedro-Woolley\Cook Road Realignment\Scope and Estimate\Cook Road Cost Estimate 12-0419final.xls 	Printed: 4/19/2012 



. .......r
. 

1 

:...g
 	

r,:
et

;r
4,

 	
ac

c.
.c

i 	
t 

H
! 

 
,.. 	

tt
 

1 ::
. 

, II
. 

; j
 	l
it
 

. 	
, 	

, 
I 	

• 	
• 	

, 	
• 

	

c:
vt

,t'l
lt 	

H.4
4.

:::
::x

te
tt 

	

 
•
 
	

, 
I 

Exhibit E•1: Consultant Fee Da larrninatIOn • Summary Shoat 

SR  20. Cook Road  Realignment and Extension Project 
City of  Sedro-WcoNey 

David Evans and Ass ocia las , Inc. 	 t 	2 	3 	2 1•2 11 . 71 .13. 0 . 	tr  

9
 

l : 	I
ii 

;
! 

. 	
; 	 ,-

 'l
l if

li
t;

 

IF
 

ii
f
il

 
e, 	

• 	
3 

i
'
 	r

 
:•,

,,!
!!!

; 	
1 

, 	!
 

H
!;

. 
,;

i1
 

11
 	' ; 	 I
 

1
1
1
1
0
1
 

 

 1
 

.c  I - 

If
il

iV
 

14
11

.ie
 

1 	
1 3

tI
ti

' 

, 
- 1

! I 

l'  

 I
 ' 

!';
 i 

, 

§ ' 
!k

il t 

IC
II

1f
41

 
;P

.-
D

,-
  

il
lv

tl
i 4
 

11
 

 'i
,-

1 ik
 

41
 

is
 

 
1 	

ill ! ; 1 

• ' . 1
 	!

II
 

L. 	
, 

'
 	
' il

lI
F

IR
 

; 	
11

11
1-4

13
; 

ti
;;

 

iii
 

 
li

lt
 

it
th

i 

if
 ; 	
13

 

h.
  

P:
', 	

re
,E

4-
 

I I 1 
! 	;

 
 

' 
Z' 

g' ' 

.i
 I 

	

1 	,
 

1
 	;

 	' 

i 	
1 

: 

il
l.

:7
;[

01
, 

ilf
t 

111
1
-f

i 
V

il
 

ri
 li
 ; '1

, VC
 

IS
; 

1
4 ; 

I! ti 	
' l
' 

ir
: 

.1
 

t 
  
i 

: 	
ti

 
I 	

: 	
! 	

1
0

:11
1 1

11
 

i 	
1 	

ilt1
20

1
 

! 	
' 	
. 

!,
 	 1

 	
I 

	

I!
 I

 	
t
 

i 	!
: 	

Li 
; 	

f 	
, 

I.
' 

#
1
4
 

„n
Er

F 
n

il
!!

! 
i. 

Pi
 	

!i
f II
. 

• !i;
 	

; 

, 
ii 

,
 
	,

,..
..

1„
„
.
 ?
 

L 
II

I
 

 

„.
..

.i..
 

'
 

„
 .

..
..

__
_,

..1
  

1- 
1 

. 	
-,-

4 ,.; 1 
. 

' 11
  

, .
 

' 	 '
 

; 	
, 	
i.

 

._
,-
.4
 

lk
ill

W
g 	

11
...

4.
0.

4.
T

W
A

) 

''
4 

. 
, 

-T
.-

, 
4-t

 
 

1 
. :
7
i
 

. 	
! 

, 	
, 

I 
.
,
 

. 	
: 	

I 
1 	

! 
,
 1_
14

1 
1.  

W.  
_-

p if
 

tr
o

. Pr
ma

pl 
. C

N
N

..
 (

P
.M

 

` 
11

 
J 	I

  
it s

 i
* 

rs-
:r

st
-I

 
1 

1
1 

, 	-
 	;

 
g 	

;11 
1 	

a 	
I 

1  I
 	
r
 

'"V
ia

ltr
'' 

i 	
As

sm
ats

i -I 
1 	

i 	
-!-

 - 

—
44

-4
 

r
 

• 

-4
11

-  
..

..
.1

..
. i • 

g
 ',:_

 .
 	.

 	 s
z 

:e
s 

-1
--

's 
ti

 
.-1

.. 
a-

I 11
1.

f il
 

I 	
1  

ql
.1

.7
t"

'"
 

g. 	
is 

ss
! f

 
	 i 

I 	1  • 
:.

 	
i 

■ 

1 
.
.
1

 
 
	

ri
 

1 	1
 

' 
'
 s

  

' I
— ' 	

1 

	

ft
 	

-t -
5-
7
 

	

H
 i 
	

I  
; 	

/ 

i 	
! 

''
''
 Em

b..,
(DE

M 
a 

1-
 43
 le

 
!
 .
M

 

1 
 

: 	
I 1 

f
 r

-  
I^
 

 
_
. 

I 

i 	
_

5
. 

 1
  

C,.
.00

 To
chn

icia
n (

SC
AD

) 

s.
 

,,, 
r 

 
3
 
 

r
g 

.4
 

1
 

1 
e 

I 
i 

3 

 
.

,ik
. 

oar 13 

ii
 

 

I.
 

[
 

I H
 

i 
r 

I 

....
,...

—
pw

m 
5, P

rot
 La

na
 Su

rvs
yce

 
SK

S)
 

Pr
a L

ind
 Sa

vo
y.,

 pi
st,

l) 

i_
 -

1-
 

J 
.. t 
'-
--

1-
-  SS
 

.13
 

.1d
 

.
 

Su
rre

y T
eth

nk
in 

(SV
TE

) 

.
 

.
 

4 

f
r

.'4
'T

M  I r
ch

„)
 

...w
el 

Pa
wn

 O
N9

1)
 

Sr 
La

rod
um

po 
Ar

thi
ted

 

:1
1

1
1

1
 

.
 
i
  

r.  

L.
-..

...
.5

. D
.*

.g
.. 

i 
M

iff
. A

l.a
.A

.1
 

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
 

.. 

.1
 

,..
. .,,

 Ex
ec

. A
:M

M
.. (

Er.
AD

) 

''
''

.'
. 	

$0
.. 

'8
 	

t
*
 

..
V

. 
,...

.. ,
.. 

.'7
,-:
  

• 

'
 

1
2

a
 

C
 

ia
 	
i
-
  

i
i
 
l
i
 
2g

 
N I 

. 

I 

r., 	
r 

g 	
. 

1
 

11
 

N1
:4

nc
Iry

 
51

, 5
15

.5
1 

p E 
r 

po
lir

i 
N

5g
gl

 
i 1
 n .11

'..E
D

A
N

N
g 

n,.
..g

 
5 5 

g 
11

5:
4 Ln 

tr
 i 

S 
Ft

t 
-5 	

55
 

u5
 

55
1

,51.-V
5 

;
 1

 g 
N

r 
g 

,.A
 

r, 

L1
51
11
 	

i 	
V

;1
5i

 	
i 	

::
::

::
ig

g
 	

5 	
;5

15
5 	

51
 	

1
 	
ii

 	
3

;;
; -
; 	
: 	

ii
i 

ii
ii

 
t 

fi
 



I PROZECT WOW( ELEMENTS TOTALS 

! 	
i 	: 

 
VE

 	
, 	

! 

	

4 
i 
	

1 
	

e
" 

,r,
-P

.,.
."

.P
...

.,?
 	

-:..
.r.-

 	
p..

k.c
ri

et
t:

,z
;e

w
..

!:
 

al.
 

.: 
	_

.....1
_7

] 
;k 	

1,
 

	

,1±
._

,,_.
 	

si
#.

-  
,,T 

 
.. 

	

L1
-7
,,
 	
0
 	
s
t 1

H 	
l 
us
if

fi
pu

it
 

	

q
p
 
1
 	

a. 	
i
t
 

 
1
4
 	

2 	
14.

, 
1 	

1. 0
2
1 	

I
t

o
  

,, 	
p,g

'! 	
o
w

 	
ta

 
is 	

' 	
' 
	r 	

4
 	

F
IT

 	
, a

l;
 

la =- 
	

r- 	
.
 	,

 	
1. 
	

. 

	

1!
 	

,!,,,,
- 	

■ 	t
.l

 	
E 

	

.,  
	

g 	
. 

	

, 	
,1-:

 	
' 	

gR
' 	1

4
 	

1 

	

:5
', 	

if
t 

 
5. 	

. 	
, 	

la
r
 	

1 	
1 

i 	
. 	

A 

b
•    i
  
	:  
	•  
	2,„  
	E  
	c  
	I,
 

 
2  
	 -    
	

i  
	!: 
	- 	

I  
	n
 

 
 . 	
i
 	I
,!

  
	-  
	f 	

1 	
1
11
  	j 

 

	

:L
.. 

k.
,2

4:
,t4

r w
.w,

. L
.5.r

. 	
e.k

 1. 
t..z 	

..k
ip 

,.7
4. 

p
p
,
 

	

01
 ii

 	
, 

-"
fi

n
, 

il 
  it  

	

...
1: 	

c.
 c

 	 L
.'
 

4
 

	

-.'-
' 	

;:
' 
	I

V
' 

-r
- 

	

I 	
1 	

--;
-•

 

	

 1 	
1 	

,:
!;
,,
,,
j 

.,
 

 
W

W
I 

T
M

 

t 
1p
il
 i
ft
sr
il
ut
iO
D 

- 
1 	

ct
hi
pt
 

A 	
.1

4a
..,

.i 
;  

i 	
ilii

: 	
0
 
	i
 

'gi
ll 	

it
a

-,f
igi

 
4

,,
,!.

, 	
._ 	

its
. 	i 

y
, 	

1!
 O

 
	

, 
. 	

: 
1
 .
 ;

 0
0
 

g. 
	I

 	.
 	8

 z 	
iz 

1.a
• 	

1 	
1: 
	1

 
	

• 	
's

' 
1

 	
'
 	
' 	

01
' 	

! 	
,E f

  

i
 	!
 

  t
 	

I 
 

6! 	
I4'

,2
1  

4
 ' i ' '
p
p
 

ir
i.h

ila
wi

L"
:  

of
t 

4
4
1
 p

f:
 

i 4
1

 .
; 

- 
a

 , 
i
r
p
0
,
 

-i 	
I. 	

1
1

 
a
 !

 F
 	

' 

 i 
	I,

  

722.6 12 136 1.116 371 335 64 2.4 6  12 12 70 4. 41  64 II 262  32  2633  3522.441 	643.240 	 330,017 111,110 3e02,666 

-:.
..-

- 

	

  
. 	 
	. 

•
,

1
, 

-I 	
I 

 
7 	

• 	
r 

1 
j
  +

1
—  

 
 
. 

 	.1.
  

  
, 

1 4 I 

 i 
	..
..
. 

 , 1 
 i  	• i 	1 

 a.
I.,

..„
4.!

...1
....

„..
 

I 	
1 

I.I
 	1 

 	k
Ic   I 

 	' 
 	I  
	4  
	„1

,  
	1,  

  7
,      
	.....

  .7
7

_
,.

..
„1
„
,,  

 ,  
	, 
	1  
	, 

' 	
II

!I
il

 
1

1 
 
 
	•-

  
IL 

 	I
ll  

J 
 1-

 

. E
 -4 / I.

 r
r.

 

5. F
ra

 

4 i  r i
 

If
s, 

fi
t °
 

 1,
..

.„
,.

,   
.. 

1.1
1.

&i
rl 74

  
, 	

i ta
 

tt
i-
i-
rt
l.
t 

.±
k
 .
 

'T
h 

t
-

, .
 

4-1
-1-

{  1,
 i 
1
4
11
 

11
 

1 	i
  

,H
,1

11
-1-1

.  

	

:I
 	I

 
t 	

+
4 

1 4
 2  

V
..2

.0
 PK

,In
ak

. 
ftl

i0C
 (1

■GP
Ey 	

" 

0
1

 .
0

 
. 2 	

... 

i
-1
--
-'
-  : 	

,1! 	
t-

1 
-.

0.
r-

rt
.4

0.
4.

1i
41

:1  
i 

,
 	

1. 
Li

- 	
, 

-
 	

Wi
t 

t.n
ta
tp
 	-

--
-I
.1
,'
 f
iZ

tr
E"

*-
 

- 

. 
	

.
 

--
 

-+
 

I  ... 
	:
 	!
 

i 
a-
g.
..
..
--
.7
.-
.-
1t
4i
-1
,-
 
i 

W
 

..,
 
'
 , Li-
 

It
kY
."
-1
.1
. 1
4
1
.
t
1
"
-
-
1
 

, 
- 41

. ;
 

1 
11

 I 
H
 

, 	 1
 ' t 

04 
. 	

E 	
IDE

EN
 

fi
s"
."
'"
'"
6'
w(
s"
'"
 

11
- .1.1

 

-
 

Tr
-
4- : 

I 

19
 1 a i 

t 1  
1.,

 

I
-  

I
 I. 

4  
t
 
'
 

I 

1
 i 

.
 

- 

1
 

1
   
	

1 	
IT

 

1
1

  1 

H
.-H

. 
ii

1
_

 
1

 
I 

- 

1 , 1 ... 

1  
1  m

  
i 

li
 

I
I
 11

 
11

, 

1 1
 

1-14
7
11 il
l It
 I I 

--.
4 

..._
_ 1 

----
-J , 	1

 
I 	
!.1 

1 	
I C 

N
r
44.

E.o
..,

 
:7

"-
-"

7, ,i) 	
.
 

11
,0

, 
Elu

r.y
•ts

.Po
rIt

Y"
M)

 	
• 

Pro
:. U

na 
Su

rny
a. 	

,. 

La
nd

 SO
i•V

a(P
Le

A 	
= 

'. 

--
-t

-1
3 

1
 

S
u

n
g

 T
 .

..
ta

r,
 O

W
E

) 	
•• "
 

I
 II

I 	
1  

P•
Al

. E
lie

lnk
l9 	

r: 

ffi
ta,

um
...m

raw
a 

a 
c 

- -
12

 — 
I 

c Z
.:

 
III 

1
1

1
1

6
it

 
t -

 A 
I 

I 
La

ndo
w,.

 Da
aig

ner
 	

:
 

qi
it

t ir
.m

.4.
1 

if 
Il

l 
II

I 
II

 
IN

 
11

11
1 	

I 

li
N

a
4

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

 i i.
F-w

le.na
rni4

inlo
r EX

AE1
/ 	
:
 

t 	
st

8
..
. 

l
l
 

r4
-'

 	
h 	

-t—
 

V 	
t
.
t
v
a
t
m
.
.
n
t
L
u
t
:
 

t
r
I
L

IA
R

 
m

ti 
!
I
I
I
 
-
 

I
 

N
 '2
!
 

I 
[ 

i 
,I 

...=
': 

05
 

• 
h

.  2 

r 
1 

; 
il

' g,,
  

1 
1 I

I 
1 

I 1 
_, r

 g 
1 4

1 

11
 

.; 5. 
2
2
' 

tt7
.1
' 	
"
 

i 
ii

 
N
i
t
.
 
ii

Pt
in

 
ti

l 
 
i
 	

I 
"
 	

I" 
i
i
I
I
I
,
N
i
l
l
1
L
m
i
l
g
E
 

2 .1
 41 

' 

. 	
i
e.

 	
i 	

i 	
5 	

ii
 	

1 	
ii
5i
i 	
ii

i5
Mi

iM
ii

53
i5

11
 i

ii
ii

ii
ii

5i
51

51
55

i1
5 

-x-
 



Supplemental Signature 
Page for 

Standard Consultant 
Agreement 

Consultant/Address/Telephone 

David Evans and Associates, Inc. 

415 - 118th Avenue SE 

Bellevue, WA 98005 

(425) 519-6500 

Agreement Number Project Title And Work Description 

SR 20, Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project: Involves the 
survey, environmental, and engineering work necessary for 
preparation of the PS&E for the SR 20 Cook Road Roundabout, the 
Murrow Street'Cook Road Roundabout, the new northWfurrow Street 
extending from SR 9 to F&S Grade Road, and the removal of the 
existing Cook Road from SR 20 to Washington Street. 

Federal Aid Number 

Local Agency 

City of Sedro-Woolley 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 
	

day of 	 , 	2012 , 

between the Local Agency of City of Sedro-Woolley 	, Washington, hereinafter called the 

   

"AGENCY" , and the above organization hereinafter called the "CONSULTANT". 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the day and year first 

above written. 

CONSULTANT 

By 

    

LOCAL AGENCY 

By 	  

Agency City of Sedro-Woolley  

  

Consultant David Evans and Associates, Inc. 

   

          

          

By     By 

Consultant David Evans and Associates, Inc. 	Agency City of Sedro-Woolley 

By 

Agency City of Sedro-Woolley 

By 

Agency City of Sedro-Woolley 

DOT Form 140-0B9 EF Appendix 31-910 
Revised 6/05 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETTNG 

APR 2 5 2012 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL Cr133EH'. 
AGENDA NO. 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-9922 
Fax (360) 855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City Supervisor/City Attorney 

MEMO TO: 
	

City Council 
FROM: 
	

Eron Berg 
RE: 
	

Community Center fees 
FOR MEETING: 
	

April 25, 2012 

ISSUE: 	Should the Council adopt the attached ordinance modifying SWMC 12.36 to 
establish a rental rate and security deposit for the use of the Community Center audio/visual 
equipment? 

BACKGROUND: The Sedro-Woolley Rotary Club has completed its work at the 
Community Center this month with the addition of an oak paneled wall on the east end, a new 
electric drop-down screen, an audio/visual closet, new microphones and other components of the 
audio/visual system. The City is in the process of purchasing a new projector to mount on the 
recently added ceiling mount. 

The new A/V closet is locked for security. The attached ordinance establishes a $50.00 per use 
fee for using the A/V equipment and triggers the higher security/damage deposit amount when 
that equipment is rented. As the City is responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement 
of the A/V equipment, it seems prudent to establish a rental rate and plan for the future costs 
today. 

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to adopt Ordinance 	-12, an ordinance modifying 
SWMC 12.36 to establish a rental rate and security deposit for the use of the Community Center 
audio/visual equipment. 



ORDINANCE No. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SWMC 12.36 TO ESTABLISH A NEW RENTAL RATE FOR THE USE 

OF AUDIOVISUAL EQUIPMENT 

Whereas, SWMC 12.36 establishes rules and regulations for the use of City parks 
and sets fees for use of the City's parks and facilities, and 

Whereas, SWMC 12.36.030 establishes the rental amounts and security deposits 
for using the community center; and 

Whereas, the Sedro-Woolley Rotary Club has donated and the City has purchased 
a new audio/visual system for the Community Center; and 

Whereas, the City is responsible for maintenance, repair and replacement of the 
audio/visual system; and 

Whereas, the Council desires to establish a rental rate and security deposit for the 
use of the audio/visual system at the Community Center; now therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY DO HEREBY 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. SWMC 12.36.030 is amended to add the following paragraph: 

. Audio/Visual Equipment. An additional fee of fifty Dollars ($50.00) is charged 
for the use of the Community Center audio/visual equipment. 

Section 2. SWMC 12.36.030 E is amended to read as follows: 

Security Deposit. After use of the community center, it must be cleaned up and restored 
to the city in the same condition as found by the user. The person renting the reservation 
shall be liable for any cost of cleanup and repair of damage. A security deposit must be 
paid no less than three days prior to the event, in the sum of the greater of: 

1. One thousand dollars if alcohol is served or permitted; 

2. One thousand dollars if dancing or live music is permitted; 

3. One thousand dollars if the audio/visual equipment is rented; or 

4. One hundred dollars if alcohol, dancing and music are not permitted. 

This deposit may be in the form of cash. All or a portion of this deposit may be retained if 
the premises is not cleaned and restored to its original condition or if there is any damage 



to the premises, furnishings, exterior premises, or equipment including but not limited to  
the audio/visual equipment. This remedy is cumulative, and in addition to any other 
remedy or cause of action provided by law or agreement. Each group shall have the use 
of the community center as long as they conduct their activities in a lawful manner either 
inside or outside the building, so as to not interfere with neighboring property owners. 
The city shall have the right to revoke all privileges if warranted by complaints of 
excessive noise or any other valid complaint. Complaints against any user of the 
community center or violation of any city ordinance shall be grounds for forfeiture of 
privileges and forfeiture of security and damage deposit. 

Renter is responsible for leaving the facility in clean, broom-swept condition, with 
garbage removed as indicated in the rental agreement. Any required cleaning, as 
determined by the city, shall be charged to the renter in the amount of fifty dollars per 
hour. 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective five (5) days after passage and publication as 
provided by law. 

Section 4. The provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable, and if any 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance shall for any reason be held invalid 
or unconstitutional or if the application of this ordinance to any person or circumstances 
shall be held invalid or unconstitutional, such decisions shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining sections, sentences, clause or phrases of this ordinance. 

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City 

Council this 	 day of 	 , 2012, and signed in authentication of its 

passage this 	day of 	 , 2012. 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 



Eron Berg, City Attorney 

First Reading by City Council: 
Second Reading by City Council: 
Approval by City Council: 
Signed by the Mayor: 
Date of Publication: 

April 25, 2012 


